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Group turnover
£1,801.3m

2014 £1,756 7m (restated)™™

Group underlying profit before tax*
£300.4m

2014 £276 1m (restated)~*

Group profit before tax
£148.2m

2014 £318 9m (restated)™

Dividend per share
84 90p

2014 80 40p

Earnings per shara**
107.2p

2014- 92 5p {restated)*™

e

Before tax, exceptional items and gains/losses on financial instruments

Before deforred tax, exceptional items and gainsflosses on financie! nstruments

Restated to classify Water Punfication as a discontinued operation

Good financial performance

— Adjusted EPS up 15 9% year on year

— Underlying group PBIT £540 3 million, up 3 2% year on year

— Reported group PBIT up 2 6% year on year

Focus on operational improvement

— Improved or stable performance on 12 out of 14 Ofwat KPIs year on year

— Achieved target of 10% reduction in leakage over AMP5

Invested a further £547 4 million to complete AMP5 programme of £2 6 billion RCV1 £7 7 billion at April 2015
Customer bills remain the lowest in Britain at £329 for 201516

Severn Trent Services re-focused — disposal of Water Purification business (US$81 2 million)

industry leader in renewable energy - self generation equivalent to 28% of Severn Trent Water's energy
needs

Reported group PBT £148.2 million, reflecting farr value losses on financial instruments
Well positioned for AMP&

Largest investment programme ever — £3 32 bilhon capial investment

New organisational structure and management team

£300 milhon of £372 milion target efficiencies already locked in
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— Focused on outperformance
— 2015/16 dividend 80 66 pence, followed by annual growth of no less than RPI untl 2020

1 Regulatory Capital Value
2  At2012/2013 pricas

Cautionary statement

This document contains statements that are, or may be deemed to be, ‘forward-looking statements’ with respect
to Severn Trent's financial condition, results of operations and business and certain of Severn Trent's plans and
objectives with respect to these items

Forward-looking statements are sometimes, but not always, identified by their use of a date in the future or such
words as ‘anticipates’, 'aims’, ‘'due’, ‘could’, ‘may’, 'will', ‘would’, ‘should’, ‘expects’, ‘believes’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’,
‘projects’, ‘potential’, 'reasonably possible’, ‘targets’, ‘goal’ or ‘estimates’ and, in each case, their negative or other
vanations or comparable terminology Any forward-looking statements i this document are based on Severn
Trent's current expectations and, by thewr very nature, forward-looking statements are inherently unpredictabie,
speculative and involve risk and uncertainty because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that may
or may not occur in the future.

Forward-lcoking statements are not guarantees of future performance and no assurances can ba given that the
forward-locking statements in this document will be realised There are a number of factors, many of which are
beyond Severn Trent's control, that could cause actual results, performance and developments to differ matenally
from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements

These factors include, but are not limited to, changes in the economies and markets in which the group operates;
changes in the regulatory and competition frameworks in which the group operates, the impact of legal or other
proceedings against or which affect the group, and changes in interest and exchange rates

All written or verbal forward-looking statements, made in this document or made subsequently, which are
attnbutable to Severn Trent or any other member of the group or persons acting on their behalf are expressly
qualified in therr entirety by the factors referred to above Subject to compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, Severn Trent does not intend to update these forward-looking statements and does not undertake
any obligation to do so

Nothing in this document should be regarded as a profits forecast

This document is not an offer to sell, exchange or transfer any secunities of Severn Trent Pic or any of its
subsidianies and I1s not soliciting an offer to purchase, exchange or transfer such securies in any jurisdiction
Securties may not be offered, sold or transferred in the US absent regestration or an applicable exemption from
the registration requirements of the US Securihes Act of 1933 (as amended)
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What we do
Severn Trent provides clean water and waste water services In the UK and internationally through our
regulated and non-regulated businesses — Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent Services.

Regulated — Severn Trent Water
Wholesale water and waste operations

Retail services
Further detafls are provided on page 18

About us
One of the largest of the 10 regulated water and sewerage companies in England and Wales We provide high
qualty services to more than 3 3 million households and businesses in the Midlands and mid-Wales

Where we operate
Our region stretches across the heart of the UK, from the Bnstol Channel to the Humber, and from mid-Wales to
the East Midlands.

Key facts
Turnover

£1,581 2m

{2014 £1,544 Bm)

Profit*

£539.0m

{2014 £518 6m)

* Before interest, tax and exceptional items
Households and businesses serviced
3.3m

Litres of drinking water supplied each day
1.8bn

Litres of waste water collected per day
1.4bn

Employees

5,181

(as at 31 March 2015)

Covar
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Non-regulated — Severn Trent Services
UK Operating Services
US Operating Services

Renewable Energy
Further details are provided on page 32

About us
UK Operating Services (incl ltaly and ireland)

UK Operating Services provides contract services to municipal and industnal clients and the UK Minstry of
Defence (MOD) for design, build and operation of water and waste water treatment faciliies and networks Retail
services are also provided to UK businesses

US Operating Services

US Operating Services provides coniract services to community, municipal and industnal clients for the operation
and maintenance of water and waste water treatment facifittes and networks

Where we operate
Severn Trent Services includes our core non-regulated businesses operating in the UK, Americas and Europe

Key facts

Turnover
£216.3m

(2014 £210 2m**)

Profit*
£9.7m

(2014 £13 3m (restated))™

* Before interest, tax and exceptional tems

**  Restated to classify Water Punfication as a discontinued operation
Employees

1,853

(as at 31 March 2015)

Renewable Energy

Severn Trent's non-regulated business already generates renewable energy from wind turbines, hydro power and
anaerobic digestion (AD) of crops We have now expanded into the food waste AD market, and have plans to add
solar technology as our fifth source of energy generation

Cover
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At Severn Trent our role I1s to serve our communities and build a lasting water legacy

Our challenge 1s to not only care for our water system, but to build upon i, to meet the changing needs of our
community and environment

To do this, we continually invest in renewing and improving upon the legacy that we have, by creating new ways
to defiver fresh, clean water to our customers’ taps, before retuming it safely to the environment

We innovate so that we create a greener, cleaner water future for us all. We are investing in new technalogy to
create energy from waste and flexible water and waste water systems for communities and businesses around the
world

We care for your water, so that you can have peace of mind that it will always be there.
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Chairman’s statement

Andrew Duff, Chairman

This has been an Important year for Severn Trent. We have completed the final year of our AMPS5
investment period in our regulated business and agreed a business plan with our customers and
regulators for the next five years. At the same time, under the leadership of our new Chief Executive,
Liv Garfield, and her team we have taken great strides in transforming our business to meet the
challenges and opportunities of our evolving water sector.

Continued delivery

Leoking back, the final year of AMPS has again delivered significant value for our customers and our
shareholders

Total group revenue rose by 2 §% to £1,801 3 milhon, while underiying group profit before tax was 3 2% higher at
£640 3 milion This resulted in adjusted earnings per share of 107 2 pence, up 15 9% from 82 5 pance

For 2014/15, your board is proposing a final dividend of 50 94 pence to be paid on 24 July 2015 This will resuit in
a total dividend for the financial year of 84.90 pence, representing growth of 5 6% Since the start of AMP5, we've
delivered a total shareholder return of 125 4%, well ahead of the 42 4% return from the FTSE 100

For many people, being able to afford our services 1s key and so we're pleased to have had the lowest average
combined water and sewerage bills in Britain for the last six years, a position which 1s set to continue at least to
2020 Qur average bill in 2014/15 was £333, which I1s lower in real terms than at the start of AMP5S

As well as good value, our customers have also benefited from an improved level of operational performance
Over the last 12 menths, we have further improved our ranking and performance in Ofwat's measure of customer
service performance, the Service incentive Mechanism (SIM), and | am confident that our rate of improvement will
see us climb further over the coming years We have also produced very good environmental performance with
continuing streng results in leakage and significant reductions in the number of pollution incidents

These efforts are reflected in nsing customer satisfaction scores This 1s an smportant indicator for us as we
continue our journey to put customers at the heart of everything we do

Performance has improved over the last five years and | am confident we will continue to deliver further
improvements 1n our operational and customer service performance into AMPG

Underlying group PBIT* Dividend Dividend
£540 3m +56% 84 90p
“  Before exceptional items

The next five years

The tast year has been necessanly dominated by our PR14 process, as we prepared and submitted our business
plan for the next five years, and accepted Ofwat's Final Determination It has been the culmination of over

18 months of work, which has benefited significantly from input from our customers and a wide range of other
important stakeholders This engagement has been an innovation in this price review and has halped us to better
evaluate nsk, quality and cost through the eyes of our customers

Throughout, we have had a constructive dialogue with Ofwat and the outcome 1s a challenging settlement, but
nonetheless a farr deal for our customers We are undertaking one of our largest ever investment programmes
with a total AMPS expenditure of £6 6 billion, most of which will directly benefit our customers and the Midlands'
economy. By 2020 the average annual Severn Trent Water bill will be £60 below the industry average

Strategic report 3
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Severn Trent Water has always had a good record on social tanffs for those customers who are struggling to pay.
We plan to do even more n AMP8, with up to four times more people benefiting from our new special tarff

scheme

In accepting Ofwat's Final Determunation, we have alse committed to some stretching operational targets, through
our Outcome Delivery Incentives {ODIs), and achieving operational efficiencies over the next five years We also
took the opportunity to assess the imphcations for our capital structure and dividend policy After careful
consideration, we decided to reduce the dividend by 5% in the coming financial year, with a policy of growth in
subsequent years by no less than the Retail Prices Index (RPI) each year to 2020 We also announced that we
would commence a share repurchase programme of up to £110 million of ordinary shares This programme was
considered a low nsk methoed of returning capital to shareholders, satisfying future share awards and moving
gearing tn Severn Trent Water towards the 62 5% net debt/Regulated Capital Value (RCV} notional level used by
Ofwat In the price review

Severn Trent has one of the fastest growing RCVs In our sector and we are confident that we can continue our
track record of delivering sustainable growth for our shareholders into the longer term Our focus on operational
excellence, and continuous mnnovation In the delivery of excellent customer service, gives us confidence that we
can earn additional rewards through our new ODIs

Board changes
Delivering for the future depends on many things, but the most important success factor is our people

Leadership starts at the very top and at the beginning of the year we appointed Liv Garfield to be our Chief
Executive to lead the next stage of your company's journey Liv has identified that the commitment and skills of

our people will be cntical

With this In mind she has created space for our managers to lead and empowered them o take accountabiity and
to innovate Delivering cperational improvement, steenng the price review process and at the same time building
the organisattonal structure and culture necessary for success over the next five years has been quite an

achievement in her first year

During the year we aiso bade farewel! to two board members who have made an enormous contnbution to the
success of Severn Trent in racent years, our Chief Financial Officer, Michael McKeon, and Richard Davey, who
has served as Senior Independent Director and Chairman of ecur Remuneration Committee [ would like to place
on record my personal thanks and that of your board for therr distinguished contribution and service At the same
time, I'm delighted to welcome our new Chief Financial Officer, James Bowiing

Our changing sector
In transforming our business and preparing for a future in a changing sector, we are indebted to our people

It 1s they who identified the need for change and throughout the changes we have made over the last year, they
have unfallingly accepted the need fo transform our business The board and | are grateful to each and every one
of them for all that they do and for the commitment they have shown

Our sector 1s quietly evolving and the future is a world of increased competition and further opportunities in non-
regulated water markets. We believe that the renewable energy market has growth potential for us and have
made a significant financiai commitment to increase our own anergy generation With our focus on operational
excellence and our established track record of environmental guardianship and technrical innovation, you can be
confident that Severn Trent 1s well positioned to benefit from growth in these future markets

As we conclude the final year of AMPS5, we can look back on five years of continuous improvemsnt Looking
forward to AMP6, we believe we've put the foundations in place to deliver continued long term sustainable growth
for our shareholders and real benefits for our customers and the communities i which they live and work

Andrew Duff, Chairman

Strategic report
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Chief Executive’s review
Liv Garfield, Chief Executive

it’s the end of my first year as Chief Executive of Severn Trenf and | have enjoyed every minute of the
challenge of getting our business in the best possible shape for the next five years.

We are now facing the future with confidence, despite one of the toughest price settlements in our history

When | took up my role in 2014, | was clear that in order to create the most trusted company in our sector we
needed to focus on transforming our culture, driving operational excellence and putting customers at the heart of
what we do It's what successful businesses do, it's what we all want and 1t creates value for our customers and
our shareholders

The changes we have made over the last year have built those foundations, and | have been out to meet
everyone in our business personally, to listen to their views and share our vision of the kind of awesome company
we want to create It's been a huge journey condensed down into a single year, but | genumely believe that
creating the nght cuiture 1s how we’ll get the whole organisation aligned as one and ready to deliver for the future

Performance in 2014/15
Our performance over the last year has demonstrated where we are strong and the areas where we need to drive
improvement

Looking at our improvement areas first, no one in our business 1s It any doubt that water quality 1s a key focus

area for us We've made progress in the year, but our performance hasn't been as good as we would like it to be

So we have put together a seven point improvement plan and repriortised £35 million of Investment to replace

and refurbish water quality assets nearing the end of therr hfe, which will also provide a greater degree of

restience in both our networks and to cur water treatment works We will also put significant focus on investing in

the professional expertise of our people and developing our process analytics to improve the reliability and |
availabiity of our assets |

Lowest average combined bill Leakage over AMPS Efficiencies identified
2014115 -10% £300m
£333

The other area where we think we can do better 1s around 12 hour interruptions to water supply to our customers
We are good at managing three hour interruptions, but we are not as sharp as we could be on the bigger, more
complex events We've done a lot of work over the last year to improve on that and we will continue to invest and
use better technology to help our teams to improve our service for customers

On waste water services, we are very good at the majonty of measures, but If there's one area where we can do a
better job, it's around sewer blockages and we have set the bar very high for the next few years

Aside from these matters, there are also many highlights from the last year, where we are pleased with our
performance.

Leakage performance has been very good over recent years and we have hit our target of a 10% reduction over
AMPS We've set ourselves tough targets and we're challenging ourselves to improve further We remain
confident about our continuing performance where we are strong and on many of our waste water measures we
are already upper quartie in the industry

We've been recognised by the Environment Agency as the only 4* rated company in 2014 across the entire sector
for environmental performance We're also proud of our focus on and commmment to catchment management and
we are one of the few companies to have put in serious investment in the coming five year penod

“Together with the lowest average bills in Britaln, our customers increasingly feel that they are receiving
good value for money, which is an encouraging sign that we are getting the balance night.”

Strategic report 5
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We have also improved our customer service performance During the year we created approximately 100 new
frontline roles and have focused on resolving customer issues faster Together with the lowest average bills In
Britain, our customers increasingly feel that they are receiving good value for money, which 1s an encouraging
sign that we are getting the balance nght, although, of course, there 1s much more for us to do

All of this makes us confident that Severn Trent will be one of the winners in the new world of ODIs from 1 April
2015, and (n areas where we aren't curently doing as well as we would like, we have an opportunity to improve
and then earn rewards

A year of transformation
My fundamental belief 15 that successful organisations are customer focused ones, so we are focusing on
operational excellence and embedding the customer in all that we do

The strategy we have put in place over the last year I1s designed to deliver an outstanding customer expenence,
the best value service and environmental leadership In doing so we will create long term value for all our
stakeholders, our customers, our communities, cur employees and our investors

This 1s the bigger vision and the bigger context which s driving our thinking as we look forward to the future

We want to be in the best possible shape to deliver our strategy so we made the decision over the year to create
a different organisational structure and put in place a new management team No one else in our sector has a
structure like this and we believe it will give us an edge 1n an increasingly competitive world

We've chosen to bring together our water and waste water businesses into one Wholesale Operations business
This change will simphify our structure, speed up decision making and make us more efficient and agile as a
business, enabling us to drive the operational excellence and innovation we're looking for Our new Managing
Director for our Wholesale Operations business s Emma FitzGerald who will, | am sure, bring her expenence,
passion and drive to deliver a great customer service through operational excellence

The second structural change we've made s to create a Chief Customer Officer role, brninging together our IS
function, our contact centres and transformation teams Qur industry needs to fully embrace digital technology to
become more efficient and to deliver what our customers expect Bnnging everything tegether in one place
creates a sense of a joined up business for our customers and allows us to fulfil our digital ambition Sarah
Beniley, who has previously looked after digital for Accenture, has joined as our new Chief Customer Officer.

in Severn Trent Business Services we have reorgamised and brought together our nan-regulated businesses,
Operating Services US, Operating Services UK, including non-household retail and renewable energy, each with
a very good management team in place and a clear future With the sale of the Water Purification business the
management team will be able to focus on creating value from these core businesses in water and waste services
and renewable energy Our new non-regulated businesses are lad by Andy Smith who has extensive expenence
in the water sector having been the Severn Trent Water, Water Services Director for seven years

“The changes we've made will create a more dynamic, empowered culture, where the customer Is very
much at the heart of our business.”

To ensure we have the very best engineering expertise, we have created a Chief Engineering Officer function, led
by Martin Kane Martin's team will give us assurance that we are challenging ourselves to create the very best
engingering solutions We've got one of the biggest investment programmes we've ever had over the next five
years and we need to ensure we have the nght assurance that we are choosing the most cost-effective solutions
The Chief Engmeerning Officer function will also assist in bringing innovation to Iife within our business

The final structurat change we made during the year was the creation of a Chief Commercial Officer function, led
by Helen Miles We have a big agenda over the next five years and we want to drive significant efficiencies We
know what the drivers are and we now have a plan in place to deliver them, which has already identified over
£200 million of AMP6 savings from the supply chain

Strat;ag!c report 6
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In addition to these structural changes, our Chief Financial Officer, Michael McKeon, has decided after nine years
with Severn Trent to retire | would like to sincerely thank Michael for his help in my first year in the role He's been
a superstar I'm also delighted to have been joined by James Bowling as our new Chief Financial Officer, who

I know will be excellent

In transforming our business, we've also made difficult but important orgamsational changes, including significant
reductions in our cost base and de-layering of management levels. These changes were tough, but will deliver
over £100 million of savings for AMP6 whilst allowing more space for our managers to lead

So together with £200 million of supply chain and other efficiencies that we have already identified, this now
equates to £300 millon already locked in, as at the date of this report, for the coming five year period, which 1s a
significant way towards the £372 million target agreed in our Final Determinaton,

The changes we’ve made will also create a more dynamic, empowered culture, where the customer 1s very much

at the heart of our business

Our business plan for AMP6 promises better value, better services and a cleaner environment | believe that with

the changes that we have put in place we are well placed to deliver our commitments

1 Water quality 15 a key focus area for Severn Trent £35 million of mvestment has been repriontsed to replace and refurbish water quallty
assets

2 Severn Trent has been recognised by the Environment Agency as the only 4* rated company in 2014 across the entire sector for
environmental parfformance

How we create sustainable growth

¢ Embed customers at the heart of all we do

= Drive operational excellence and continuous innovation
¢ Invest responsibly

« Change the market for the better

s Create an awesome place to work

Sustainable growth

QOur strategy Is to Invest responsibly In sustainable growth. In our UK regulated business, our £6 6 biflion AMPE
expendrture includes one of our biggest Investment programmes and gives us a fantastic opportunity to
outperform and grow our regulated asset base

We also have an opportunity to earn additional rewards over the five years by performing well on our ODIs There
are bound to be good and bad years on vanous measures, but in aggregate we are confident that we're
positioned to do well As an industry and as a company we have lobbied hard for incentives and we're looking
forward to the chalienge

Severn Trent has always been known for environmental leadership and we also see a positive future 1n green
energy We have announced over £190 million of new mvestment in renewable energy over the next five year
penod and in particular in anaerobic digeston and solar technologies

This will take our self-generation of renewable energy from the equivalent of 28% of Severn Trent Water's gross

energy consumption over 2014/15 to around 50% by 2020, providing efficient green energy and a long term
hedge against volatile energy prices Severn Trent remains the sector leader in this area

Looking forward
I'm dehghted to be part of Severn Trent and very excted about how Severn Trent and our people can play a part
in changing our market for the better.

Strategic report 7
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The future 1s a world where there wili be more competition in the water sector and we are already seeing the start
of a gentle disaggregation of the value chain New markets are opening, including the retail non-household market
In 2017 We want to be an active part of that, and we would also love to see a competitive market for sludge
trading and water trading, as we believe they present opportunities for competition in the sector and value for our

customers

We've put in place the building blocks to ensure that Severn Trant is a leader in our sector the lowest bills for
customers, strategicaliy well posifioned in sludge, retail competihon and water resources, a standard setter in
renewables, and the right people, leadership and orgarusational structure {o deliver

So this has been a year of transformation, but for us there 1s always more to do, more efficiency to be found, more
success to be had It's the aggregation of small, marginal gains every year that you should expect from us and
that will transiate into long term shareholder value

We've done some good work over the last 12 months and we know where we need to improve If's the start of a
brand new regulatory penod and we feel we're bullding from a good place

Liv Garfield, Chief Executive

WATCH NOW
Watch a wideoc of Liv on our new online Annual Report and Accounts

www.severntrent.com/AR2015

Strategic report
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Our strategic framework

Qur purpose To serve our communities and build a lasting water legacy.

Our vision By 2020 to be the most trusted water company

Cur strategy Severn Trent are transforming service today, driving growth, and shaping our industry for
tomorrow — for the mutual benefit of our customers, communities and investors.

How we do 1t Embed customers at the heart of all we Drive operational excellence
do and continuous innovation
What we mean by this What we mean by this
We'll improve the way in which customers We'll build a smart water and waste water
engage with us through improved insight network, develop our business intelligence
and understanding of what's important to and simpiify our cross business processes
them

Our market Wholesale operations and engineering Household customer services

segments What we mean by this What we mean by this
Regulated water and waste water Customer services for household customers
infrastructure and non infrastructure assets | in the UK

Our values We put our customers first We are passionate about what we do
What we mean by this What we mean by this
We're here for our customers 24/7 We want | We're passionate about the work we do and
to create a relatonship based on empathy our experiise We go the extra mile for
and respect customers and team mates

delivering an outstanding customer experience, the best value service and environmental leadership

Invest responsibly

for sustainable growth
What we mean by this

Change the market
for the hetter

What we mean by this

Create an awesome place to work
What we mean by this

We'll create a culture of
empowerment and accountabilty

We'll develop an effective strategy
which optimises our regulated asset
base, whilst creating new growth
opportunities for the future

We'll embrace market opening Iin
the UK and explore opportunities for
growth in new water markets
worldwide

with a focus on skills, talent and
career development

Business retaii and

operating services

What we mean by this
Customer and operating services
for our business customers in the
UK and overseas

Green energy

What we mean by this
Renewable energy generation
including gas to grid, food waste
biodigestion, wind and solar power

New water markets

What we mean by this
Opporturuties in sludge trading,
water trading and upstream
competition

Wo act with integrity

What we mean by this

We strive to do the nght thing by
being transparent and honest in all
that we do We want to create a
better future for all

We protect our environment

What we mean by this
We're committed to a cleaner,
greener future, protecting and
Iraproving our environment for
generations to come

We are inspired to create an
awesome company

What we mean by this

We'll all work together to be creative
and to make special things happen

Further details are provided on page 14
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Qur performance
2014/15 performance measurement — 2014/15 Key performance indicators

1. Embed customers at the heart of all we do

Basis Key performance indicators 2014/15 201314 2012113
MAT DWI roportable events (category 3, 4, 5) KPl 3 ky | 24 23
MAT Service Incentlve Mechanism Qualitative (SIM} score ' KPl 4 436 448 4 36
ACT Service Incentive Mechanism Quantitabive (SIM) score? KPI 5 105 143 167
MAT Water supply interruptions index per property mins 3 KPl 6 10 16 29

Sewerage serviceability (internal) * KPI 7 54 57 78

Water serviceabibity (internal)* KPI 8 270 202 80
ACT Secunty af Supply Index (SOSI)* KPI 14 100 a9 99

2. Drive operational excellence and continuous innovation

Basis Key parformance indicators 201415 201314 2012113
MAT Poilution incidents (sewerage cat 1, 2,3)" 7 KPl 12 368 449 376
ACT Sewerage treatment works ~ faling consent, imis %? KP1 13 0.14 o7 085
MAT Net energy use Gwh % KP1 15 634 691 690
MLE Leakage levels ML/d KPI 16 441 441 441
MAT Wasts water treatment performance Severn Trent Services %" STSKPI 1 74 56 168

3. Invest responsibly for sustainable growth

Basls Key performance indicators 201415 201314 201213
ACT Capex £m (UK GAAP, net of grants and contnbutions) ™ KPI 9 5427 5832 5418
ACT Debtor days "' KPI 10 #7 345 367
ACT Opex £m KPI 11 588 8 5853 566 5

4. Create an awesome place to work

Basis Key parformance indicators 2014115 201314 201213

MAT Lost ime cidents per 100,000 hrs worked * KP) 1 021 oM o021
Lost ime moidents per 100,000 hrs worked

MAT Severn Trent Business Services STSKP| 2 030 0.27 030

QR Employes engagement % KPI 2 79 81 79

QR Employee engagement % ** STSKPI 3 75 79 77

Kay

Executive director balanced scorecard performance measure ses Remuneration Committee report on pages 69 to 85
Black Regulated business KPI
Purple  Non-regulated business KP1

Deslred directon of KPI

Strategic report 10




SEVERN TRENT PLC _AR15

MAT Moving Annual Total

QR Quarterly Review

MLE Maximum Lkelhood Eshmate
ACT  Year End Actual

Notes

1

10
1
12
13
14

In 2014/15 Ofwat changed the methodology for this measure It is not comparable with 2013/14 and 2012/13 On a comparative basis we
moved from 13th in 2013/14 to 6th in 2014/15 out of 18 water companies

Actual performance based wholly or partially on mtemal data
Number of minutes lost due to supply interruptions for three hours or longer per property served

Ofwat serviceabilty score assesses how effectively we are mamntaiming our network and assets against a range of measures Assessed
as either improving, stable, marginal or deteriorating

Score represents Intemal KP1 The measure is out of 100
Total number of pollution Incldents {categary 1, 2, 3}

2012/13 figures are not comparable [n 2013 the Environment Agency changed its reporting methodology for small incidents As a resuit
of this reclassification we now report more smaller incidents

Measured on a calendar year basis

Non-compliance with consent permits or formal client requirements during the previous 12 months
Investment excluding PDa$S and IFRS adjustments

Actual performance based on audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015
Actual perfermance across all employees and agency staff

Performance based on annual survey of all employees

Performance based on annual survey of all employees, including the Water Purification Business

KPI 3 Drinking Water Inspectorate — Reportable Events This KP| measures the number of significant events reported to the DW!
KPl 7 Serviceability waste water This KP| Is an Index based on pollutions and blockages (both measures of how our below ground assets

are performing) and sewage treatment works non-compliance (above ground) The index reflects a 50 50 welghting for above and
below ground assats

KPl 8 Serviceability water This Index Is based on mains bursts and supply interruptions greater than 12 hours {both are measures of how

our below ground assets are performing) and Water Treatment Works {(WTW) non-compliance (above ground) The index reflects a
50 50 weighting for above and below ground assets

KPI 14 Secunty of Supply Index (SOSI) 1s a measure of how resilient we are against penods of drought The index calculation 1s based

upon the difference between the water avallable to use and the volume of water we expect to put Into our supply network 1n order to
meet demand

Strategic report 1




SEVERN TRENT PLC _AR15

Future performance measurement — Our Qutcome Delivery Incentives (ODls)

1. Embed customers at the heart of all we do*

Internal sewer flooding
Penalty/Reward

1,014
Rate of Penalty/Reward (per incident)
£42,000

Minutes without supply
Penalty

14.5

Reward

12

Rate of Penaity/Reward (per minute)
£1.1 million

SIM - Customer experience
Reward and penalty mechanism to be decided by OFWAT July 2016

External sewer flooding
Penalty

7,639

Reward

7,452

Rate of Penalty/Reward (per incident)
£19,800

Complaints about water quality
Penaity

11,900

Reward

9,992

Rate of Penalty/Reward (per complaint)
£000

2. Drive operational excellence and continuous innovation*

Improvements to river water quality3
Penalty/Reward

233
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Rate of Penalty/Reward {per point)
£150,000

Successful catchment management schemes
Penalty/Reward

12

Cap

21

Rate of Penalty/Reward (per scheme)
£1 03 million

Asset Stewardship — Coliform failures
Penalty/Reward

7

Rate of Penalty/Reward (per fallure)
£463,000

Number of polliution incidents
Penalty

457

Reward

374

Rate of Penalty/Reward {per incident)
£53,900

Leakage

Penalty/Reward

444

Rate of Penalty/Reward (per megalitres per day)
£123,314

3. Invest responsibly for sustainable growth
Severn Trent Water Severn Trent Business Services

See note 1 See note 1
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4, Create an awesome place to work

Lost time incidents per 100,000 hrs worked
Severn Trent Water

021 Seenote2

2013/14 0 21

Severn Trent Business Services

030 Seenote2

2013/14 0 30

Employee engagement

Severn Trent Water

79 See note 2

201314 79

Severn Trent Business Services

75 See note 2

20131475

Notes

1 Hlustrative positioning only tntemal KPIs for 2015/16 to be reported

2 2014/15 figures for lllustrative purposes.

3 Consoldation of two ODIs relating to river water quality

4 The thresholds stated refer to the apphcatlon of rewards and/or penalties
For full list of all ODis and the details of each see www.severntrent.com
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CASE STUDY

Producing local gas from local wastel

By investing In an innovative process at our Minworth sewage treatment works, we're unlocking even more of the
hidden power 1n sewage

Minworth treats sewage from 2 5 midlion people around Birmingham ~ that's nearly 350,000 Itres every hour
Valuable energy Is locked away in this sewage We release il by feeding the sludge from our treatment process
mnto our anaerobic digesters These work ke grant cow's Intestines, generating gas as they break the sludge
down

So far, we've used around 40% of this gas to produce electricity Now we can also clean, pressunse and odorise
the gas, before we ‘inject’ it into the network that supplies local homes We're the first UK water company to da
this on such a large scale, saving us £1.7 million every year while benefiting both customers and the environment
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Market and industry overview

The water and sewerage industry
The industry in England and Wales delivers services to homes and businesses of over 50 million people

There are 19 regional supplers, who serve the majonty of these customers 10 of the regional companies —~
including Severn Trent Water — provide water and sewerage services. The ather nine provide water services only

The UK water industry was privatised in 1988 and has made significant progress since, aftracting more than |
£4 bilton of private investment every year to improve operational performance and make customer service

improvements As a result, drninking water quality in the UK 1s among the highest in the world The industry also

makes a substantial contnbution to the economy, estimated at £15 billion 2 year for the UK as a whole, and

directly or indirectly supports the equivalent of 127,000 full-time jobs.

“We expect the industry landscape to continue o evolve in the coming years.”

Despite the sector's progress since privatisation, it still faces substantial challenges that must be tackled in the

coming years These must be met whilst still keeping bills affordable for customers, both now and in the future

In particular:

e Much of the sector's infrasiructure 15 ageing For example, approxmnately 20% of Severn Trent's sewers and
10% of our water mains are more than 100 years old, which means we need to continue to reinvest in the
renewal of our networks

e We can expect to see more extrame weather This means we need to build resilience, $0 weé can cope with
Increased flooding and periods of droughts

«» The UK's population 1s growing, which 1s adding to the pressure on water resources and our networks Severn
Trent serves 3 1 miliion households, a total that's increasing by about 12,500 households each year That's
the equivalent of adding a city the size of Wolverhampton every seven years, in our region alone We need to
make sure we have the infrastructure in place o serve these people

« Customers quite nghtly expect better levels of service, making it ever more challenging for all organisations to
meet their customers’ expectations Water companies know they've got to work harder at improving customer
service

e Our industry has to compete for global capital to invest for the future The sector must remain an attractive
mvestment opportunity Otherwise the only way we'll be able to attract investment 1s by having to pay more for
it, which will push up custormers’ bills

Sevemn Trent has always contnbuted to the debate about our industry’s future, ncluding through our series of

Changing Course publications We'l continue to be an active participant in these conversations, so we can help

shape thinking about how to best serve our customers in the future

1 Much of the sector's nfrastructure 15 ageing We need to continue to reinvest in the renewal of our Infrastructure and networks for future
generations

2 The AMPE business plans are designed to deliver what customers say they value the mast We conducted our biggest ever customer
consultation for PR14,

How the industry is regulated
Severn Trent Water 1s a requlated business We work within five year regulatory planning cycles, known as Asset
Management Plan (AMP) periods This financral year was the last in AMP5, with AMPS starting on 1 Apnil 2015

The industry operates within the following policy and regulatory framework
« The European Union (EU) sets water, waste water and environmental siandards across member countries
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* Govemment sets the overall water and sewerage policy framework This is done by the Department for
Environment, Food and Rurat Affairs (Defra) in England, and by the Welsh Government in Wales

+ Ofwat is our economic regulator, which means that it sets the prices we can charge our customers in each
AMP period, and ensures that we carry out our functions properly and are appropriately financed

* The Dnnking Water inspectorate {DW1} 1s the drinking water qualty regutator and makes sure we comply with
the water quality regulations

+ The Environment Agency (EA) 1s the environmental regulator in England It controls water abstraction, river
pellution and flooding

» Natural Resources Wales i1s the environmental regulator in Wales It ensures that the country’s natural
resources are sustainably maintained, enhanced and used

We also work with other agencies, mncluding
+ The Consumer Council for Water (CCW), which represents the industry’'s customers, and
« Natural England, which protects and improves England’s natural environment.

The regulatory regime for AMP6
During the yaar, Ofwat concluded its price review for AMPS, which runs from 2015 to 2020 Most of the
companies have agreed busmess plans with Ofwat, setting out what they commit to deliver dunng the pertod and
the bills that customers will pay
The AMPE business plans are designed {o deliver what customers say they value most, in terms of the service
they receive and the benefits to the environment and soctety Across the industry, water companies engaged with
more than 250,000 customers — the largest ever consultation in the utdities sector — to get a clear understanding
of what they were willing to pay for. |
Key features of the regulatory regime for AMP6 include ‘
e Greater flexibility to spend money where it's most needed. In previous AMPs, spending was regulated !
between capital expenditure (Capex) to meet long term investment needs, and operating expenditure (Opex) |
to meet day-to-day running costs The ability to earn a return on Capex arguably incentivised companias to ‘
seck Capex type solutions to issues, even if Opex might be more efficient 1n AMP& Ofwat has considered
expenditure on a total expenditure {Totex) basis, so we can choose the most cost-effective and mnnovative \
solutions to meet cur commitments
* Aligning the Interests of customers and investors. In AMP6, company performance Is measured against
metrics called Quicome Delivery Incentives (ODls) While failure to achieve targets can lead to penaities, as
In previous AMPs, many of these ODIs also include incentives for companies to outperfarm As the ODls are
based on what 1s important to customers, outperformance means that both customers and companies benefit
Companies can also do better if they deliver their investment programme for less than therr ptan, shanng the
savings wmith customers
s A better environment. Several ODIs are designed to deliver important environmental improvements, such as
better nver quality, which focuses companies on achieving their environmental commitments over the next
five years
» Reduced bills for customers Customers must be willing and able to pay for the costs of the programmes
we'll deliver dunng AMPS  They'll benefit from rising standards and an average reduction in bills of 5% across
the industry, over the five years Companies will alst be doing more to help people who struggle to pay ther
bills, for example by enhancing the sccial tanffs they offer
To ensure we meet our commitments during AMPS, we've set out our strategy which 1s detailed on pages 8 to 9
Our ODIs, against which our performance will be measured, are explained on page 11 The regulated |
performance review on pages 20 to 29 talks about some of the specific initatives we'll be undertaking as part of
our plan
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“This will give business customers increased cholce and encourage companies to provide a better
service to them.”

An evolving industry

We expect the industry landscape to continue to evolve in the coming years In addition to the opening up of non-
household retall competiion, as discussed under ‘The non-regulated market’, there's scope for more competition

in the wholesale business For example, we believe customers would benefit from a greater role for water trading,
which would allow companies with surplus water to sell it to those with resource constraints, saving the significant
capital investment required for capital solutions such as desalination piants.

The regulatory regime also makes consolidation fess difficult than befare This could encourage companies to
take innovative approaches io consolidation, for example by merging therr wholesale operations to deliver
efficiencies, while demerging their retall businesses

The non-regulated market

Our non-regulated markets provide additional opportumities for growth in the next few years We are already active
in the UK operating services market providing waste water and water treatment for chents We also have a small
presence in the Scottish water retall market Competiion for non-household retail In England will epen up in April
2017 and we are prepanng for this. This will give business customers increased choice and encourage companies
to provide a better service to them We are posihoning our business 1o succeed in this market and working with
the rest of the industry to support OpenWater OpenWater i1s the body charged by the government with developing
the market rules, framework and systems that will be needed for effective non-household retail competition

In the US operating services market, the large majonity of customers are municipalities which are looking to
outsource the management of therr treatment facilities to compantes such as Severn Trent There are signs that
the market could create new opportunties, as municipahtes turn to the private sector for expertise and funding in
response to increasing demands from customers and regulators We are icoking at how we can take part in this

market, as it develops

The renewable energy market also has growth potential for us We see scope to increase our electricity
generation from sources such as food waste digestion and solar, allowing us to sell any electricity not used by our
regulated business to National Gnd Similarly, we can sell surplus gas generated by our waste treatment works to

the grid
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Working in partnership to protect our watercourses.

Our customers' top priority 1s having a reliable supply of high quality water. To achieve that at an affordable price,
we have to protect our watercourses from palluticn

The traditional way to tackle raw water pollution is to invest in new treatment processes, which 1s often expensive
However, by working in partnership with landowners and users, we're stopping pollution at source at a fraction of
the cost

For example, since September 2013 we've been working with farmers in two catchment areas, to reduce therr use
of pesticides containing metaldehyde

Treatment of this chemical with conventional methods 1s difficult We've therefore engaged with farmers and
encouraged them to work together with us. By incentivising them to use alternative treatments and rewarding
them for reducing pollution, we've cut metaldehyde levels in the two areas by up to 90% We're now looking to
expand this approach during AMPS, with the aim of having 12 successiful catchment management schemes
by 2020
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Regulated

Our business model

— The role of Severn Trent Water Limlited
Severn Trent Water Limited 1s a regulated business We work within five year planning cycles, with customer
prices set by cur economic regulator, Ofwat This allows us to fund our investment programme and cover an
efficient level of operating costs

We are also subject to regulation by two quality regulators — the Drinking Water Inspectorate and the Environment

Agency.

Qur prices and asset base are adjusted by RPI infiation each year. In certain circumstances we can ask for prices
to be reviewed within the five year penod due to costs associated with ‘'notified tems’ or ‘relevant changes of

circumstance’ Customer bad debt and the adoption of private drains and sewers (PDaS) are included in these
categories for the current five year pernod Severn Trent has absorbed the costs associated with PDaS and has
not sought to review prices for this reason dunng 2010-2015

The company eams a return on its asset base We can generate additonal returns if we outperform Ofwat's
assumptions by becoming more efficient in the delivery of our capital programme, managing our operational costs
more effectively, and by financing our business at a lower cost

Our operating performance is assessed and benchmarked against the sector by Cfwat Over the period 2015 —

2020 there will be scope to earn additional income, or incur penalties, based on our performance {as discussed on

page 11)
Life cycle of water
1. Water Is 2 Water is 3 Clean water 4, Customers enjoy | 5 Waste water 6 Waste water s
collacted cleaned is distnbuted our services is collected treated and
returned to the
environment
Regulatory
framework
¢ Ofwat s Diwat «  Ofwat o  Ofwat s Ofwat «  Ofwat
. Natural «  Dnnking Water ¢ DrinkingWater | « Consumaer . Enwironmant . Natural
England Inspectorate Inspectorate Council for Agency England
¢  Natural «  Health and +  Health and Water . Health and «  Matural
Resources Safety Safety «  Drinking Water Safety Resources
Wales Executive Executive Inspectorate Executive Wales
+ Environment s  Environment
Agency Agency
. Health and . Heaith and
Safety Safety
Exacutive Executive
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Risks
Faliure of key assets | Fallure of key assets | The performance of | Fallura to improve Failure to deal wath We may suffer
may result Of processes may our distnbuton our customer service | cusiomer waste operational failure in
In damage to result in a decline in network may fall and meet customer effectively may lead our waste water
praperty, Injury to water quality, below the standards | expectatons to sewer flooding operations which
people andfor disruption in cur expected by DWlor | Prnapal Risk Ref 1* | Principat Risk results in damage to
disruption to our supply to customers | Ofwat, resulting in Ref 7 the local
abllity to supply our or failure fo meet poar service to our enwronment
customers regulatory targets customers and Principal Risk
Principal Rusk Principal Risk increased leakage Ref 7%
Ref 6** and 7*** Ref 6*** and 7*** fram our network
Prnaipal Risk
Ref 7+**

Hazardous Faillure of one of our | We may be unable Hazardous

processes key assets could o respond processes may

or chemicals may resuit in disruption to | effectively fo the result

rasult supply to customers | opening up of in people being

In people baing Principal Risk the business reta injurad

injured Ref 7 market to Principal Risk

Principal Risk compalition Ref 74+~

Ref 6*** Princlpaf Risk Ref 2*

Invastment and mawntenance

Networks invested and maintained

Our capital programme this year was £547 million, or around £165 per connected property, reflecting a decreased investment year on year
{2013-2014 £602 milkon) in our water and sewerags networks This included finding and fixng more leaks and reducing the number of supply
interruptions, improvements to our water and sewage treatment plants and upgrades to our sewer network to reduce nadents of sewer
fiooding We fund this nvestment programme from the profits we generate, and also by borrowing money from the capital markets Capltal
mvestment 1s added on to our asset base, called the Regulated Capital Value (RCV) Our asset base also nses in line with Inflation each year
The returns that we generate for shareholders on that asset base are set by our scenomic regulatar, Ofwat, over five year planning cycles We
can Increase these retums by outperformance in future years through Outcome Delivery Incentives (ODls)

Regulatory framework

Risks

s Ofwat

s  Health and Safety Executive

Environment Agency

«  Drinking Water Inspectorate

We operate within a complex legal and regulatory environment as a
water and sewerage service provider in England and Wales

As a result we face a number of risks including those associated with
possible non-compllance with our legal and regulatory framework,
and enforcement by our regulators (e g DWI, EA and Ofwat) and
fallure to meet the tenms of our regulatory contract as set out in our
agreed buslness plan for 2015-2020 We also face noks associated
with possible future changes in legislation which may result In our
business plans becoming unsustainable or uneconomic

Principal Risk Ref 3, 4 and 6 *****

*  Pnnapal Risk Ref 1 and 2 on page 40

**  Pnncipal Risk Ref 3, 4, and 5 on page 41

**  Pnneipal Rigk Ref 8, 7 and 8 on page 42
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Regulated business performance review

1. We have achieved an underlying improvement in interruptions to supply, reducing the average number
of minutes that customers are without supply from 16 minutes to 9 minutes 54 seconds.

2. We answer at least 80% of calls within 20 seconds.

Our goal 1s to provide a reliable service that our customers, communities and investors can trust This will enable
us to generate [ong term sustanable growth, by defivering an outstanding customer experience, the best value
service and environmental leadership

In this section, we explain how our regulated business performed dunng the last 12 months, as well as the actions
we're taking to position us for success over the next regulatory cycle

Embedding customers at the heart of what we do

In recent years, we've worked hard to improve our service These efforts are reflected in nsing customer
satisfachon scores However, we recognise that we've got a lot further to go and we intend to make significant
progress during AMP&

For many people, being able to afford our services 1s key Household budgets remain under pressure We're
therefore pleased to have had the lowest average combined water and sewerage bills in Britain for the last six
years Our average bill in 2014/15 was £333, which is lower in real terms than at the start of AMPS

We're confident that we’ll continue to have the lowest bills for the next five years, with customers seeing further
reductions in real terms At the same ime, we're introducing an enhanced special tariff, which will offer customers
discounts of up to 90%, depending on their circumstances We'll continue our other support for our customers,
such as our WaterSure tariff for those In financial need, which caps bills for people who use a lot of water because
they are ill or have a large family We'll also be introducing water health checks, to promote the support available
and make sure customers are on the nght tanff Every year this will mean that help 1s available to around 50,000
customers who are strugghing financially Our partnership with Coventry Citizens' Advice Bureau 1s an important
part of our approach

Keeping bills affordable also means ensuning that everyone who can pay does, so they don't increase the burden
on others This year, we've improved bad debt levels to around 2 0% Thts continues to be one of the best
performances in the industry We’ve made more effective use of our contact centres, making more calls to
customers to engage with them and help them to manage therr habilities

Ofwat's Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM) 1s an important indicator of how good our customer senvice 15 The
SIM score has two elements — quahtative and quantitative Dunng the year, we improved both parts of our score

The qualitative element captures our customers' views of our service This year, our qualitative score, as an
average over the whole year, was 4 36 This 1s based on Ofwat's new methodology for 2014/15 and ranks us sixth
among the 18 companies in our sector, up from thirteenth last year In the final wave of results we came third - a
great foundation for continued improvement through AMP6 Over the last 12 months, we've introduced around 35

initiatives to deliver a hetter customer experience,

“Providing the service our customers want means we need the right resource, so we've added
approximately 100 front-line roles.”

The quantitative metric reflects the number of customers who have had to contact us Our performance here
wnproved by 26 6%

We also capture customer satisfaction data by directly surveying thousands of customers each month to get

feedback after contact. To broaden our understanding of our performance, we've expanded these surveys to
cover our customer operations contact centre, as well as the billing contact centre and we’ve seen our scores

steadily increase
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Consistent with nsing customer sabsfaction, we've seen a 20% reduction in complaints this year An important
contributor was the new resoclutions team, which looks at the underlying causes of complaints and ensures we fix
them
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Providing the best possible service to our customers means we need the nght level of resource, so we've added
approximately 100 fronthne roles We've created a customer strategy and experience department, bringing
together the tramning, quality and complaint handling functions from across our contact centres This gives us a
more consistent approach to best practice In addition, we've reviewed the role of our frontine managers, to help

them to coach and develop our agents

Another important focus this year has been reducing the work in progress The changes we've made are helping
us to meel the industry standard of answering at least 80% of calls wathin 20 seconds, which we didn't always
manage In the first part of the year We're also responding to customer emails more quickly, cuting the time 1t
takes us to answer from five days to less than 12 hours

Improving customer service means offering more ways to interact with us, so customers can choose the channel
that suits them best We want to be a ‘digitally savvy’ organisation, so we've invested heavily in our capabilities
this year This includes enhancing our web and mobile offerings, making them easier and more attractive to use
As part of this, we've been trialling web chat, which we plan tc expand during the coming year

Gaing forward, we'll help our customers to adopt new channels, by using analytics to gamn insight into why they
contact us and how we can encourage them te self-serve As part of our digital strategy, we've also been
imvesting in understanding the key points when our customers contact us By analysing how best we can engage
with them at each point, we’ll know how to deliver the brilliant service they expect.

Enhancing intelligent use of customer data and the way we use it will be an important part of our approach during
AMPSE We're investing in a hew customer relakonship management system, which will draw together customer
information from across our systems This will help our agents to resolve more queries first ime [ncreasing our
knowledge of each customer will also help us to predict thesr hkely needs, so we can offer them a more relevant

and personalised service

Developing customers’ trust aiso means engaging with our communities and being increasingly open and
transparent to deal with We're also using channels such as social media to keep customers better informed about
1ssues that may affect ther service, so they know when they are likely to be resolved and any action they need to
take We are dehighted that we are already ranked in the top ten m the empathy index for UK companies using

Twatter

Driving operational excellence and continuous improvement

Qur overall operaticnal performance continued to improve dunng the year We've developed a culture of
delivering against performance metrics and have achieved a stable or improved performance in 12 of Ofwat's
14 non financial KPfs durning the last year

The quality of our drinking water i1s high but our performance ts not as consistent as we would like. In 2014, our
overall complance with the DWI's quality standards was 99 96% However, we had 41 significant events,
according to categornsations by the DWI, aganst a target of 15, while the serviceability of our water non
infrastructure assets (above ground assets such as water producticn works) 1s rated as deteriorating. To improve
perfoomance, we've undertaken a significant amount of work at our water treatment works and boreholes,
inspectmg the sites and increasing our maintenance and capital replacement We also increased our programme
of water pipe cleaning, from around 4,000 km n a typical year to around 1,500 km last year

In relation to leakage we have achieved our regulatory commitment for the fourth year running Performance this
year benefited from the continuation of our mains replacement programme and our new way of working, which we
call Valuing Every Drop. This came from our Safer Better Faster approach to continuous improvement, which we
use to diagnose i1ssues, redesign our processes, train our people and equip them differently

Valuing Every Drop has significantly reduced our time to process and react to leaks. By the end of the year, we
were fixing 38% of all leaks within 24 hours, up from around 25% earlier in the year

Strateglc report 24




SEVERN TRENT PLC _AR15

We have also achieved an underlying improvement m interruptions to supply, reducing the average number of
minutes thal customers are without supply from 16 minutes 1o around 10 minutes However, a single very large
mains burst, which affected 2,111 properties early in the year, meant that the number of properties with a supply
interruption longer than 12 hours was 3,365, compared with 2,699 in 2013/14 We've continued to work to reduce
the impact of interruptions, for example by faster despatch of emergency tankers

CASE STUDY

Securing Birmingham’s water supply for the next 100 years.

The Elan Valley Aqueduct has brought water to Birmingham for more than a century. Now we need to modemise
and refurbish it, so it can serve our customers for at least the next 100 years

The aqueduct carnes water 74 miles from Wales It's an amazing piece of Victornian engineenng but it wasn't
designed with long term maintenance in mind

As it's Birmingham’s main water supply, we can only turn it off for short periods, giving us a maximum of three
days at a tme to work on it

To give the aqueduct the attention it needs, we'll have to provide a second major source of water for Birmingham
That means invasting around £340 millien in AMP6, so we can take water from the River Savern during its peak
flow in the winter months and pump it 26km 1o our treatment works at Frankley This complex project Is our
biggest ever 1t will allow us to rebuild entire sections of the aqueduct, giving it another century of Iife and a secure
water supply for the pecple of Birmingham

Although very rare, internal sewer flooding 1s one of the worst things that can happen to our customers, so we
were pleased to have further reduced the number of customers who suffered repeated flooding In 2014/15 there
were 198 incidents, down from 204 1n 2013/14 We've continued to invest in capital solutions, enabiing us to
protect 192 properties from the nsk of repsated flooding this year and a total of 746 over AMP5

As our overall waste water infrastructure (below ground assets) serviceability assessment by Ofwat remains
marginal, we've continued to focus on the areas that affect this We reduced the numbker of sewer blockages by
8 4%, through tnitiatives such as First Time Resolution Rather than simply unblocking the sewer, we provide a
more holistic customer service by sending a sophusticated vehicle, capable of diagnosing and remowving the
problem, surveying the sewer and carrying out minor repairs We've also trialied different ways of engaging with
customers, to raise awareness of the problems caused by putting the wrong things down the sewer

Pollution incidents happen when there are unplanned discharges of water or sewage into the environment. in
2014 the Environment Agency assessed our overall environmental performance as 4*, the highest score possible
We aim to mamtain this strong performance by further reducing pollution incidents ‘

We had a record-breaking year for compliance at our waste water treatment works, directly contnibuting to the |
health of our nvers Only one of our 704 consented sites failed to reach its compliance limits, giving us 99 9%
compliance, up from 99 28% in 2013/14 We've continued to invest to maintain this strong performance

Our pollution performance also benefited from our Safer Better Faster approach Dunng the year, we ran a series
of 12 week improvement interventions  This included developing and launching an e-learming package for
everyone working on our sewerage nfrastructure, including our subcontractors This educates them on how to
spot problems, react quickly and better resolve customer issues.
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Helping our engineers to work smarter

We're equipping all our engineers with robust and waterproof smartphones The devices nclude satellite
navigation, connectivity through video calling and instant messaging, and administrative functions such as
timesheets and expenses Our engineers will soon be able to access job and customer histories, so they can
serve our customers better and complete more jobs first tme By working smarter, we'll enable our managers to
spend more time in ihe field, while motivating and empowering our workforce,

Adapting how we work

Duning the year, we took an important step in preparing for AMP6, by bringing together our water and waste water
wholesate operations Combining them enables us to take advantage of cross skiliing between water and wasts,
to reduce our support and management costs, and to put more emphasis on network control and asset
management This helps us to better understand risks, target our investment more effectively and drive improved
performance for customers Being efficient also requires us to adapt the way we work For example, we're
standardising our operating processes, while ensuring that we can adapt them guickly in response to new ideas

Technology has an important role as we look to impreve our performance durning AMPS We've started to rollout
the next generation of handheld smart devices o our work crews, to give them better information about the sites
they're visiting and the assets they'li be working on, so they can resolve problems more effectively They can also
update the data on our system, to ensure it's as accurate as possible

“Renewable energy which 1s self generated allows us to keep costs down and bills low for customers ”

We're also developing apps to enhance what we call the ‘colleague joumey’ This helps us to provide the
information our people need at each stage of responding to and completing a job They'll be able o complete jobs
faster and first tme, improving life for our customers As part of this, we're asking our people to tell us what apps
they want, so they can do therr jobs better

A new system we've introduced this year allows our customers to give us iImmediate feedback on our work crew's
quality of service and workmanship This allows us to talk in real time to work crews about where they're doing
well and how they can improve, so we can shorten improvement timescales and share best practice more quickly.

We're continuing to invest in our telemetry system, so we can get more information on the performance of our
pipes and treatment sites By developing our analytics capability and combining thus data with other information,
such as weather patterns, we'll be able to be more predictive about future performance, so we can tackle
problems before they affect our customers

Innovation has always been important for us We've brought together our water and waste research and
development (R&D) teams, to give us an integrated programmae that supports our Wholesale Operations business
more efficiently We're now reviewing our R&D plans and making sure we only focus on projects that contribute to
our customer commitments either in the AMPE plan or in the future

Investing responsibly for sustainable growth

In 2014/15, we successfully completed our AMPS investment programme  Investment of £547 4 milien durning the
year brought the total for the last five years to £2 6 bilion Our 2014/15 programme included

« nvestment in mains replacement,
* improving the resilience of our water treatment works, including our largest at Frankley, in Birmingham,

» further improvements at our waste water treatment works, to ensure we continue to comply with regulatory
requirements,

* expenditure on sewer replacement and sewer flooding schemes, and
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« continuing to grow our renewable energy assets within our regulated business, by installing mare combined
heat and power piants

This year's expenditure also included £60 million of investment we brought forward from AMP6 We used this to
improve our sewer flooding performance and to invest in mains resilience [t also enabled us to accelerate some
of our planned water quality schemes for AMP6 by 18 months, by carrying out feasbility studies and design work
ahead of schedule

Our invastment programme for the next five years will total £3.3 bilion (based on 2012/13 prices) and will deliver
further benefits for customers, in terms of service quality and value for money, as well as improving the
environment. We'll spread this investment across our asset base, to improve ifs serviceability, reliability and
resilience

The largest single scheme in our plan, and the largest by any company during AMPS, is the first phase of the
Birmingham Resiiience Scheme A major source of Birmingham's water 1s the Elan Valley aqueduct, which i1s
more than 100 years old. Over the next five years, we'll be constructing a scheme to allow us to abstract water
from the River Severn and treal it at Frankley, providing a new supply for Brmingham

AMPEG sees Ofwat’'s KPls replaced by ODIs, which allow companies to earn more for outperformance or suffar
penalties fer underperformance The ODIs reflect our customers’ prionities and our focus on thern will ensure we
deliver better valus, better services and a healthier environment over the next five years Given our track record of
delivering aganst performance metncs we are confident that we're well placed to perform well against the ODls
and to succeed in AMP6

Our AMPG plan requires us to achieve £372 millien of efficiencies (at 2012/13 prices), which 1s a significant
chatlenge Excellent procurement will be an important component of these savings and we've developed joint
efficiency plans with our One Supply Chain partners This will help us to deliver cur capital programme more
effectively, by standardising the products we buy and by planning more carefully with our suppliers, so we spend
less time on-site and work more efficiently while we’re there We're also looking at our second level supplhers, so
we can understand them better and work more directly with them, where it adds value

Before we commit to capital expenditure, we're iInvestigating whether we could solve the problem by operating our
existing assets better or differently We need to become ever more efficient and only build the assets we need to
solve the problems we're facing, and get the best value At the same tme, we're developing methods to help us
understand whether Capex or Opex will enable us to deliver the best outcome — an essential component of the
new Totex regime in AMP6

In AMPE, we'll invest in the next stage of enhancing our treatment works This ncludes £234 million to help us
meet the requirements of the Water Framework Directive; in what we believe 1s the most ambitious programme in
the sector, we’ll be looking to make the biggest impact on as many watercourses as possible

Our catchment management approach allows us to work in partnership with our stakeholders to protect our raw
water sources from pollution For example, we've encouraged farmers to produce ‘clean run-off' from ther land,
as well as removing metaldehyde from one of our catchments This approach is both better for the environment
and for our customers, as 1t reduces our need to spend money to clean affected water We've also agreed to host
two partnershups, covering the Tame, Anker and Mease nivers and the Lower Trent and Erewash catchments
Working as a parinership with other industries, regulators and NGOs allows us to have a more positive impact
than when we work on our own

Treating water and sewage 15 energy intensive The majority of our carbon emissions come from pumping water
around our network and treating sewage at our works This year we reduced our emissions by 4% to 491
kiotonnes of CO;e We also met our 2009 commitment to have no net increase in emissions, with an overall 12%
reduction over the penod since this commitment More information on our greenhouse gas impact can be found in
the Directors’' report on pages 87 and 88
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Renewable energy i1s an important part of our approach and a number of our processes use by-products or
essential features of our water or sewage treatment In 2014-2015, renewable energy provided 28% of our
regulated business’s energy needs We intend to increase this further over the next few ysars. More on our
renewable energy intiatives can be found in the non-regulated performance review on page 35

QOur long term impact on the environment also depends on our customers. With this in mind, we put cons:derable
effort into educating cur current and future cusiomers, so people understand how to use water efficiently and what
can be safely disposed of in our sewers As part of this, we run a schools education programme, which teaches
children each year about the value of water We've also contihued our volunteering programme This engages our
local communities in what we do, whilst improving our people’s skills and building working relationships

The suppliers we work with also have an important part to play i our sustainabiiify efforts While we've always
taken care to select supplers with, for example, strong health and safety records, we haven't specificaily focused
on other aspects of their sustainability peformance To address this, we have a new programme to review our
suppliers’ sustainability credentials, so that we understand therr performance in key areas such as the
envircnment and human nghts

Creating a great place to work

To achieve our chjectives, we need Severn Trent to be a great place to work, and for our people to be flexible,
to embrace new ways of working and skills and to focus on our customers’ needs

This was a year of considerable change, as we positioned the business to succeed during AMPE We put our
water and wasle water cperations nto one wholesale and engineering function We also created a Chief
Customer Officer role to bnng our customer and digital ambutions together A key part of these changes was to
reduce the number of layers in our orgamsation from nine to five This gives our people more control over ther
roles and empowers tham to do more Empowerment and trust will be important themes for us going forward and
we have teams looking at how we can further embed them into our culture

The organisational change also reduced the number of roles in our business by approxmimately 500 We consulted
widely with employees during the process and ran a comprehensive outplacement programme, to support those
of our people whose roles were removed

Despite the amount of change, we ran our annual employee engagement survey during this pernod and achieved
our highest ever completion rate of 85% The survey showed that our people remain highly comrmtted, with our
engagement index coming out at 78%, compared with 81% last year This 1s a very creditable performance in the
crrcumstances We are determined to improve our scores next year

Highhghts from the survey included our employees’ strong loyalty to Severn Trent, how much they enjoy therr
work and therr willingness to go the extra mile for customers However, our people would like more opportunities
to share their views before we make changes that affect therr jobs and they want more inspirational leadership
from our senior team

Cur engagement survey highlights the importance of our senior team being visible and accessible across the
business, so we are complementing what already happens with leadership led sessions called ‘Friday Focus' at
our largest sites This will allow our people further opportunities to ask our leaders questions about anything they
want to complement their day-to-day dealings with their team managers. In addition, our CEQ, Liv Gaifield, hosted
more than 60 sessions during the year, meeting more than 5,000 of our people. She used these sessions 1o
explain our performance challenges in AMP6 and how we need to adapt to meet them These sessions were
extremely well received by attendees and helped to align our people on the areas of focus
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As the world becomes more complex, we need to have more talented people in our organisation and provide
more opportunities for them to reach their potential Our apprenticeship programme brings i new talent each year
and we currently have 80 apprentices We've adapted the programme so that it now takes three years instead of
four, by changing the way we train our apprentices and thewr college work, so they can reach the required
technical level faster Qur graduate programme 1s also going from strength to strength. We took on 27 graduates
In 20142015, our largest intake for some years As at May 2015, Severn Trent Water Limited is one of
thejobscrowd's ‘Top 100 Companies for Graduates to Work for in 2015-2016’ ranking at no 83 Thejobscrowd I1s
the only graduate employer ranking based on realtime feedback and reviews from current graduates, so reflects
actual graduate/employee engagement and experience As the only water company represented in the ‘larger
intake' category, this is a great result for the first year of entering the survey

The performance challenges we face in AMP6 are greater than in AMPS, so we've redesigned our performance
framework Our goal 1s to inspire everyane to actueve great performance, with a clear plan of how they can
develop the skilis and behaviours needed to achieve performance excellence Indviduals will discuss and review
thetr performance every quarter to identify successes and areas where improvements can be made We're aming
to create a culture that's performance led, and which encourages our people to achieve their full potential

Turning Severn Trent into an awesome company

With the challenges of AMPS fast approaching, our CEQ Liv Garfield met more than 5,000 employees on her
‘Awesome Company Tour’ Over more than 60 sessions, she engaged our people in our journey to become an
awesome company She set out how we’'ll delight our customers and give them the cleanest water, with brilliant
peopie who work safely and take a 'digital first' approach The outcome will be “fab financials’, which will fund our
plans and reward our investors

1 Turning Severn Trent into an awesome company. Visible and accessible leadership is key to building
trust

2 Protecting our peoplé’s health and wellbeing is one of our core responsibilities. Qur lost time injury
rate during the year was 0 21 per 100,000 hours worked. Our goal is zero.

Training the engineers of the future

Severn Trent Water apprentice maintenance technician, Hannah Black 1s one of 80 young people who has joined
us In operational apprentice roles For Hannah t made perfect sense to become an apprentice giving her an
opportunity to iearn whilst she earned money to kick start her career New apprentices will also gamn a brand new
‘Trailblazer' qualification, which we've designed with our industry colleagues and the Sector Skills Council

We also need leaders who can challenge and engage Dunng the year, we completed our Leading for
Performance programme, which aims to make leaders confident in driving high performance and creating an
environment of empowerment In total, we've trained 400 managers

With our greater focus on perfarmance comes the need to recognise and reward it Our employee awards scheme
relnforces a culture of continuous improvement and recognition, with more than 500 people nominated this year
We also offer flexible benefits, which are very popular For example, employees can buy or sell holidays to suit
therr needs Most of our people are shareholders in Severn Trent, meaning they benefit directly from our good
performance. Nearly 48% of those eligible have joined our Sharesave scheme

Protecting our people’s health and wellbeing Is one of our core responsibilities, Qur lost time injury rate was

0 21 per 100,000 haurs worked, which i the same as last year. Qur performance remamns industry leading but s
not as good as we hoped for, given our considerable focus on health and safety Minor accidents are a continued
reminder of the need to remamn focused and the need te refresh our approach to health and wellbeing We
continue to priortise reductions in minor accidents, such as slips, trips and falls, as well as safety in our supply
chain In 2014/15 we ended the year with a RIDDOR score of 0 12 on our major construction programme
delivered by our One Supply Chain team This 15 40% better than the construction industry average and 25%
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better than the industry benchmark programme of work (the London 2012 Olympics) We're also creating a
stronger central health and safety function, which will help to direct how our operational teams should work and
provide more assurance that they're doing the nght things We also address employees’ wellbeng, paying
attention to factors such as workplace stress and other mental health 1ssues

“Woe take a long tenm view of our business, so we’re big supporters of the science, technology,
engineering and maths agenda in education.”

We recognise that diversity and inclusion are impottant for our success and have made them a business
imperative over the last 18 months As a customer focused organisation, we need our workforce to reflect the
customers and communities we serve, so we can understand and respond to therr needs Our workforce remains
slightly more diverse than the sector average, with female employees making up 30 4% of the total, compared
with 26% across the industry 7 8% of our employees are black, Asian and minority ethnic {(BAME), against an
industry average of 3 4%

To help us make meaningful pragress durng AMP6, we have prioriised three key areas
+ women in operational leadership positions,

« women and BAME people in engineering positions, and

* BAME people in technical operator positions

We continue to take action to improve diversity, for example by training managers in how to interview effectively
and farly Mare than 400 managers have been through this training, which has a strong focus on unconscious
bias in the recruitment process More than 130 leaders in our Wholesale Operations business have attended
awareness-raising sessions, focusing on the benefits of diverse teams and building an mnclusive environment.

We've taken action to encourage diversity among job apphcants, for example by revamping our recruitment
website to profile a broader range of employees and addressing the language we use 10 our job descriptions
We've been successful in attracting more female graduates, which will give us a greater female talent pool for
future senior management team appointments Howaver, we have more work to do In attracting more female
apprentices for operational roles

More information on our gender diversity can be found m the Nominatrons Committee report on pages 61 and 62
The Corporate Responsibility Cornmittee report on pages 66 to 68 contains information on human nghts issues for
the group

We take a long term view of our business, so we're big supporters of promoting science, technology, engineering
and maths in education We encourage young people to study these subjects, so they can become the engineers
and technicians of the future For example, we support initatives such as Tomorrow’s Engineers and work with
universities and technical colleges to make therr curnculums more relevant to industry We also support the Big
Bang, a national programme to get chiidren interested in technology and science careers

Outlook

During 2014/15, we've put In place the foundations for success in AMPS We have a plan that will deliver better
value and better services for customers and a healthter environment far all By achieving our plan, we'll deliver
long term sustainable growth and real benefits for our customers, communities and investors

1. We sponsor the Big Bang Fair, which provides 7-19 year olds with a fun and educational experience to
help inspire them towards careers using thelr science and maths subjects.
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CASE STUDY

Using food waste to power our processes.

At our Coleshill sewage treatment works, we're turning food waste into enough electnicity to make the site self-

sufficient

We've invested £13 million in an anaerobic digestion plant, which uses food waste from local businesses to create
methane gas. We then convert this gas to green energy, sufficient to power over 4,000 homes or the whole of the
works and more Nothing 1s wasted, with plastic packaging going for recycling and the leftover matenal becommg

fertiiser for local fields

By digesting this food waste, we're preventing around 8,000 tonnes of carbon dioxide emissions each year That's
equivalent to taking 3,300 cars off the road And we’re enabling local businesses to save money and meet their
environmental goals The National Exhibition Centre is one of the first to send its food waste to Coleshill We'll be
taking around 120 tonnes of its waste each year, helping to ensure it sends zero to landfill

Non-regulated

Qur business model
Our non-regulated business allows us to apply our water and waste water services knowledge to create and
deliver services and products to UK and giobal municipal, industrial and commercial customers

We also provide renewable energy to the group and are looking to identify new opporturibies in energy

generation

Role

Identify and develop Create products Bulld strong and Maximise Assoclated
opportunitiss and services respected brands our return risks

Severn Tront Oparating Services

QOperating Services
analyses markets and
works with customers to
identify opportunities and
markets where our
capabilites can be
applied for customers’
and sharehoiders’
benefit

In the UK we provide
design, build and contract
oparations for water and
waste water reatment
faciites for a variety of
industnal segments and
supply retall water to
businesses throughout
the UK

Our strategy 1s to
contnue growing our
Operating Services
business In the US and
Europe

Water supply services
across the UK are
changing, with legislation
giving businesses a
cholce from whom they
buy thelr water and waste
water services

Operating Services 1s
pursuing this open
market movement,
helping businesses
achieve optmum water
and waste water
management through
enihanced services

Severn Trent Operating
Services Is the largest
pnvate operator of
faciities operated In the
US, serving mors than
321 facilites in 22
stales These facilites
regularty win awards in
areas such as
environmental
comphance, heslth and
safety and overall plant
performance

With water services
licences for Scotland,
England and Wales, we
offer multi sited
businesses the benefits
and synergles of a single
suppher approach

We continue to enter new
states n the US

In February 2015 OSUS
was awarded a contract
in Quincy, in the mid west
region, replacing
Amencan Water. 2014/15
also saw the first year of
our largest monetary
contract to date in
Bridgeport, Connechcut,
while expanding our
presence n Califormia
with the acquisibon of 14
contracts from
SouthWest Water
Company In the UK fong
term contracts with the
Ministry of Defence
(MoD} and First Mtk
provide continuing
stability

Hazardous processes
may result in cur people
being injured {Principal
Risk Ref 7)

Fallure of preducts or
treatment processes may
result in environmental
damage and regulatory
non-compliance
(Pnncipal Risk Ref 6}

Regulatory or political
change may lead to
decreased demand for
our services

We may be unable to
take advantage of the
opening up of the UK
retzall market to
compettion (Pnncpal
Risk Ref 2)
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Renewable energy

Sevemn Trent generates
renewable energy from
anaercbic digastion {AD).
wind turbines and some
hydro We are also
expanding into the foed
waste market Our new
facility at Coleshill, UK,
will convert up to 48,000
tonnes of food waste into
17,026 MWh of electncity
and approximately
30,000 tonnes of
biofertiliser for agnculture
per year by 2016 We
plan to investigate the
development of other
technologies including
photovoltaics (PV) and
bromass combustion

in 2014/15 we will supply
over 40,000 MWh of
electnaty and heat to
our regulated business
Our new food waste

AD business will provide
a service for the
recycling of Industnal,
commercial, retall and
domestlc food wasta

We are recoghised as
being experienced in the
field of AD Our experbse
In this complex biclogical
process means that we
can be trusted to prowvide
an excellent servica

We have established
electnaty and heat power
sale/purchase
agreements with our
regulated business We
will be entenng into long
term contracts with the
wider supply market to
process food waste

Hazardous processes
may result in our people
being Injured

We may be exposed to
increased volatility in
energy prices
Regulatory or political
change or local
opposition to our plans
may affect cur ability to
generate sufficient
renewable energy to
achieve our targets
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Non-regulated business performance review

1. During the year we won a major contract with the Coal Authority to operate and maintain mine water
treatment plants across the UK for the next 10 years.

Following the sale of our Water Purification business, we have reorganised and brought together our remaining
non-regulated businesses — Operating Services US, Operating Services UK, mcluding non-household retail and
renewable energy — into a new Business Services division led by Andy Smith

Severn Trent Services reported revenue rose by 2.9% to £216 3 million, with reported PBIT down 27.1% to £9 7
million After adjusting for the impact of exchange rate movements, revenue was 4 6% higher and PBIT
decreased by 27 1%

“The business benefited from a number of actions we took to position It for growth and greater efficiency We
moved from being an integrated business to three separate business units, each focused on its own markets and
customer needs, and each under new leadership teams "

Operating Services

Qperating Services provides confracted operating services, to manage and mantain water and waste water plants
and networks [t delivered revenue growth on the back of new contract wins in the US and the UK Revenue in
2014/15 was £216 3 milion, up 4 6% after adjusting for the impact of exchange rates

In the US, we won a number of contracts in the Northeast and Pacific regions We also benefited from the first fuli
year of our contract in Bndgeport, Connecticut This contract, which we won in 2013/14, 15 our largest in the US by
monetary value, with annual revenues of £13 8 million over 10 years We operate, mamtain and manage two
waste water treatment facilities, 10 pumping stations and nearly 300 miles of sewers Our performance to date
has been strong, which has helped us to build an excellent relationship with the chent Most recently, we have
assisted with the development of a five year capital plan, to address the challenges of ageing infrastructure

In the UK, we continued to pick up selected new retaill business in Scotland, with contract wins in the healthcare,
retall and leisure sectors Our approach here I1s disciplined, focusing on winning profitable work and using the
opportunity to develop our understanding of the market, ahead of the opening up of non-household retail
competition in England from April 2017

We are actively preparing for the introduction of competition in non-household retail in England We now have
new processes which will equip us to deliver outstanding service to customers

Our 25 year, £1 billion eperation and maintenance contract with the UK Minustry of Defence 1s now in its 10th year
We continue to wark with our customers to find new ways to improve our performance Durning 2014/15, we also
won a major contract with the Coal Authority, to operate and maintain mine water treatment plants across the UK
for the next 10 years

Renewable Energy

Duning the year, we continued to build our industry leading position In renewable energy generation. We sell the
energy we creatle to power our regufated business’ operations, with the surplus sold to National Gnd

Key developments dunng the year included opening our ‘gas to gnd’ plant at Minworth, Birmingham This plant 1s
the first of its kind in the water industry, and injects the gas generated from the anaerobic digestion of sewage
sludge into the national gnd As well as being a source of revenue for us, this has important environmentat
benefits by enabling power stations to turn the gas into electncity more efficiently than we could an-site Qur first
food waste digestion plant, at Coleshil, Warwickshire, began generating electncity in December 2014

We will invest in solar energy, making use of surplus land on or around operational sites
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Outlook

We believe Severn Trent Business Services has a number of attractive growth opportunities and that we've
posttioned the business to take advantage of them In Operating Services, our preparations for non-household
retall competition in England are going well, and we see potential in the US market, which 1s showing signs of
opening up, as described on page 16

We'll continue to invest in our renewables business, with the aim of increasing our extemal sales and providing
around 50% of Severn Trent Water's energy needs by 2020 We intend to expand energy production from food
waste, to upgrade our sewage anaerobic digestion to the latest technology and to add solar generation, with
technological developments having made this more economically attractive

“We helieve Severn Trant Business Services has a number of attractive growth opportunities and that
we've positioned the business to take advantage of them.”

Improving efficiency, compliance and union relations

Our US Operating Services business has a 10 year contract to help the city of Bridgeport, Connecticut, meet the
challenges of ageing plants, a struggling sewer system and improvements to safety and comphance Since we
started work in January 2014, we've built productive relationships with all five labour unions, by aligning our goals
with theirs and the client's This has helped us achieve outstanding regulatory compliance, enabling the city to sell
credits under the state’s Nitrogen Credit Exchange Program

CASE STUDY

Taking the lead on environmental performance.
Our customers and other stakeholders value healthy rivers and want us to continue improving our local
envirconment That's why environmental performance 15 central to our plans

We've invested more and achieved another record breaking year at our waste water treatment works Of more
than 700 sites, 99 9% met their compliance hmits

We've also further reduced the number of pollution incidents, by improving the way we work and launching new
training for our people and subcontractors Our environmental performance over the last year places us amongst
the best in the industry We'll continue to work hard to improve our local environment, with our plan for AMP8
including no fewer than 12 performance commttments
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Risk management

Our approach to risk

We have set ourselves some very challenging targets and continually strive to improve our standards of service
delivery to customers and our overall performance The group’s nsk management and internal control systems are
vital to the dehvery of these targets and enable the identfication, assessment and mitigation of nsks inherent In
our business activities

Accountability for the effectiveness of the group’s Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) policies sits with the board,
with oversight from the executive team, supported by operational nsk owners and the central ERM team who are
responsible for camying out the ERM process

Risk owners throughout the business, with support and challenge from the ERM team, identfy and assess risks
and undertake nsk improvement actions to move risks to therr target positron The ERM process starts from
understanding the objectives we have set ourselves, as shown below

The ERM process

When considenng how best to manage our risks, our approach reflects the need 1o efficiently mitigate the inherent
nsks in our business whilst seeking fo iImprove our performance through the targeted management of selected
risks.

Within Severn Trent Water, our approach reflects our status as a regulated utility providing essential services and
operating as part of the Cntical National Infrastructure for the UK. The nature of our Severn Trent Water business
1s such that there are some significant inherent nsks, as illustrated on page 18 'our regulated business model' We
aim to have a strong control framework i place to enable us fo understand our nisks and manage these risks both
effectively and efficiently

In our non-regulated businesses we take a more commercial approach to our decisions around which nisks are
acceptable However, we recognise that we provide products and services for clients who operate in regulated
environments As a result, for risks that could /mpact on our clients' services, we take a similar approach to risk as
in our own regulated business The risks inherent in cur non-regulated business are illustrated on page 32 ‘our
non-regulated business model’

Risk appetite

The board keeps under constant review the relationshup between our strategic ambitions and the management of
nsk In particular, this year the board focused carefully on the ambition in our AMP& programme and the risk to its
delivery

The ERM process establishes larget nisk positions for each of our strategic risks The board formally discuss the
progress towards this position and the mitigating actions being undertaken avery six months Previously, the
board has held a series of nsk appetite discussions focusing on eight key strategic areas in the context of the
below framework
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Strategic risk framework

Risk appetite Culture Customer Investor Regulatory
parspoctivas and values focus confidence regime
Risk focus Protecting heatth, wellbeing and safely

argas Financing the bustness

Ambition for growth

Future competiive posibon

Customer confidence

Resllience of our networks

Relationships with regulators

Sustamability of the business

Our Enterprise Risk Management process
We use an established ERM process across the group to assess and manage our most significant nsks, which
are linked to our corporate objectives The ERM process covers all types of risk including operational, financial,
legal and regulatory Qur assessment of nsk mncludes exphelt consideration of the possible impact of the nsk on
the reputation of the group as a whole

We analyse both the potential causes and mmpact of nsk Using this process, we are able to consider the controls
needed to minimise the kkelthood of nisks occurnng and those which can help to maximise our resilience to rnisks
The understanding which we are able to gain from our ERM process aliows us to put in place effectve mitigation
strategies Resilience of our services 1s vital and we regularly carry out exercises jointly with other agencies such
as local authorities, police and fire services to test this resiience

Across the group, we manage risks within the overall governance framework which includes clear accountabilities,
delegated authornty imits and reward policies These are designed to provide employees with a holistic view of
effective risk management The key risks are reported fo the Audit Committee and discussed at the board every
six months in the form of risk maps In addition, individual nisks or specific nsk topics are also discussed by the

board during the year

An overview of accountabify for our ERM process is iflustrated in the below chart

Managing nisk

Financial risks

Like all businesses, we need to plan future funding in line with business needs This 1s part of our normal business

planning process (see Principal nisk 3) The board receve regular updates relating to funding, solvency and

hquidity matters

Financial nsks are discussed in detail on page 42
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An example of risk management in practice

We have a number of large assets which are particularly vital to our ability to continue to supply high quality water to our customers all of the
time

One of these 15 the Elan Valley Aqueduct, also known as the EVA. This asset transfers water from reservoirs in the Elan Vatley to
Birmingham's Frankiey Reservors, canrying drinking water to supply Brmingham If the aqueduct were to be damaged, for example by extreme
weather or by third parties, or If we experience major bursts on the aqueduct, this could result in an unacceptable disruption to supply to these
customers We have concluded that we are carrying an unacceptable level of long term risk, particularly In terms of loss of supply
consequences in Bimingham Our AMP6 investmeni plans are to provide a full altemative supply to Birmingham which can be deployed in the
event of a failure of the EVA, and allow extended outage periods to undartake major mantenance or replacement activibes as required

The Bimingham aliemative supply scheme will construct a new pumping station on the River Severn and an independent pipeline to Frankley
Water Treatment Works The works will be upgraded to treat river water and will have two fully independent streams to provide resilience
aga:nst major falure at the works and protect supplies to Bimingham
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Principal risks

The principal risks identified in our ERM process are set out below and are categorised across.

customer
+ legal and regulatory

s operations, assets and people

s« financial nsks

For each risk we state what it means for us and what we are doing to manage it

Principal risks

Ref What is tha risk?

Which part of Severn
Trent Is affected?

What does it mean for us?

What are wa doing to manage the
risk?

Customer perception

1 We may be unable to improve
and mamntain our levels of
customer sarvice suffictently
to deliver what cur customers
tell us they want.

Savern Trenl Water

We are a regulated utiity
prowviding essential services
to our customers Wa
racognise that our customers
increasingly expect more
from us, demanding higher
service levels As other
industnes improve therr levels
of service, the baris
constantly being raised
Fatlure to deliver the service
customers expect will lead to
customer dissatisfaction and
we may suffer financial
penafties under Ofwat’s
Senvice Incentive
Mechamism

We have rnade changes to aur
orgarsational design to embed
customers at the heart of what we
do, creating a Chief Customer
Officer role and bnnging together
our IS funct:on, contact centres and
transformation teams

Providing the high quality service
that our customers demand means
we need the right processes,
systems and resources As part of
bacoming a digitally savvy
organisation we are investing in a
new customer relationship
management system, which will
draw together customer information
from across our systems giving us
greater insight into the needs of our
customers We are also giving
customers mora choica in the way
that they interact with us by
tntroducing new contact channels
such as web chat and mobile

We know that providing great
customer service needs the nght
resource so wa have invested
heavily in training our staff and
added an addiional 100 fronine
roles

Ta help make sure we continuousfy
improve we are directly surveying
thousands of customers each month
to get feedback on thelr experience
of contacting us enabling us to
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Principal risks

Ref What 1s the risk? Which part of Severn What does it mean for us? What are we doing to manage the
Trent is affected? risk?
improve our service, spot trends and
react to our customers' nasds
2 We may be unable to take full | Group-wide Competition will give We are posiboning our business to

advantage of the opportunities
presented by the opening up
of the business refalf market
1o competihon

business customers
mncreased cholce and will
encourage companies to
provide a better service If we
fail to kesp pace with change
or faill to recognise the needs
of our business customers,
wea may lose customers to
cur competitors We may fail
to successfully grow our
business by being unable to
develop sufficiently attractive
services to win new
customers

succeed In this market and are
actively preparing for the
mntroduction of competition in non-
household reta] in England As part
of our preparatons we have
changed our processes to equip us
with the technology to deliver
outstandmg sernce {0 customers
Our strategy reflects the needs of
different customer groups, both
large and smal! users and those
users where water 15 cntical to
their operations

We are developing our service
affering which includes, for example,
services to help customers
understand and reduce ther water
consumption

We have recently restructured our
business and we believe that our
new organisation is in good shape to
meet the needs of the changing
market place We also have full
representation on the OpenWater
project helping to define the market
rules, framework and systems for
competbeon in the industry

We will be roliing out refresher
trainmg i competition law to ensure
that as we move into the new
snvironment we can also maintain
full compkance with the relevant
legislation and regulatons

l.egal and regulatory environment

3 We may be unable to
effectively anticipate andfor
influence future developments
n the UK water industry
resulting in our business plans
becoming unsustainable

Severn Trent Water

Severn Trent Water operates
in a highly regulated
environment. Whilst we are
broadly content with

the directian of changes
proposed for our industry,
there remains a nsk that

Severn Trent has always coninbuted
to the debate about our industry’s
future, including through our senes
of Changing Course publications
We wiil continue to be an active
participant in thase conversations,
so we can halp shape thinking about
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Principal risks
Raf What s the risk? Which part of Severn What does it mean for us? What are we doing to manage the
Trent is affected? risk?
future changes could how to best serve our customers In
have a signrficant impact on the future
Severn Trent Water We have contrbuted to the

establishment of OpenWater, the
body which will oversee competition
in the non-household retall market.
We continue to flalse with
Govemment, regulators and other
stakehelders to ensure we
understand the future direction of
policy, its implications for our
business and are able to put forward
our own case for change in a
constructive way

We will conttnue to engage with our
peers, Ofwat and other regulators,
UK Govemment dapartmants and
other stakeholders, including the
Welsh Government, to influence the
direction of regulatory policy where
possible

4 Tha regulatory landscape is Group-wide Qur policles and processes We understand that the regulatory
complex and subject to must refiect the current legal landscape is changing and following
ongoing change Thereis a and regulatory environment on from the restructuring of our
risk that processes may fail or and all relevant employees orgameaton and in preparation for
that our processes may not must be kept aware of new the opening up of the retail market,
effectively keep pace with requirements Due to the we plan to refresh our policy
changes in legislation, leading spread of our operations, and | framework
to the nsk of non-compliance ~ changes in actvity and We plan to continue extensive
organisahonal structure, this trauring across the group,
is not always straighforward | particularly in relation to transactions
The group as a whole may between group companies and
face censure for non- compatition law
compliance in an individual
group company or a specific
region in which we cperate

Operations, assets and

paople

5 We may experence loss of Group-wide The risks ansing from loss of | We recognise that the cyber threat

data or interrupbions to our
key business system as a
result of cyber threats

ona or more of our major
systems or cortuption of data
held in those systems could
have far reaching effects on
our business We have
recognised the Increasing

to the business is constantly
evolving and one which we need to
monitor and act on i a timely
manner

Using guidance from the
Government's Centre for Protection
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Principal nsks

Ref What is the nsk?

Which part of Severn
Trent is affected?

What does it mean for us?

What are we doing to manage the
nsk?

threats posed by the
possibility of cyber attacks on
our systems and data VWhilst
this threat can never be
eliminated and will continue
to evolve, we aro focused on
the need to malntain effectve
mitigahon

of Critical National Infrastructure we
have identified key areas where we
can improve our controls, focusing
on tralning our people to ba more
secunty aware and ensuring our
processes and technology are
designed with security in mind

We have improved the resilience of
our systems through implementation
of disaster racovery services and
regularly test our abiity to recover
from systems fatlure

6 Wa may fail to meet our
regulatory targets, including
targets from Ofwat in relation
to operabcnal performance of
our assets, resulting in
regulatory penalties

Severn Trent Water

if we are unable to meet
operational performance
targets, we may be subjected
to significant regulatory
penalties, either wathin the
current price review penod,
or apphed to the next pnce
review

Regutatory targets apply to
alt of our water treatment,
distnbubon, sewerage and
sawage treatment assets
Measures are in place in
relation to water qualrty,
continuous supphes, sewer
flooding, sewer collapses and
pollution events

Cur busmess plan for 2015-2020
includes considerabla investment in
our assets to Improve the resiience
of our networks, reduce interruptions
and Improve the service that our
customers recelve

We recogmise areas where our
performance is not as consistent as
we would ke and are committed to
improving these areas Wae have
undertaken a signuficant amount of
work at our water treatment works
and boreholes, inspecting the sites
and increasing our maintenance and
capial replacement

We remain committed to investing in
continuous Improvement activibes
such as our Valuing Every Drop
programme which has significantly
reduced our time to process and
react to leaks

We have also continued to work to
reduce the impact to our customers
when things unfortunately do go
wrong, for example by faster
despatch of samergency tankers and
providing our staff with Incident
management training

To improve our waste water
performance we have trialled
different ways of engaging with
customers to raise awareness of the
problems caused by putling the
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Principal risks
Ref What is the risk? Which part of Severn What does it mean for us? What are we doing to manage the
Trent 15 affected? risk?
wrong things down our sewers We
are also investing in caprtal solutions
to enable us to protect properties at
tisk of sewer flooding
7 Failure of certain key asssts Group-wide Some of our assets are Qur 2015-2020 business plan
O processes may rasult in critical to the provislon of includes substantial Investment in
inability to provide a wrater to iarge populations for | some of our largest strategic assets
continuous supply of quality which we require alternative such as the Elan Valley and
water to large populabons means of supply Derwant Valley Aqueducts We are
within ocur area, or cause Examples include fallure of also investing £340 mithon in one of
damage to third party property one of our reservorrs or use our largest ever capital schemes to
or injury or {ll health to our of chemicals in our treatment | Improve the resilience of our water
people, contractors and processes These assets are | Supply to Birmingham
members of the general regularly inspected and These investments will improve the
public malntamed and our resllisnce of our services and
assessment of the overall reduca the risk of injury as a resutt
condztion of these assets is of fallure of one of our assets
good As wall as Investing in
Another example 1s our IT improvements we also have
and telephony systems winvch | assurance plans in place to momitor,
ara critical to our operations inspect and malntain our most
and failure of these systems, cntical assets
for example our remote We also have secunty measures in
monitoring system, could place and contingency plans to
have a significant effect maintain supplies in the event of
failure
Financial nsks
8 Changing demographics and | Group-wide We already prowide We regularly revalue our schemes

fluctuatrons in the invesimant
market may affect our ability
to fund pensions promises
sustainably

significant funding We may
be called upon to provide
more money to reduce
defiaits in our pensions
schemes

and monitor cur investment
performance and will continue 1o
monitor the performance of our
pensions iInvestments and to work
closaly with our third party adwvisors
to ensure that the schemes are
managed effectively
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Financial review

Chief Financial Officer's review

The group has delivered a good financral performance in 2014/15, underpinned by continuing improvements and
growth In our regulated business, and continued revenue growth in our non-regulated Severn Trent Services
business

On 13 May 2015 we announced the sale of our Water Purification business to Industrie De Nora. The disposal
follows a successful turnaround of the business, and will enable our reorganised Business Services division to
focus on its core strengths in water, waste, retail and renewables The Water Purification business has been
classified as a discontinued operation, and our prior year results have been restated to reflect this

We made some important changes to our financing structure at the end of the year, to reduce short term financing
risk and increase exposure to currently low floating interest rates These included replacing our revolving credi
facility with a new £900 millicn facility and negotiating and drawing down on a new £530 milion European
Investment Bank (EIB) facility In addition, we cancelled some floating to fixed interest rate swaps and purchased
€183 milhion of our fixed rate €700 million Eurcbond loan, due for repayment in March 2016, which resulted ma
one time financing charge of £6 6 million in 2014/15 As a result, we have reduced the interest cost on £415
mithon of debt and swaps from an average interest rate of 5 1% to a floating rate, currently 1% This has moved
the proportion of cur debt that 1s at floating rates to 10%, in line with our stated policy for AMPS6 to increase the
level of variable rate debt Furiher details are set out in the Treasury management and liquidity section below

A brief overview of our financial performance for the year 1s as follows

Group turnover from continuing operations was £1,801 3 milhion (2013/14 £1,756 7 millian), an increase of 2 5%
Underlying PBIT" increased by 3 2% to £540 3 million (2013/14 £523 8 million)

Net exceptional charges before tax totalled £18 7 milion (2013/14 £15 2 million).

Reported group PBIT' was £521 6 million (2013/14 £508 6 million)

Net finance costs were £240.0 million {2013/14 £247 9 million)

1 PBIT 1s profit before interest and tax, undertying PBIT excludes exceptional items as set out in note 8

Regulated — Severn Trent Water
In Severn Trent Water, underlying PBIT increased by 3.9% to £539 0 midlion (2013/14 £518.6 million)

Turnover increased by £36 4 million, or 2 4%, to £1,581 2 million as a result of price increases of 1 5%
(£23 0 million), higher consumption from metered commercial customers (£1 9 million), growth, net of meter
optants (£1 0 milion) and other increases including tariff mix effects of £10 & million

Operating costs, excluding depreciation and infrastructure maintenance expenditure, increased in line with
expectations by 3 1% to £619 1 million
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increase/(decreass)

2015 2014
£m £m £m %
Employee costs 2484 2420 64 26
Hired and contracted 163 8 1541 97 63
Costs capitalised {92 4) (92 8) 02 02
Raw materials and consumables 4t 4 425 49 115
Power 639 653 (14) @1
Bad debts 284 313 29 (9 3}
Rates and service charges 1132 1123 09 08
Other 16 4 454 10 22
6191 600 3 188 31

Employee costs were 2 6% higher, broadly in line with annual pay inflation The benefits of the recent
reorganisation, which included a reduction of 500 roles, will be seen from 2015/16 Hired and contracted costs
were 68 3% higher as we investad in key operational areas, such as sewer blockages and mans cleaning, to make
a fast start in AMPS The banefits of this will flow through ta 2015/16. Raw matenals and consumables increased
by £4 9 milhon due to inflation and addional spending on water quality improvements

Power costs decreased by £1 4 milion We continue to make good progress on our renewable energy generation,
and generated the equivalent of 28% of gross consumption from self-generation in the year, providing an effective
hedge against energy price volatiity

Bad debt charges improved to 2 0% of turnover (UK GAAP), down from 2 2% in 2013/14 as we saw the beneft of
improved collection of older household debt and a range of social tariffs which help customers pay their bills.

Depreciation increased by £2 7 million, due to the growing asset base Infrastructure maintenance expenditure
declined £5 5 million due to operational efficiencies and programme phasing as we closed out AMPS

We completed our planned capital programme for AMP5, investing £547 4 milion (UK GAAP, ret of grants and
contributions) during the year Included in this total was net infrastructure maintenance expendiure of
£134 8 million, which s charged to the income statement under IFRS

Non-regulated — Severn Trent Services

2015 2014 Increase/
Rastated (decroase)
£m £m Y
Turmover
Services as reported 2163 2102 25%
Impact of exchange rate fluctuations - (35)
Like for like 2163 2067 4 6%
Underlying PBIT
Services as reported 97 133 (27 1%)
Like for like 97 133 (27 1%)

The results above exclude the Water Purficatron business, which has been classified as a discontinued operation
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In Severn Trent Services we saw good growth in turnover, up 4 6% on a constant currency basis to £216.3 million

Underlying PBIT was down £3 6 milhon to just under £10 mihon This was due to business development
investment in US concessions and a number of one off favourable items in the prior year,

Corporate and other
Carporate overheads totalled £13 2 milion (2013/14 £13 6 mdlion} Our other businesses generated a net profit of
£1 1 million {2013/14 £2 5 mulhon)

Exceptional items before tax
Net exceptiona! operating costs totalled £18 7 miliron (2013/14 £15 2 million) and included
* In ourregulated business.

o £28 3 mithon of restructunng costs to transform the business for AMPG, reducing the cost base and de-
layering the management levels, offset by

« £7 7 million of profit on disposal of property
s [n our non-regulated business

» £4 4 million of restructuring costs to prepare the business for retail competition in AMP6 and to reduce the
cost base, offset by

s the release of a £6 3 million provision previously made against accounts receivable in ltaly.

Net finance costs

The group’s net finance costs were £240 0 million, down from £247 9 miliion in the prior year The benefits of
lower interest rates (in particular on our RPT Iinked debt) were partizlly offset by higher levels of net debt.

In addition, in March 2015 the group reduced 2015/16 financing nisk by purchasing approximately 26% of the
€700 0 milkon, fixed rate Eurobond which 1s due for repayment in March 2016 This led to a charge of £6 6 million
in finance costs

Profit before tax
Underlying group profit before tax increased by 8 8% to £300 4 mition (2013/14 £276 1 miliron) Group profit
before tax was £148 2 million (2013/14 £318 9 million)

Taxation
The total tax charge for the year was £32 7 million (2013/14 credit of £152 9 million).

The current year tax charge for 2014/15 was £37 8 milhon (2013/14 £55.8 million before exceptional tax} The
deferred tax credit was £5 1 millon (2013/14 charge of £21 5 million before excaptional tax)

In the prior year there was an exceptronal current tax credit of £59.2 million and an exceptional deferred tax credit
of £171 0 million

See note 13 for further detail

The underlying effective rate of current tax on continuing operations, excluding prior year credits, exceplional tax
credits and tax on exceptional items and financial instruments, calculated on profit from continuing operations
before tax, exceptional items and gains/(losses} on financial instruments was 17 6% (2013/14 17 3%) |

We expect the effective rate of cument tax, as defined above, for 2015/16 to be in the range of 17% to 19%
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Reported group profit for the period and earnings per share

After a profit of £4 7 million (2013/14 loss of £36 9 million) from discontinued operations, reported group profit for
the period was £120 2 milion (2013/14 £434 8 million) The decrease was a resuit of a far value ioss on financial
instruments, largely due to lower expectations for future interest rates, and an exceptional tax credit in the prior
year which arose from an agreement with HMRC on a long standing discussion regarding overpayments of tax in
prior periods.

Adjusted basic earnings per share (from continuing operations, before exceptional tems, gamns/(losses) on
financial instrumants, current tax on gains/(losses) on financial instruments and deferred tax) was 107 2 pence
(2013/14 92.5 pence) (see note 15) The main drivers of the increase were an increase in underlying PBIT, as
described above, a lower interest charge due to lower RP| year on year, and a lower current tax charge arsing
from adjustments of prior year computations

Basic earnings per share were 49 9 pence (2013/14 182 1 pence)

Group cash flow

2015 2014
£m £m
Cash generated from operations 760 1 7302
Net capital expenditure (4161) (463 9)
Net interest paid (218 2) {204 5)
Payment to close out interest rate swaps {138 2) -
Tax (paidyreceived (28 6) 272
Other cash flows {14) (0 6)
Free cash flow (43 4) 88 4
Acquisitons and disposals - {11 4)
Dividends {1986 9) {185 3)
Net Issue of shares {186 7) 23
Change In net debt from cash flows {257 0) (106 0)
Non cash movermnents (48 1) (44 2)
Change in nat debt (3051) (150 2}
Net debt 1 April (4,447 5) {4,297 3)
Net debt at 31 March {4,752 6) {4,447 5)
Nat debt comprises
Cash and cash equivalents 176 7 123 2
Bank loans . {1,279.2) (584 9)
Other loans {3,467 5) {3.826 0)
Finance leases {180 0) {201 2}
Cross currency swaps hedging debt {26) 514
{3,752 6) {4,447 5)
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Tax paud was £28 6 milhon (2013/14 receved £27 2 million). The group has obtained agreement with HMRC to
offset quarterly tax payments for the current year against a refund of overpayment of tax in prior periods, as
outlined in the prior year results announcement

Net debt at 31 March 2015 was £4,752.6 million (2013/14 £4,447 5 million) Balance sheet geanng (net debt/net
debt plus equity) at the year end was 85 2% (2013/14: 80.3%) Net debt, expressed as a percentage of RCV at
31 March 2015 of £7,740 milion was 61 4% (2013/14 58 4%) The group’s net interest charge, excluding
gains/(losses) on financial iInstruments and net finance costs from pensions, was covered 3 5 tmes (2013/14

3 3 times) by profit before interest, tax, depreciation and exceptional items, and 2 3 tmes (2013/14 2 1 times) by
underiying PBIT

The fair value of net debt at 31 March 2015 1s esttimated to be £5,645 4 mitlion (2013/14 £4,799 7 million)
compared to the book value of £4,752 6 million (2013/14 £4,447 5 million). The difference between the book
value and farr value of debt anses from fixed rate and index linked debt where the interest rate on the debt ts
higher than prevailing market rates at the year end

Treasury policy and operations

Our treasury affairs are managed centrally and in accordance with aur Treasury Procedures Manual and Policy
Statement The treasury operation’s role 1s to manage liquidity, funding, investment and our financtal risk,
including nsk from volatility in interest and (to a lesser extent) currency rates and counterparty credit nsk The
board determines matters of treasury policy and its approval 1s required for certain treasury transactions The
board has established a Treasury Committee to monitor treasury activihes and to facilitate timely responses fo
changes in market conditions when necessary

QOur strategy 1s fo access a broad range of sources of finance to obtain both the quantum raquired and lowest cost
campatible with the need for continued availlability Our principal operating subsidiary, Severn Trent Water, is a
long term business charactensed by mulh year investment programmes Our strategic funding objectives reflect
this and the iquidity position and availability of commutted funding are essential to meeting our objectives and
oblgations We therefore aim for a balance of long term funding or commitment of funds across a range of funding
sources at the best possible economic cost The group also seeks to maintain an investment grade credit rating
and a flexible and sustainable balance sheet structure

Woe use financial derivatives solely to manage risks associated with our normal business activites We do not hold
or iIssue dernvative financial instruments for financial trading

Except for debt raised in forergn currency, which s fully hedged, our business does not involve significant
exposure to foreign exchange transactions We have investments in various assets denominated in foreign
currencies, prnincipally the US dollar and the euro Our current policy 1s to hedge an element of the currency
translation nsk associated with certain foreign currency denominated assets

The group Issues notes In foreign currency under its European Medium Term Note (EMTN) programme and uses
cross currency swaps to convert the proceeds to sterling The effect of these swaps 1s that interest and principal
payments on the borrowings are denominated in sterhing and hence the currency risk 1s eliminated The foreign
currency notes and the cross currency swaps are recorded in the balance sheet at their fair values and the
changes in fair values are taken to gains/(losses) on financial Instruments 1n the income statement Since the
terms of the swaps closely match those of the underlying notes, such changes tend to be broadly equal and
opposite

Treasury management and liquidity

In February and March 2015, the group took a number of financing steps in readiness for AMP6, aimed at
reducing short term refinancing nsk and increasing exposure to currently low floating interest rates These steps
included
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s Entering into a new £530 0 million, floating rate, nine year facility with the EIB At 31 March 2015, £200 milion
of the facility had been drawn, with the balance drawn down in April 2015

« On 31 March 2015 the group purchased €182 6 million of its €700 milllon Eurobond which i1s due for
repayment in March 2016 On the same date the equivalent amount of the corresponding swap, paying fixed
rate 6 325%, was cancelled

e in March 2015 the group cancelled floating to fixed interest rate swaps with a notional principal amount of
£275 million, for a cash payment of £139 2 million The average fixed rate interest on the swaps was 5 2%
The cash payment was charged aganst the fair value liability on the balance sheet, and £11 million that had
been recogrised in reserves was recycled through the income statement

e On 19 March 2015 the group amended and extended the revolving credit facility which was due to mature in
October 2018 The new £900 million faciity has a penod of five years, with two one year extension options
exercisabla with [ender consent At 31 March 2015 £485 million of the facility was drawn.

The group continuas to ensure it has adequate hquidity to support business requirements and provide headroom
for downside nsk At 31 March 2015 the group had £176 7 mullion (2013/14 £123 2 mihon) in cash and cash
equivalents and committed undrawn faciities amounting to £745 0 million (2013/14. £500 million)

The group 1s funded for its projected investment and cash flow needs up to at least July 2016

Cash ts invested in deposits with financial institutions benefiting from high credit ratings and the list of
counterparties 1s reviewed regularly

The group's policy for the management of interest rate risk requires that not less than 45% of the group's
borrowings should be at fixed interest rates, or hedged through the use of interest rate swaps or forward rate
agreements Going forward, the group intends to manage its existing debt porifolio and future debt issuance to
increase the proportion of debt which 1s at floating rates At 31 March 2015, interest rates for 67% (2013/14 77%)
of the group's net debt of £4,752 6 million were at fixed rates of interest

The group uses financial derivatives solely to hedge risks associated with its normal business activities including
» Exchange rate exposure on borrowings denominated in foreign currencies,
= Interest rate exposures on floating rate borrowings, and

» Exposures to increases In electricity prices

Accounting rules require that these derivatives are revalued at each balance sheet date and, unless the critena for }
cash flow hedge accounting are met, the changes In value are taken to the income statement If the nisk that 1s :
being hedged does not impact the iIncome statement in the same penod, then an accounting mismatch arises

from the hedging activities and there 1s a net charge or credit to the iIncome statement.

Denvatives are typically held to therr full term and mismatches will net out over the life of the instrument The
changes in value that are recorded during the lives of the dervatives, unless crystallised, do not represent cash
flows Therefore the group presents adjusted earnings figures that exclude these non-cash tems In exceptional
circumnstances the group may terminate swap contracts before their maturity date The payments or receipts
ansing from the cancellations are charged or credited aganst the hability or asset on the balance sheet, and
amounts previously recognised In reserves are recycled through the income statement

The group holds interest rate swaps with a net notional principal of £583.7 milion and cross currency swaps with
a net notional principal of £396 6 milion, which economically act to hedge the interest rate nsk on floating rate
debt or the exchange rate nisk on certain foreign currency borrowings However, the swaps do not meet the hedge
accounting rules of IAS 39 and therefore the changes In farr value are taken to gains/(losses) on financial
mstruments 1n the income statement During the year there was a charge of £183 4 mihon in relation to these

instruments
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An analysis of the amounts charged to the income statement in the period 15 presented in note 12 to the financial
statements

The group manages its electricity costs through a combination of self generation, forward price contracts and
financial denvatives The group has fixed around 100% of the wholesale energy cost for the first two years of
AMP6 and around 50% of the energy cost for the third year of AMP6

The group's iong term credit ratings are

Long term ratings Sevemn Trent Pic Severn Trent Water
Moody's Baa1 A3
Standard and Poor's BBB- BBB+

The outiook 15 stable for Standard and Poor's, negative for Moody's

Pensions

The group operates two defined benefit pension schemes for its UK employees, of which the Severn Trent
Pension Scheme (STPS) i1s by far the largest The most recent formal tnennial actuanal valuatons and funding
agreements were carried out as at 31 March 2013 for both schemes As a result, deficit reduction contributions of
£40 mihion 1n 2013714, £35 million in 2014/15, £15 million in 2015/16 and £12 milllon per annum in subsequent
years to 2024/25 were agreed Further payments of £8 milion per annum through an asset backed funding
arrangement will alse continue to 31 March 2032

As previously announced, the defined benefit schemes closed to future acerual on 31 March 2015 On 1 April
2015, members of the defined benefit schemes were transferred to the defired contribution Severn Trent Group
Personal Pension scheme, which was opened on 1 Apnl 2012

The key actuarial assumptions for the defined benefit schemes have been updated for these accounts On an IAS

19 basis, the estimated net position of the schemes was a deficit of £468 9@ million as at 31 March 2015 This ‘
compares to a deficit of £348 3 million &s at 31 March 2014 The movements in the net deficit can be summarnsed w

as follows

£m
Present value at 1 Apnl 2014 (348 3)
Change in actuanal assumptions (336.8)
Asset outperformance 193 4
Contnbutions In excess of Income statemant charge 228
Praesent value at 31 March 2015 (468 9)

Accounting policles and presentation of the financial statements

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financiai Reporting
Standards that have been endorsed by the European Union

The Strategic Report, as set out from the inside front cover through to page 46, has been approved by the board

By order of the board

Bronagh Kennedy

Group General Counsel and Company Secretary
21 May 2015

Strategic report 49




SEVERN TRENT_AR15

Chairman’s letter

UK Corporate Governance Code Compllance Statement

The version of the Cosporate Covemance Code applicable to the current reporting period is the September 2012 UK Corporate Governance
Code (Govermnance Code) The Governance Code is avallable on the Financial Reporting Council's website {(www frc org uk)

For the whole of the financial year ended 31 March 2015, Severn Trent was comphant with the Governance Code, except that the adequacy of
arrangements in relation to the company’s whistleblowing procedures falls within the remit of the Corporate Responsibility {CR) Committee,
rather than the Audit Commttee The CR Commuttee’s remit 1s to deal with any allegations from employees retating to any breaches under
Sevem Trent's Code of Conduct The Audit Committee reviews reports of matters ansing in respect of financial or internal cantrol matters from
the company's whistleblowing procedures and the company's procedures for preventing and detecting fraud and bribery, and receives reports
on non-compliance

The board considers that these amangements are appropnate

Andrew Duff

Dear shareholder

| am pleased to introduce the Governance Report for 2015 on behalf of your board My role, together with the
board, Is to ensure that Severn Trent operates to the highest standards of corporate governance to effectively and
efficiently deliver the group’s strategic objectives and to meet its obligabions to the company's stakeholders
Ultimately, good governance requires that the board has access to imely, relevant and robust information, so tt
can run the business effectively and promote the long term success of the company in the best interest of all
stakeholders

The Annual Report remains the pnncipal means of reporting to cur sharehaolders on the board’s governance
policies and therefore | welcome this opportunity to set out how the main and supporting principles of good
corporate governance, as set oul In the UK Corporate Governance Code (Governance Code), have been applied
in practice

During the year the Severn Trent Charter of Expectations was introduced to ensure best practice corporate
governance throughout the business Iin line with the group’s culture, values and behavtour [n furn, we have also
overseen a review of our Code of Conduct, ‘Doing the nght thing — the Severn Trent way', across our businesses
and reviewed our supporting group pohcies and our behaviours model. Further details of these can be found on

our website (www severntrent com}

This report marks the end of the first year of Liv Garfield as Chief Executive Officer The board has continued to
support her approach to the business with key strategic changes to both the board and Executive Committee
taking place in the past 12 months, which are outhned in this report

The planned retirement from the board of two long serving directors duning the year gave us the opportunity to
think carefully about the composition and size of our board going forward We decided that a smaller board would
enable us to be more nimble in a changing, more competitive regulatory environment We have therefore reduced
the board from eleven directors to eight

Richard Davey stepped down as a non-executive director, having served nine years and was succeeded by
Martin Lamb as Senior Independent Director and by Philip Remnant as Charrman of the Remuneration
Committee After almost ten years in post, Michael McKeon retired as Chief Financial Officer and was succeeded

by James Bowling

Govearnance
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Dr Tony Ballance, Martin Kane and Andy Smith retired from the board, but have remained key members of the
Executive Commuttee,

The board would like to thank Richard, Michael, Tony, Martin and Andy for their commitment, service and
contnbution over many years

| firmly believe that we will continue to deliver value and achieve sustanable growth for our company through the
successful mix of good governance, a clear strategy with a suppoerting business plan, effective nsk management
and a strong orgarisational structure 1n place to execute it

Andrew Duff
Chairman

Governance
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Governance report

Group Authorisation Arrangements

The Group Authonisation Arrangements {GAA) are the framework through which the Severn Trent Plc board
authorises the nght people, at the right level, to take important decisions as we manage legal, financial and
admunistrative 1ssuas throughout the group The GAA are designed to facilitate good control, effictent decision-
making and demanstrable comphance These arrangements are reviewed annually, with the last review
undertaken in March 2015

The flow of authorty 1s from the Severn Trent Pic board to the Chief Executive and the Severn Trent Executive
Commuittee [n respect of certain issues, the delegated authonty 1s subject to an obhgation to work with specialist
business services areas (such as Tax, Treasury, Group Finance and Company Secretanat), which pravide
additional expertise and a group-wide perspective

Governance of subsidiaries

The membership of the board of the listed company, Severn Trent Plc, 15 the same as that of its regulated
subsidiary, Severn Trent Water Limited This structure was implemented in 2007 to ensure that the highest
standards of corporate governance were applied at the regulated subsidiary level and to promulgate greater
visibity and supervision of Severn Trent Water Limited by the Pic board Severn Trent Water Limited will
tharefore be voluntarily complying with the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code (the Governance Code) to
ensure these high standards also apply to it

The two companies operate as distinct legal entiies The boards comply with the Severn Trent Ple Board
Governance document and the Severn Trent Water Limited Matters Reserved to the board They are assisted
through the management of separate agendas, meetings and minutes by the Company Secretanat and advised in
their meetings by the Company Secretary where appropriate

Subsidiary company boards are required to be managed scrupulously with respect to legal, fiscal and
admnistrative matters In particular, the relationships between Severn Trent Water Limited and our other
businesses such as Severn Trent Business Services are monitored and controlled to ensure that our obligations
under competton law and regulatory requirements are complied with n respect of all transactions between them,

or with third parties

Thrs Corporate Governance report describes the manner in which the company has applied the principles set out
in the Governance Code during the year The Governance Code sets out five key principles Leadership,
Effectiveness, Accountability, Remuneration and Relations with shareholders This report demonstrates how the
company has applied best practice corporate governance in these key areas

Leadership

Charter of Expectations

Dunng the year the Severn Trent Charter of Expectations has been adopted to promote and implement best practice corporate
govemance The Charter sets out the role profiles and expeciations of alf key positions on the group’s boards (together
referred to as the ‘board’), and board committees, and also reflects the board's responsibilty for setting the tone for the group's

culture, values and behaviour

It 1s envisaged that having such expectations clearly documented will assist in the assessment of the effectiveness of the
board and its committees, and that of indmvidual directors

The Charter of Expectations is published and available on our website (www sevemtrent com) so that there is complets
transparency of the standards we set ourselves for all of our stakeholders

The performance of the board and board committees and of each director will be measured against these expectations

Governance
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Board membership

2014/15 saw a number of changes to the board's composition due to carefully managed succession planning and evaluation of
its required skills and capabilites As a consequence, il was announcad that the board would be reduced from eleven to eight
directors, with effect from 23 January 2015

Richard Davey stepped down as non-executtve director, having served nine years and was succeeded as Semor Independent
Director by Martin Lamb who has been on the board for six years and by The Hon Philip Remnant as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committes Michael McKecn ceased to be a director and Chief Financial Officer on 1 Apnl 2015 having served
almost ten years Michae! was succeeded by James Bowling effective the same date

Dr Tony Ballance, Martin Kane and Andy Smith retired from the board, but remained members of the Severn Trent Executive
Commuttes and retained therr executive respensitniies (n thew areas of remit.

The board would hke to thank Richard, Michael, Tony, Mertin and Andy for therr service

These changes will support the effectiveness of the board with an appropnate balance of iInnovation, expenence,
independenca and challenge to ensure effectiva decision making

Photographs of the members of the board, together with therr biographies and a descnpbon of the complementary skills and
diverse expenence that they bring to bear, can be found on pages 48 and 48

In accordance with the Govermnance Code, all the directors wili retire at this year's Annual General Meeting (AGM) and submit
themsaeives for electicn or re«glection by the shareholders

Details of our policy on diversity in the baardroom are provided in the Nominations Commitiee report on pages 61 and 62

Reporting obligations
As a public listed company, the company Is required to comply with a range of reporting obligations set out by law
and regulation

The company recognises the importance of effective communication as a key part of buillding shareholder value
and that, to prosper and achieve growth, it must earn the trust of secunty holders, employees, customers,
supplers, communities, regulators and other stakeholders, by being open in its communications and consistently
delivering on its commitments

The company announces its results on a half yearly basis and also provides quarterly trading updates to the
market

The Chief Executive has established a Disclosure Commuttee, chaired by the Chief Financial Officer, to oversee
the company's comphance with its disclosure obligations and to consider the matenality, accuracy, reliability and
timetiness of information disclosed The committee also oversees the delivery of an integrated plan incorporating
all elements of the year end repotting process, namely the group’s preliminary results announcement and Report
and Accounts, the company's AGM, the statutory and regulatory accounts of Sevemn Trent Water Limited, the
Annual Regulatory Compliance Statement and the Annual Regulatory Performance Report
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Role of the Chairman

The role of Andrew Duff, your Chairman, is to lead a uritary board, faciitating the contnbution of ts members at its meetings,
and to be responsible for ensunng that the management and processes of the board are maintamed in line with the Code of
Conduct and the Charter of Expectations

Agendas for board maetings are agreed by the Chaiman in consultation with the Chief Execubve, the Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary, although any director may request that an item be added to the agenda The Chaiman demonstrates
effective and ethical leadership for the company, and has authonty to act and speak for the board between its meetings,
including engaging with the Chief Executive, and providing support and advice where appropnate He reports to the board and
committee Chatrmen on decisions and achons taken between meetings of the board and ensures effective working relations
with open lines of communication with other group exaecutive committee members He also meets with the non-executive
directors without the executive directors present, to consider the performance of the executive directors, to maintain the
necessaty depth and breadth of knowiedge and skills to ensure the effectiveness of the board as a team

The Chairman maintains effective communication with shargholders and other stakeholders by meeting with them in person fo
ensure the board maintains an understanding of the views of major investors and other key siakeholders, whilst promoting

highest standards of corporate governance

Senior Independent Non-executive Director

Martin Lamb replaced Richard Davey as your Semor Independent Non-executive Director with effect from 23 January 2015
Martin is a member of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominatons Commttees. The board has agreed that Martin will act as
Chairman of the board in the event that the Chairman is unable to do so for any reason The Semor Independent Director
supports the Chaimman tn the delivery of his objactives and ensures that the views of all major shareholders and stakeholders
are conveyed to the directors, to help develop an understanding of any key 1ssues and concerns He 1s available to all
shareholders should they have any concems, if the normal channels of Chairman, Chief Executive or Chief Financial Officer
have failed to resolve them or for which such contact is inappropnate

The Senior Independent Director meets with non-executive dwectors, without the Chairman present, at least annually, and
taking into account the views of the executive directors, leads the non-executive directors in the ongoing monitonng and
evaluation of the performance of the Chairman, including communicating the results of such

Together with the Nominations Commutiee, he takes responsibility for ensunng that an orderly succession planning process ts
in place, In relation to both the role of the Chairman and the board in general

Non-executive directors

Your non-executive directors are appotnted to the board to contribute thefr independent axtemnal expertise and expenence in
areas of imporiance to the group Their competencies include corporate finance, including mergers and acquisitions, general
finance, corporate strategy, customer care, property, environmental and technology matters, engineering, regulation, general
management, transformational change, science, regulatory compliance and supply chain management They also provide
independent challenge and rigour fo the board's defiberations and are encouraged to make independent assessments of the
group's competencies The non-execubve directors, led by the Senior Independent Non-executive Director, meet without the
Chairman at least once a year for them to appraise the Charman’s performance and they have other meelings dunng the year
without executive directors present

As part of the board effectiveness review, the board has reviewed the status of the non-executive directors and considers them
all to be mdependent in character and judgement as defined by the Govemance Code

Govarnance
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Formal schedule of matters reserved for the board

The processes In place regarding the board's tasks and activities and the matters specifically reserved for the
board’s dectsion making, the role of and the authority delegated to the Chief Executive, the accountability of the
Chief Executive for that authonty, and guidance on managing the relationship between the board and the Chief
Executive are documented In addition to these processes, we have adopted the Severn Trent Charter of
Expsectations to ensure best practice corporate governance throughout the business

These processes are reviewed annually

The board has reserved the following for its own consideration
« Strategy and Management

s Structure and Capital

= Fmnancial Reporting and Controls

* Internal Controls

s Contracts and Policies

» Board Membership and other appointments, including the appointment of the Chief Executive, directors and
the Company Secretary

s Remuneration

= Delegation of Authority including the Group Authenisation Arrangements (GAA) which sets out the group's
delegated approval imits

¢ The approval or adophon cf documents, including the Annual Report and Accounts, required to be made by
the board by the company's GAA, constitutional documents, statute or external regulation

Chief Executive

Responsibility has been delegated to the Chief Executive to develop and implement the group's strategy and overall
commercial objectives The non-executive directors, led by the Chaiman, appraise the Chief Executive's performance
annually Liv Garfield is empowaered to take ali decisrons and actions that further the company’s strategy and policies and
which 1n her judgement are reasonable, having regard to the imits which apply to her role as Chief Executive, as set out in the
company’s Group Authonsation Arrangements (GAA) She will ensure a continual dialogue with the Chairman on the strategic
1ssues facing the group including forthcoming complex, contenticus or sensihive issues which may affect the group, of which
the Chairman mught not be aware The Chief Executive 1s required to promote and conduct the affars of the group with the
highest standards of integnty, probity and corporate governance

Executive directors

The executive directors support the Chief Executive in effectively leading Severn Trent towards the achievement of its strategic
objectives and implement the strategy decisions taken by the board They are committed to doing this in a responsible way
which takes account of commitment to our Code of Canduct, the long term sustainable and responsible stewardship of the
business and the delivery of an outstanding customer experience, the best value service and environmental leadership This
year saw our number of executive directors reduce from five to two, with Tony Ballance, Martin Kane and Andy Smith stepping
down, allowing for a shmmer board structure

Role of the Company Secretary

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, Bronagh Kennedy, and the Company
Secretanat team Bronagh 1s responsible for ensunng that the board operates in accordance with the governance framework it
has adopted and that there 1s an effectve flow of infformation to the board and its committees and between senior
management and the non-executive directors
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The appointment and resignation of the Company Secretary 13 a matter for consideration by the board as a whole

Independent advice
Directors have access to independent prefessional advice at the company’s expense on any matter relating to their
responstbilities

Terms and conditions of appointment

The terms and conditions of appointment of the directors are available for inspection by any person at the
company'’s registered office during normal business hours They will also be made available before and dunng the
AGM

Effectiveness

Board meetings
There are regularly scheduled meetings of the board and of its parmanent committees throughout the year and any additional
meetings and ad hoc committee meetings are convened as and when required

Papers, including ninutes of board and Executive Committees held since the previous board meeting and parformance
reports, are circulated approximately a week in advance of each meeting

Thera 1s a documented procedure in place which allows directors to take indapendent professional advice in the course of therr
dutles and all directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary If a director has a concern over any
unresolved matter he or she may require the Company Secretary to minute that concern

The chart opposite shows how the board has spent its time at scheduled board meetings The board's agenda is normally

structured as follows

¢ Standing ltems — regular reports from the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer on the operational and
financial performance of the business, regulatory matters and external affairs and from the Company
Secretary on governance 1ssues

« Non Standing ltems - Strategic Discussion Topics and ad hoc matters requiring approval, discussion or
noting by the board

The board monitors the performance of Severn Trent Water Limited and Severn Trent Business Servicas at every meeting and

receives monthly updates on performance against the KPls and ODls stated on pages 10 and 11 of the Strategic report The

board also regularly discusses reports on capital efficiency The board monitors governance matters and developments in bast

practice through the Governance raport provided by the Company Secretary, a standing item on the board agenda The board

also formally reviews compliance with the Govemance Code on an annual basis and reviews conflicts and other ansing

disclosure requirements bi-annually

As part of its annual work plan, the board reviewed and approved all financial results announcements, the Annual Report and
Accounts, the PR14 Five Year Plan and dividend payments and all changes to the composition of the board and its
committeas

Duning the year, seven board meetings were held, with the attendance figures of these meetings detalled below ‘

Director Meetings attended

Andrew Duff 7 ‘
Tony Ballance 6/6

John Coghlan* 77

Richard Davey 6/6
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Director Meetings attended

Gordon Fryett 77
Liv Garfield 7/7
Martin Kare 6/6
Martin Lamb 7I7
Michael McKeon 77
Baroness Npoakes™ 6/7
Andy Smith 6/6
Pr Angela Strank 77

* John Coghlan was appointed at the May 2014 board meeting

** Apologies were given by Baroness Noakes at the July board meeting Baroness Noakes retired following the
July 2014 meeting

The above figures take into account board changes detailed in this Annual Report and Accounts

Board committee meetings 2014/15
There were three committee meetings of the board convened throughout the year to consider such matters as
Severn Trent Pic's preliminary and interim results and intenm management statements

Board Strategy Day and Preparation for PR14

In addibion 1o formal meetings, the board attended a full day strategy session in November 2014, where the board and
Executive Committes together considered the areas of future value creation across the Sevem Trent group Key areas of
discussions included the delivery model for AMP6, developments following recent legislative changes in the Water Act 2014
and how the company should respond, innovabon and external matters impacting the company and s strategic options for
future growth

Board committees

The four permanent committess of the board assist in the exacution of its responsibilties and the board has delegated some of
its responsibiliies to those board committees The committees assist the board by fulfiling their roles and responsibilities,
focusfng on their specific activities, reporting to the board on decisions and actions taken, and making any necessary
recommendations In line with their terms of reference The effectrveness of each of the committees has been reviewsd dunng
the year as part of the externally factlitated board review The terms of reference of each committee have also been uprated to
take account of best practice as part of their annual review.

The terms of refarence of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominations Commuittaes comply with the provisions of the
Governance Code, except as reported on page 47, and are available for inspection, together with the terms of reference of the
Corporate Responsibiity Commiitee, on our website (www sevemtrent com) or may be obtalned on request from the Company
Secretary

Reports from the Chairs of these committees are set out on pages 61 to 65 and 89 to 85 of this report
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Treasury Committeo

In March 2015 the hoard approved the establishment of a new permanent committee of the board, the Treasury Commitiee, to
provide oversight of treasury activities in implementing the policies and the funding and treasury nsk management plan
approved by the board, Including inter alia the measurement and management of interest rate, funding, counterparty credit,
iquidity and operational nsks; funding proposals, relationship with rating agencies, debt investor relations, bank relationship
management and treasury intermnal controls The committee will review and approve the Group Treasury Policy Statements, at
least annually, and present an annual report to the board n relation to its actvities

Training and development

Induction |
On joining the board, a director’'s induction needs are evaluated and then they are provided with @ comprehensive and

personalised induction pack which includes information on cur business, key operations and processes, how we are regulated,

how we are shaping future regulation, strategic plans, financial reports, business plans and information on our governance

framework and directors’ roles and responsibilihes and legal and regulatory dutes

Meetings are arranged with members of the executive management team and with external advisors who provide support to

the relevant board committeas on which the directors may serve Visits {o operational and office sites across the group and
management presentations are also arranged for directors joining the board and subsequently throughout the year

These arrangements have been followed for the induction of James Bowling, pnor to him joining the board on 1 Apnl 2015,
and John Coghlan following his appointment to the board on 23 May 2014

Directors’ resource library

An online directors’ resource ibrary and Continuing Professional Development (CPD) repository has been created for use by
the directors, which 1s subject to penodic reviews and updates where appropnate The library includes a Corporate
Govermnance Manual, a Results Centre and Investor Relatons section, Strategy Day materials and details of board training
sessiong |t also includes a further reading section which contains regular updates and guidance on changes to legisiation and
best practice

Continuing Professional Development

All directors recelve updates throughout the year on matters such as changes to best practice governance guidelnes The
directors aiso have access to professional development provided by external bedies and our advisors CPD requirements were
considared, through mdividual review mestings between the Chairman and each direcior, as part of the board effectiveness
review in 2014/15 and remain an integrai part of the development of our directors

Board Effectiveness Review

The effactiveness of the board 1s reviewed annually and an independent extemally facilitated review of the effectiveneass of the
board 1s conducted avery three years The board therefore conducted an externally faciitated board effectiveness evaluation
this year, the last having taken place in November 201

In September 2014 a rangse of potential providers were 1dentified and it was agreed that the evaluation exercise should be
faciitated by Manchester Square Partners (MSP) MSP has no other connection with the company

MSP provided a questionnaire to explare the board’s approach to -

« Strategy

s Challenges and rnisks

e Values and culture

¢ Role of the board, board dynamics and engagement

» Structure of the board, its composition and succession planning
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+ Governance and leadership

This was supplemented by a review of histonc board papers and individual face-to-face interviews with all board directors, the
former Senior Independent Director, Richard Davey and the Company Secretary.

The Chaman also discussed the contnbution of directors with each of them in person and the Senior Independent Director
conducted an evaluation of the Chairman with the assistance of tha non-executive diractors,

The subsequent report prepared by MSP was discussed by the Nominations Commitiee i iis consideratron of the re-election
of directors and it was also the subject of a presentation to the board

The report concluded that -

» There was a strong level of cansistency on the key purpose, role and focus areas for the board, which was
hard working, fully committed and engaged

* There was areal openness and quality of debate at board meetings

« Board structures and processes were efficient, effective and thorough, Committees were well charred,
operating well and had good linkage to the board

Areas for further focus were -

= Allocation of agenda tme to agreed key strategic priorities

= Mentoring, talent management and succession planning below Executive Committee level

- Enhance KPIs to reflect risks and operational performance against new AMP6 Regulatory Reguirements

Code of Conduct principles

Working relationships:

¢ Keeping everyone healthy and safe

e Supporting employees’ rights and diversity
Personal and business integrity

* Maintaining ethical and honest behaviour

+ Staying free from bribery and corruption

« Keeping our communications open and responsible
+ Delivenng excellent customer service

OQur place in the world
»  Worling within the community

» Protecting our environment
« Standing up for what's nght
s In all our hands

‘Doing the right thing - the Severn Trent way’ details the pnnciples we work by You can view our Code of
Conduct by visiting

http*/iwww sevemtrent com/about-us/corporate-governance/code-of-conduct
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Accountability

Code of Conduct: ‘Doling the right thing — The Severn Trent way’

Every day Severn Trent employees have to make choices about what they do and how they do it. Most of the time it is clear
what the nght thing ta do 13, whether it 15 about doing what 1s safe, doing the nght thing for customers, doing what 1s nght
ethically, and indeed what is nght legally

However, sometimes it is not so clear ‘Doing the nght thing — The Severn Trent way' details the pnnciples we work by This is
our Code of Conduct and explains who we are, what we stand for and how we work. it also tells our customers, investors and
business partners that they can trust and rely on us These principles apply to everyone i Severn Trent’s businesses, no
matter where in the world they are based or what they do They provide a common and consistent framework for responsible
business practices and set out the standards we need to follow m our day-to-day activites

Dunng the year we have continued to roll out the Code of Conduct across the group to make sure that everyone in the
business understands what it 15 all about and upholds our ethical standards All employees are provided with a copy in their
local language as part of their induchon Tramning sessions are made available and all teams have been encouraged to discuss

it through regular communication exercises

We have also centinued 1o roll out our Code of Conduct into our supply chain, as explained in the Corporate Responsibility
report on pages 66 to 68.

Policies
The Code of Conduct 1s supported by our group policies and our behaviours model Further details of these can be found on
our website (www saverntrent com) Dunng the year, we have completed the annual review of the policies and our behawiours

model to ensure they are fit for purpose

Independence
The board considers each of the non-executive directors, seeking re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
{AGM), to be independent in character and judgernent

Interests
No director had a material interest at any ttme dunng tha year in any contract of significance with the company or any of its
subsidiary undertakings

Conflicts of interest

The board has a full documented process In place to authorise situational conflicts in accordance with the prowvisions of the
Companies Act 2008 and under the Company's Articles of Assoclation An annual review of conflicts is carnied out with a
simultaneous review of the Severn Trent Gifts and Hospitahty Register, and is incorporated into tha year end process of
venfying directors’ interests Half yearly reports are also made to the board of all directors’ conflicts and directors are reminded
of their obligations to disclose any potential conflicts

At the baginning of e;/ery board meeting there is a standing agenda item to consider and discuss whether any potential conflict
ewsts If it does then the relevant director does not attend the meeting when that item 1s discussed.

During the 2014/15 financial year, the Nominations Committee discussed the proposed management of the situational confhict
created by Marlin Lamb’s Charrmanship of Evoqua Water Technologies Given the benefits of Martin Lamb's valuable
contnbution to the board as a recently retired Chief Executive and the relative insignificance of the Business Sernvices Water
Punfication business ('WP’) in the context of the group as a whole, the committee considered that it could recommend
authonsation of the conflict and the proposed means of management by the board, provided such was made transparent and
kept under regular review 10 ensure that the board’s effectiveness was not compromised The management of the conflict
through redachon of papers and his absence from discussions on WP specific matters was also adopted by the Audit
Committee in relation to his membership of such, in March 2015,

With the disposal of the Water Purification business, which was announced on 13 May 2015, this will no longer be necessary
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Relations with shareholders

Retail shareholder engagement strategy
The board has an active sharsholder engagement strategy, the main elements of which are set out below

The Annual Report and Accounts s the principal means of communieating with shareholders The group has adopted e-
communications as an alternative method of sending company infermation In March 2015 shareholders were re-consulted as
to their preferred method of recesving company communications Following the consultation 54,417 shareholders (88%)
receive confirmation that the Annual Report 12 available to view onling, whilst 7,494 (21%) continue to receive a hard copy

Our website (www severntrent com) contains an archive of annual reports together wath other information relevant to investors
Ths includes comprehensive share pnce information, financial results, company news and financial calendars The company

offers a Dvidend Reinvestment Plan (DRIP) Detatls of the DRIP are available on our website and the websits of Equiniti, our
registrar

Institutional shareholders and analysts

The board recognises the importance of representing and promoting the interests of its shareholders and that it 1s accountable
to shareholders for the performance and activiies of the company and vanous mechanisms have been put in place to ensure it
remarns in touch with key activitres and developments, including

+ Monthly update of the key shareholder engagement actvities carried out by the Executive Committee and the
Investor Relations team,

« A monthly report, provided by Makinson Cowell, of our shareholder register, outlining the significant buyers
and sellers of Severn Trent shares, and

« Regular summartes of sector research notes, allowing shareholders to understand the key opinions being
communicated to investors by analysts

Presentations are made to shareholders and analysts following the release of the interim and year end results The Chief
Executive and Chief Financial Officer regularly meet shareholders dunng the year. The Chaimian and Martin Lamb, the Senior
Indepencent Non-executlve Director, have also met with eshareholders separately from executive directors in March 2015 All
major shareholders were offered a meeting and those who requested one were accommodated. The Chairman and Martin
Lamb were avalable to meet shareholders at their request throughout the year The board receves wntten feedback from
Makinson Cowell following meetings with institutional shareholders and monrters shareholder activity on a quarterly basis at Hg
meetings

“The Culture of the organisation Is one that is wiiling to listen and to engage - they are availahle if you need them.”

Communication with Institutional shareholders and the market

We are committed to serving the needs of our institutional investors and have an exiensive programme of events designed to
give them access to key senior management and our Investor Relations team The following table summanses some of the
man events of our engagement programme dunng 2014/15 The events were usually attended by the Chief Executive, the
Chief Financial Officer and the Investor Relations team and compnsed roadshows in the regions where our key Investors are
situated, such as the UK, Europe and North America, as well as various conferences to meet with a wide range of institutional
investors In addition to these events, the Chief Executive, the Chief Financial Officer and the Investor Relations team also
attended numerous ad hoc meetings with key investors over the course of the year.
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Events in 2014/15

May/June London Roadshow

June Bank of Amenca Memll Lynch Utilites Conference
June Brean Capital Global Resources and Infrastructure Conference
Juna Gemany/Switzerland Roadshow

June North Amencan Roadshow

July Pnvate Client Roadshow — London

July Edinburgh Roadshow

September Morgan Stanley Power & Utility Summit
September Private Chent Roadshow — London

September Credit Suisse UK Utility Reverse Roadshow
November London Roadshow

February Dividend Roadshow

March North Amencan Roadshow

March Caprtal Markets Day

Our conversations with investors dunng 2014/15 have inevitably focused largely on Ofwat's PR14 review process and the
associated imphications of such for Sevem Trent Key concerns for investors included the changes to the weighted average
cost of capital, the introduction of Totex and ODls, opportunsties around our capital structure and discusstons with Ofwat
regarding our proposed investment in the Elan Valley Aqueduct. Other key areas of interest for investors have been the Water
Bill and the upcoming changes to the regulatory framework, including water trading and the potential for future mergers, as
well as the appointmant of the new Chief Executive, Liv Garfield, and her plans for the business

Dunng the year, the Investor Relations section of the Severmn Trent Plc website was updated The aim of this was to improve
navigation around the different areas, make it more intuitive and easier for investors to find the information they were looking
for, as wall as providing additional content

Capltal Markets Day

A kay event in our ttmetable this year was our Capital Markets Day, held on 17 March 2015 This followed the receipt of cur
Final Detarmination on 12 December 2014, which set out Severn Trent Water Limuted’s allowed returns, expenditure and
performance commitments for the next five year pencd from 2015-2020 {AMP 6} and the subsequent announcement of our
dividend policy The purpose of the day was to set out our strategy for the next five years and outline the plans being put in
place to enable us to mest the requirements set out in our Final Determination On the day, 70 of our key investors and
analysts travelled to Severn Trent Centre in Coventry The day’s agenda included presentations from key management
personnel, covering financials, operational performance, regulatory reform and our customer focus, as well as demonstrations
of some of the key mmhatives being implemeanted, such as the roll out of new digital devices to employees In the field The day
concluded with site tours of two strategically Important sites, Minworth Sewage Treatment Works and our recently cpened food
waste digestion plant in Coleshill

Members of the Water Forum
Members of the Water Forum comprise those with a statutory remit or key interest in the water industry

The Water Forum 1s made up of mne orgamsations who represent our customers or have a stake in what we do
Membership 1s currently under review
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Organisation
CBIl West Midlands

Natural England

National Farmers Union

Citizens Advice Bureau — Coventry
East Midlands Councils
Environment Agency

Drinking Water Inspectorate
Scothish and Southern Energy
Consumer Council for Water

Customer engagement

As PR14 reached s concluding stages this year, we continued to engage with the Sevem Trent Water Forum The Forum 1s a
multistakeholder group, independently charred by Professor Bemard Crump of Consumar Council for Water, estabhished to
challenge the development of Severn Trent Water Limited's business plan for 2015-2020 to ensure that it takes into account
our customers’ prionties Members of the Forum compnse those with a statutory remit or key interest in the water industry The
Forum i1s made up of nine organisations who represent our customers or have a stake in what we do

The Ferum met six times over the course of the year and discussed a range of 1ssues including our proposals to improve the
rasthence of water supphes to Birmingham, the development of an expanded range of support for custorners who are
strugghng to pay, and our proposals to improve nver water quality in our region

The Forum submitied two reports to Ofwat dunng the year setting out its independent views of these and other issues Both
reports are avallable at sevemntrent com/waterforum

Following Sevemn Trent Water Limited's acceptance on 28 January 2015 of the Ofwat Final Determination, the role and
membership of the Forum dunng AMP6 1s under review

Voice of the Customer programme

We take seriously the voice of every indmdual customer We have launched a new SMS text survey so that af! customers that
contact us are sent a survey by text for them to rate how we performed. This may relate {0 a call to our contact centre or an
incident in the field By listening to what our customers say about the service we provide, we are able to give real time Insights
to our agents In the contact centre and also to our colleagues in the field We then call back every customer who scores us 1,
2 or 3 out of & for our service (1 baing low, 5 being high) By doing this we can seek to understand the reason for the score,
the situation that the customer Is expenencing and resolve 1t for them Our resoluttons team who conduct these calls also look
at the root cause and make sustainable changes to our business

Looking ahead to 2015/16

Loaking forward to 2015/16, we expect to see our extensive programme of investor events contnuing The early part of the
year will be dominated by the start of the new regulatory penod, with investors keen to understand how well our plans and
strategy are being implemented as well as how well we are performing under the revised regulatory regime The departure of
our former Chief Financial Officer, Michael McKeon, and the appointment of James Bowling on 1 Apni 2015 to replace him, will
also be of key interest to our investors Our programme of roadshows 1s expected to be maintained, and we intend to contnue
to wisit our key investors in Eurape and North Amenica, as well as those in the UK.
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Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the company will be held at the Intemational Convention Centre, Broad Street,
Birmmingham B1 2EA at 11am on Wednesday 15 July 2015

Presentations are made on the group’s activities and performance during the year pror to the formal business of the meeting
The Chalrs of the Audit, Corporate Responsibility, Remuneration and Nominations Committees, tagether with all other
diractors, attend the AGM,

The AGM gives sharsholders an opportunity to feed back to the company on performance, management and the way we work
in a very direct fashion, through the questions they ask Shareholders often also meet informally with directors and sentor
management before and after the meeting

The board encourages shareholders to attend the company’s AGM and to exercise their night to vote The notice of meeting
and related papers are sent to sharehoiders at least 20 working days before the meeting Separate resoluttons are proposed
on each substantially separate 1ssue The poll resuits from the 2015 AGM will be made available on our website after the
meeting

VIEW ONLINE

Our online Annual Report and Accounts
Easier, greener and only a click away

We're always looking to make Iife easier Our online Annual Report 1s designed to help you read the information
that matters to you, wherever you may be, whether on the move or at your desktop It reduces our paper use too,
which i1s kinder to the environment We hope you hke it

www severntrent com/AR2015
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Nominations Committee
Andrew Duff

Chairman of the Nominatlons Committee

This report provides details of the role of the Nominations Committee and the work it has undertaken durning the
year The main purpose of the committee Is to assist the board by keeping the composition of the board under
proactive review and conducting a ngorous and transparent process when making or renewing appointments of
directors to the board It also advises the board on issues of directors’ conflicts of interest and independence
matters that may anse The full terms of reference for the committee can be found on our website

(www severntrent com) and are also available from the Company Secretary

Succession planning

When considering new appcintments {o the board, the committee oversees the preparation of a role specrfication
that 1s provided to an independent recruitment crganisation retained to conduct a giobal search In addition to the
specific skills, knowledge and expernence deemed necessary, the specification contains cntena such as

s aproven track record of creating shareholder value,

s unguestioned integrity and a diversity of psychological mindset,
s acommitment to the highest standards of governance,

+ having the required time available to devote to the job,

¢ astrategic mindset, an awareness of market leadership and outstanding monitering skills,
s g preparedness to question, challenge and openly assess, and
« an independent point of view

Duning the year the committee considered:

« Succession planning for the board and board committees

s The board's diversity policy

¢ Talent management

s Effectiveness of the board committees

¢ Re-election of directors for the AGM

Attendance at scheduled committee meetings:

During the year, there were three scheduled meetings of the Nominations Committee The attendance figures for
these meetings are detailed below

Director Meetings attended
Andrew Duff 3/3
John Coghlan * 313
Richard Davey ** 2/3
Gordon Fryett 313
Liv Garfield *™ 2/2
Martin Lamb 33
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Director Meetings attended
Philip Remnant 313
Dr Angela Strank 3713

* John Coghlan was appointed as a member of the Nominations Committee in May 2014
** Richard Davey retired as a director on 23 January 2015
*** Liv Garfield stepped down as a member of the Nominations Committee in October 2014,

Baroness Noakes was unable to attend the meeting 1n July and sent her apologies Subsequently, Baroness
Noakes retired as a member of the Committee in July 2014

The committee keeps under review the balance of skills on the board and the knowledge, experience, length of
service and performance of the directors It also reviews their external interests with a view to identifying any
actual, perceived or potential conflicts of interest, including the time avaitable to commit to therr duties to the
company The results of these reviews are important when the board considers succession planning, the
effectiveness of the board and ifs cornmittees and the election and reappointment of directors Members of the
committee take no part in any discussions concerning their own circumstances

The members of the commiftee in 2014/15 were the non-executive directars of the board Liv Garfield stepped
down as a member as of October 2014, and Richard Davey retired as director as at 23 January 2015

in accordance with the Governance Code, the succession planning and searches in respect of the appointments
of Liv Garfield, effective 11 Aprll 2014, and John Coghlan, effective 23 May 2014, dunng the year under review,
were disclosed in the Nominations Commitiee Report in the Annual Report and Accounts for 2014

The commuttee initiated a process to search for a new Chuef Financial Officer following Michael McKeon's
indication to the board of his desire to retire Russell Reynolds was appointed as an advisor and was provided
with a role specification and a detailed brief of the desired candidate profile The committee considered a list of
potential candidates and those shortlisted were interviewed by members of the board Michae! McKeon took no
part in any meetings refating to his succession

Following this process, the board accepted the committee's recommendation that James Bowling join the board
as Chief Financial Officer with effect from 1 Apnl 2015

In accordance with the requirements of the Governance Code, all members of the board will seek election or re-
election at the AGM on 15 July 2015 In April 2015, the committee formally reviewed the performance, contribution
and commitment of each of the directors retinng at this year's AGM and seeking reappointment, and supported
and recommended their reappointment to the board The committee confirmed that each director continues to
perform well, on both an individual and collective basis, making a valuable contribution to the board's deliberations
and demonstrating commitment to the long term interests of the company

The committee also supported and recommended the elechon of the newly appainted directors, as detailed on
page 50 The appointment of these new executive and non-executive directors brings a wealth of new skills and
experience to the board and benefits from a signficant investment of the committee in planning and executing the
SuUCCessIon process
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Diversity

Further to the pubfication of the Davies Report, ‘Women on Boards', in February 2011 and its third annual
progress report in March 2014, boards of FTSE 350 companies have been encouraged to promote greater female
representation on corporate boards Guidance from the Financial Reporting Council has also lighlighted the
importance of greater diversity of psychological profile around the board table Severn Trent has recently
developed a Board Diversity Policy and recognises the importance of diversity in its broadest sense throughout its
organisation, including that of the board 25% of the board are now women, including the Chief Executive Even
more importantly, over 50% of the Executive Committee are now women However, Severn Trent is committed to
thcreasing diversity at all fevels of the company m all respects and not just gender

As stated above, the Nominations Commitiee reviews the board effectiveness and composition each year and, in
particular, considers the balance of skills, experience and independence of the board it alse considers

tha benefits of all aspects of diversity, but without compromise as to the calibre of directars, when identifying
candidates for appomtment.

The selection of female candidates to join the board, will therefore be made based on ment and the individual’'s
ability to contribute to the effectiveness of the board, which in turn will be dependent on the pool of female
candidates available

Severn Trent 1s seeking to build a diverse pool of future leaders and details of diversity inthatives being
undertaken are set out i the Corporate Responsibility Committee report on page 67

As and when board appointment opportunities arise, we make full use of the procedures recommended by the
Davies Report and by the Governance Code to support this aspiration All board appointments have been and will
continue to be based on ment and must be in the interests of all stakeholders

A breakdown by gender of the number of persons who were directors of the company, semor managers and other
employees as at 31 March 2015 15 set out opposite

As at 31 March 2015, we had 2 female members on our board of 8 (representing 25%) and 5 female members out
of 8 on the Executive Committee (representing 50%) As at the date of this report, there are 2 female members on
our board of 8 {representing 25%) and 5 female members out of 9 on the Executive Commuittee {representing
55%)

Andrew Duff

Chairman of the Nominations Committee
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Audit Commiittee

John Coghlan

Chairman of the Audit Committee

The committee assists the board in discharging its responsibilities for the integnity of the company's financial
staternents, the assessment of the effectiveness of the systerns of mternal controls and monitoring the
effectiveness and objectivity of the internal and external auditors it also oversees the assurance of regulatory
returns made by Severn Trent Water Limited to Ofwat The role and the responsibilities of the committee are set
out In wniten terms of reference These can be found on our website (www severntrent com) and are also

available from the Company Secretary
This report provides details of the role of the Audit Committee and the work it has undertaken durning the year

Composition of the Committee

The members of the committee during the year were John Coghtan as Charman, Richard Davey and Philip
Remnant, whose experience and backgrounds are set out on pages 48 and 49 Richard Davey stepped down on
23 January 2015 and Martin Lamb became a member on 23 January 2015

The board 1s satisfied that ail the comnuttee members have recent and relevant financial expenience and that all
members of the committee remain independent

Activities of the Committee

The members of the committee receive updates on financial reporiing and the group’s regulatory framework In
various forms throughout the year The Chairman, Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Director of Internal
Audit, Group Financial Controller and the external auditors normally attend, by invitation, all meetings of the
committee Other members of senior management are also invited to attend as appropnate. The committee
regularly holds private discussions with both the internal and external auditors.

In performing its duties, the commuttee has access to the services of the director of Internal Audit, the Company
Secretary and, if required, external professranal advisors

Key areas of focus in 201415
The committee reports to the subsequent meeting of the board on the commirttee’s work It met four tmes In
2014/15 and its work focused on the following key areas

+ financial statements and accounting policies,

+ risk management and internal controls,

¢ oversight of internal and external audit,

* regulatory reporting obligations of our subsidiary Severn Trent Water Limited, and
+ scrutinising the assurance process underpinning the PR14 subruission

The committee’s performance was included in the review of the Board Committee’s effectiveness referred to on
page 56
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Internal controls

Committee receves regular reports from Intemnal Audit and reviews management letters received from the external auditor

Identfies prncipal nsks and ralated contrals

Provides guidence to nsk owners on the board's tolerance for differant types of risk

Reviews the group's approach to cyber secunty and IT continuity

Rewiews the procedures, systems and controls designed to prevent and detect fraud and bribery

internal Audit

The Head of Intemal Audit and his team report on a day-to-day basts to the executive team

This work 15 summarised and reported to the committee on & regular basls

The Head of Internal Audit can raise any Issues with the committes or its Chairnan at any time during the year

Financial statements and accounting policies

The committee looked carefully at those aspects of the financial statements which required significant accounting
judgements or where there was estimation uncertainty These areas are explained in note 4 of the financial
statements on page 106 The committee receives detalled reports from both the Chief Financial Officer and the
external auditors on these areas and on any other matters which they believe should be drawn to the attention of
the committee The committee also reviews the draft of the external auditors’ report on the financial statements,
with particular reference to those matters reported as carrying nsks of matenal misstatement The committee
discusses the range of possible frealments both with management and with the external auditors and satisfies
itself that the judgements made by management are robust and should be supported The following areas were
the most important ones for 2014/15:

« restructunng costs relating te the business as a whole;

» the outcome of the triennial valuation of the pension scheme, the deficit calculation and the consistent
apphcation of appropriate assumptions,

+ the amount of the provistons held for tax liabilities and the calculation of current and deferred tax benefits n
relation to changes in industrial buildings allowances,

+ the proposed disclosure of materal tems of income or expenditure which met the criterta for classification as
exceptional tems, and

» the implications of and the proposed response to the new Financial Reporting Council reporting requirements
on going concern and viability statemants

The committee reviewed and challenged the evidence and assumptions underpinring the current use of the going
concern assumption 1n preparing the accounts and in making the statement made in the Directors’ report that the
company IS a going concern,

The committee reviewed the draft results announcements for intenm and full year results and the proposed
presentations {0 analysts and paid particular attention to the tone of the announcements and presentations to
consider their consistency with the financial statements

In reviewing the financial statements, the committee receves input from the Disclosure Committee, which is
chaired by the Chief Financial Cfficer.
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The Audit Commitlee reviewed the outcome of the process (established 1n 2014) to confirm that the report and
accounts are 'farr, batanced and understandable’ As last year, the Disclosure Committee undertook a detalled
review of the Annual Report and Accounts prior to making a recommendation that the board could make the fair,
balanced and understandable statements contained in the Directors’ responsibility statement on page 90 Deloitte
LLP (Deloitte) reported to the committee on its review of the half-year interim results and on its audit of the year

end financial statements

Internal controls
The committee receves regular reports from Internal Audit in respect of its work on the internal control framework
and reviews management letters receved from the external auditors

The committee reviewed the processes for and outputs from our Enterpnse Risk Management process, through
which the principal nsks and related controls are identified The committee discussed the approach to
documenting the board's nsk appetite and providing guidance to risk owners on the board's tolerance for different
types of nsk In addition, it momtored the ongoing development of our compliance and assurance processes in
respect of the key risks

The committee reviews the procedures, systems and contrels designed to prevent and detect fraud and bribery
and receives a log of mcidents of fraud or bribery every six months, which includes the actions taken to investigate
and respond to the incidents There were no materlal incidents during the year

The committee also reviewed the group’s approach to cyber security and IT continuity
Further details of our internal control framework can be found in the Directors’ report on page 88

internal Audit

The Head of Internal Audit and hrs team report on a day-fo-day basis to the executive team on the effectiveness of
the group's systems of internal controls and the adequacy of these systems to manage business risk and to
safeguard the group's assets and resources This work 1s summansed and reported to the committee on a regular
basis and 15 a key element of the assurance that the committee receives on the risks and controls in the group
The Head of Internal Audit ts free to raise any issues with the committee or its Chairman at any time duning the
year

The effectiveness of the Internal Audit function, the audit plan and budget are reviewed at least annually by the
committee.

Policy on the provision of non-audit services
The company has approved a formal policy on the provision of non-audit services aimed at safeguarding and
supporting the independence and objectivity of the external auditors

The policy sets out the approach to be taken by the group when using the services of the external auditors,
including requiring that certain services provided by the external auditors are pre-approved by the committee or its
Charrman

It defines the non-audit services that may be provided by the external auditors and separately sets out those non-
audit services which are prohibited, since the independence of the externzal auditors could be threatened

Non-audit services where the external auditors may be used include audit-related services required by statute or
regulatton, tax compliance, due diligence on acquisitions and disposals, services related to fraud, Corporate
Responsibility report reviews and regulatory support

The approval of the committee or its Chairman 1s always required If a non-audit service provided by the auditors is
expected to cost more than £100,000 or if non-audit fees for the year would exceed the amount of the audit fee
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External auditors

Deloitte audits all significant subsidianes of the group Annually, the committee reviews the external auditors' audit
plan and reviews and assesses information provided by them confirming therr independence and objectvity wathin
the context of applicable regutatory requirements and professional standards The committee also reviews their
effectiveness, which involves assessment of the auditors by the committee and key executives, and confirmation
that the auditors meet mimimum standards of qualification, independence, expertise, effectiveness and
communication These assessments are carmed out prior to the committee recommend:ng to the board that the
external auditors be proposed for reappointment at the AGM

Delaitte were appointed auditors of the company in 2005, pursuant to a competitive tender process and since
2005 the company has annually considered the need to re-tender the external audit service

The company i1s committed to complying with the provisions in the Governance Code in respect to audit tendering
along with the UK Competition and Markets Authority Order and the European Union rules on audit tenders As a
result, the committee will formally tender the external audit service during the 2015/16 financial year There are no
contractual obligations to restrict the committee’s choice of external auditors

The Audit Partner, currently Carl Hughes, 1s required to rotate after a maximum of five years, 2014/15 being his
last financial year The Audit Partner rotating in for the 2015/16 financial year 1s Kan Hale

Details of the amounts paid to Deloitte for audit and non-audit services are provided in note 7 to the accounts on
page 111

Severn Trent Water Limited

The regulated activities carmed out by Severn Trent Water Limited also require two annual reporting submissions
1o Ofwat which are reviewed by the commitiee an annual submission on Severn Trent Water Limited's regulatory
performance and obligations known as the Annual Regulatory Performance Report, together with the Annual
Regulatory Compliance Statement, and a statement that underpins the customer charges made by Severn Trent
Water Limited, known as the Principal Statement

In March 2015 the commitiee reviewed the process, timeline and assurance framework in place for the production
and submission of the Annual Regulatory Compliance Statement and the 2015/16 Pnncipzl Statement to Ofwat

Deloitte makes reports to Ofwat in respect of Severn Trent Water Limited’s regulatory accounts The Annual
Regulatory Performance Report, which provides an overall picture of company performance, covers many aspects
which are not financial and Severn Trent Water Limited appoints engineering consultants, Atkins, to report and
provide assurance on those aspects The committee receives reports from Atkins on their work as part of its

review of the Annual Regulatory Returns

Attendance at scheduled Committee meetings:
During the year, there were 4 scheduled meetings of the Audit Committee

The attendance figures are detailed below for these meetings

Director Meoetings attended
Philip Remnant 4/4
Barcness Noakes * M
John Coghian ** 3
Martn Lamb = M
Richard Davey ™" 343

Baroness Noakes retired as a member of the Audit Committee m July 2014

Governance




SEVERN TRENT_AR15

** John Coghlan was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee in May 2014.
*** Martin Lamb was apponted as a member of the Audit Commitiee on 28 January 2015
- Richard Davey refired as a member of the Audit Committee on 23 January 2015
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Corporate Responsibility Committee

Gordon Fryett

Chairman of the Corporate Responsibility Committee

The committee provides guidance and direction to the company’s Corporate Responsibility programme, reviews
the group’s key non financial nsks and opportunities and monitors progress

The committee reviews annually the adequacy of the company's formal whistleblowing policy and procedures
which deal with allegations from employees relating to breaches of the Code of Conduct and reviews at each of its
meetings the whistleblowing incident log

The terms of reference for the committee can be found on our website (www severntrent com) and are also
avallable from the Company Secretary

This report provides details of the role of the Corporate Responsibility (CR) Committee and the work it has
undertaken during the year

The members of the committee are Gordon Fryett (Chairman}, Andrew Duff, Liv Garfield and Dr Angela Strank

Our CR framework

QOur Code of Conduct, 'Doing the nght thing -~ The Severn Trent way’, provides the structure and a common CR
framework for both our businesses — regulated and non-reguiated The nine principles of our Code of Conduct
are

Keeping everyone healthy and safe

Supporting employees’ nghts and diversity
Maintaining ethical and honest behaviour

Staying free from bribery and corruption

Keeping our communications open and responsible
Delivenng excellent customer service

Working within the commuruty

Protecting our environment

Standing up for what's nght

To monitor performanca, both Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent Business Services have an effective
performance management system in place through core business Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) (see page
10 of the Strategic report for further detads) These are overseen by the relevant management teams and the
board Many of the business KPIs relate directly to our CR focus areas and therefore contribute significantly to our
CR performance and are linked to our reward arrangements We report internally on our CR performance through
senior management and the committee Externally, we report through 2 number of channels, including our website
and our Annual Report and Accounts

© ® N O U AWK o
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Key areas of focus 2014/15

The committee provides board oversight of our CR framework, including the strategy and performance related to

health, safety, environment and the community as well as employee and supply chain matters CR KPls and

whistleblowang allegations are reviewed at every meeting Key areas of discussion and review during 2014/15 are
set out below:

+ the commuttes reviewed two papers outhning future societal, economic and environmental issues, and agreed
to review the forward agendas for the committee to ensure that emerging nsks were considered in more
detal,

¢ anew approach to CR for Severn Trent was approved, comprising comphiance in relation to the performance
of core essential activity, and excellence in two identified areas of ambition for the company — making our
region's nvers healthier and improving water efficiency, each having measurable targets The new framework
for our CR was launched in Apnl 20185,

s the committee received an update on initialives to promote diversily at Severn Trent It was notad that Severn
Trent compared relatively welt aganst industry benchmarks and that further initiatives were under way to
ensure the progression of females through management positions,

s the committes received two reports from Internal Audit with respect to their findings on Health, Safety and
Environment The committee noted that a good framework was in place for occupabonal health and managing
contractors, and

+ the committee discussed updates on working in the community protecting our environment, water quality,
employee satisfaction in Severn Trent Business Services and managing our supply chain responsibty

Attendance at scheduled commiittee meetings:
During the year there were 4 scheduled meetings of the Corporate Responsibiity Committee The attendance
figures are detalled below for these meetings

Director Meetings attended
Gordon Frystt ai4

Andrew Duff 4/4

Liv Garfield 4/4

Dr Angela Strank 414

CR activities

We are committed to CR and see It as an integral part of our business

Human rights

We have a responsibility to understand our potential impacts on human nghts and to mitigate or eliminate these
impacts We are committed to operating in accordance with the United Nations Global Compact Principles and our
Code of Conduct supports this commitment Whilst not having a spectic human rights policy, we have group
polictes on Human Resourcas, Anti Bribery and Anti Fraud, Whistieblowing and Procurement These policies are
n turn supported by a broader range of policies within Severn Trent Water Limited and Sevemn Trent Business
Services to support key human rights
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Freedom of association and collective bargaining

We recognise the right of all employees to freedom of association and collective bargaiming We seek to promote
cooperation between employees, our management team and recognised trade unions We believe this fosters a
joint understanding of business needs and helps to deliver common solutions aimed at making our business
successful

Internationally, Severn Trent Business Services operates a small number of sales and marketing offices where
umon membership 1s not available due to nattonal law. It 1s important that these employees and those who do not
wish to Jom a union are not at a disadvantage

All Severn Trent employees are encouraged to raise concerns at work through their ine manager, however, we
recognise that employees may feel inhibited in certain circumstances In this case, employees are encouraged to
use our confidential and independent whistleblowing helpline, operated by Safecall, an independent company
which specialises in handiing concerns at work The service 1s avallable internationally and Safecall provides a
translation service, allowing any employee, wherever they are In the world, to access it

Equality

Severn Trent believes that 8 diverse and inclusive culture 1s a key factor in being a successful business We do
not tolerate discrimination under any circumstances and believe in treating everyone equally with fairness,
encouragement and respect Our Code of Conduct and our group Human Resources Policy govern all aspects of
employee nghts and diversity Underpinning these are individua! business level policies which define our
approach to a diverse and inclusive environment

Diversity

To ensure our workforce reflects the diversity of the customers and communities we serve, we have put
considerable focus on monitoring our performance against a range of diversity measures and benchmarks We
drive actions out of the analysis of the data and have built a plan to enable us to become a more diverse and
inclusive workplace Qur diversrty and inclusion plan 1s supported by our flexible working policies which promote
part time working, job shares, flexible hours and core working hours, with our technology enabling working from
home when necessary.

We have also undertaken training with employees involved in recrutment te ensure that we do not have an
uncanscious bias within the attraction and selection programme Throughout 2014/15, we have also focused on
increasing diversity in our applicants with a primary focus on our entry level schemes for apprenticeships and
graduates We have looked at the communications we use to attract new applicants and how we can reach a
broader and more diverse range n our commuruty

We continue to take part in diversity inttiatives such as the 30% Club and Project 28-40, s0 we can contribute to

the debate and benefit from others’ expenence, and received a rating of Silver this year in the Business in the
Community gender and race benchmark survey (improving from Bronze last year)

Our gender diversity metrics as at 31 March 2015 are set out in the Nominations Committee report on page 52

Prevention of chifd labour and forced labour

We will not condone the use of child labour and forced labour under any circumstances The highest risk for
Severn Trent is through our supply chain, therefore we work with our suppliers to ensure they operate to the same
standards we set ourselves

Our Code of Conduct has been built into the procurement tender process as part of the pre-qualification
questionnaire template in Severn Trent Water During 2014/15, 169 new suppliers have been required to confirm
adherence to our Code of Conduct In addition, 20 retrospective assurance checks on existing suppliers have
been carried out
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Prevention of bribery and corruption

Qur group-wide Anti Bribery and Anti Fraud Policy prohibits bribery and corruption in all our business dealings,
regardless of the country or culture within which we work Employees identrfied as tugh nsk through a risk review
for Severn Trent Water Limited and all employees of Severn Trent Business Services are raquired to undertake
an online training module and examination to ensure awareness of and comphance with this policy The Audit
Committee carnes out an annual review of our systems and contrels to detect and prevent bnbery and corruption
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Remuneration Committee
Philip Remnant

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

The committee determines, on behalf of the board, the company’s policy on the remuneration of executive
directors, other members of the Executive Committee and the Chairman of the board The Committee determines
the total remuneration packages and contractual terms and conditions for these individuals The policy framework
for remunerating all senior executive managers 1s consistent with the approach taken for executive directors

Dear shareholder

Welcome to my first Remuneration Committee report | am delighted to report that in 2014/15 we again deliverad on our
commitments with significant value for our sharsholders and our customers, improved operational performance, the lowest
combined water and sewerage bills in the land and higher retums through the growing dividend This performance has been
reflected in the payments under our incentive plans

Remuneration for the year under review

The annual bonus payments to exacutive directors for the financial year to 31 March 2015 were between 46.4% and 75 3% of
base salary, reflecting a good year of operational performance with particularly strong improved performance on our quality of
interaction with our customers and our iImpact on the environment

Dunng the year, awards under the Share Matching Plan (SMP) vested at 66 2% of the maximum based on total shareholder
return performance over the three years to 19 May 2014 The Long Term Incentive Plan {LTIP} awards based on RoRCV
performance over the three yaars to 31 March 2015 will vest in full There 15 a detalled breakdown of the targets set and the
payments under the annual bonus, SMP and LTIP on pages 78 and 80

Key policy developments for 2015/16

No changes are proposed to the overall structure or quantum of the remuneration arrangements However, the Remuneration
Committee has had to review the performance measures used in the annual bonus and LTIP to reflect the new regulatory
framewark under AMPE (which spans the five yaar penod from 1 Apnl 2015 to 31 March 2020) The committee has consulted
with the company’s major sharehoiders and institutional investor bodies pnor to making these changes

Annual bonuses for 2014/15 were based on performance against the Severn Trent Water balanced scorecard, business unit
objectives and personal performance The scorecard Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) no longer reflect the main indicators
of performance as wa move mnto AMPB, especially with the introduction of Quicome Delivery Incentives (ODIs) ODIs are
quantfiable, transparent operational targets set for us by and monitored by Ofwat covering aspects such as water quality,
leakage, asset stewardship, supply, flooding, customer experience and environmental perfformance Severn Trent Water 1s
rewarded by Ofwat if It exceeds the OD} targets and suffers financial penalties for missing them Bonuses for the Chief
Executive and Chief Financial Officer for 2015/16 onwards will be based 50% on profit before interest and tax (PBIT) of Sevemn
Trent Water, 40% on business unit performance (including performance against OD!s, performance of Severn Trent Services
and health and safety performance) and 10% on personal perfformance PBIT has been chosen as a measure as it 1s an
indicator of overall financial performance and reflects efficiencies, revenue and other key levers in the business plan We
believe that the new structure for the bonus provides a stronger link betwesn our financlal and operational performance and
the rewards earned by executives
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Since 2011, awards under the LTIP have been subject to a performance conditton which measured Severn Trent Water
Limited’'s Return on Regulatory Capital Value (RoRCV) relative to the Final Determination set by Ofwat RoRCV was
constdered a key financial measure of performance under the AMPS framework Under AMP6 and the new regulatory
incentive structures for water companies, Return on Regulatory Equity (RORE) has replaced RoRCV as Ofwat's key financial
metnc and I1s a key measure for nvestors in the new regulatory environment RORE s calculated as profit after tax (plus net
incentives eamed In the year) divided by the average equity element of our regulatory capital value and measures how
efficiently we can deliver retumns to shareholders Unlke RoRCV, RORE is aligned with the key dnvers of performance in
AMPS and reflects how well we perform against our operational and capital expenditure targets, our financing performance
and achievement against the ODI framework. To align the incentive structure with the new reporting framework, LTIP awards
from 2015 onwards will be based on RORE outperformance relative to Ofwat's Final Determination The performance targets
for the awards to be granted in 2015 require average RORE over the three year performance penocd to equal the Final
Datermination {5 65%) for 25% of the award to vest, increasing on a straight {ina basts to 100% vesting for outperforming the
Final Determination by 1 29 tmes {7 29%) The commiitee considers the targets to be demanding and the stretch target
requires the company significantly to outperform the Final Determination, delivenng substantial retums to shareholders

Finance Director changes

During the course of the year, the commitiee considered the rettrement of the current Chief Financial Cfficer, Michael McKeon,
and the recruitment arangements for his successor, James Bowling as Chief Financial Officer Full details of therr respective
leaving and joining arrangements are set out in the Annual Report on remuneration on page 85

Structure of the report

The changes to the parformance measures used in the annual bonus and LTIP require us to resubmit our Policy Report for
shareholder approval The Policy Report reflects the reamuneration policy approved by shareholders last year, updated to
reflect the new board structure and the proposed changes to the performance measures noted above The Policy Report will
be subject to a binding vote at the forthcoming AGM and, once approved, ¢ I1s intanded that the policy will apply until the 2018
AGM (when it wiil be subject to reapproval by shareholders as required under the regulations) This letter and the Annual
Report on remuneration will be subjact to an adwisory vote at the AGM,

| hope that you are supportive of our proposals and wili approve both resolutions at the AGM

Philip Remnant
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Policy report

This section of the Remuneration Commitiee Report, setting out the new remuneration policy for the directors of
Severn Trent Plc, 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM on 15 July 2015 and wili take effect, subject
to approval, from this date. Once approved by shareholders, this policy will replace the current policy which was
approved by sharehoiders at the 2014 AGM In most respects the new policy 1s similar to the existing policy, albeit
updated to reflect the new board structure and the change in performance metncs for the annual bonus and long
term incentive awards (which require shareholder approval) There are no other substantial changes to our policy

Setting the remuneration policy

The committee sets the remuneration poiicy for executive directors and other sermor executive managers, taking
Into account the company's strategic objectives over the short and long term and the extemal market

Govarnance




SEVERN TRENT_AR15

The commuiitee addresses the need to balance nsk and reward The commitiee monitors the vanable pay
arrangements to take account of risk levels, ensuring an emphasis on long term and sustamnable parformance.
The committee beheves that the incentive schemes are appropriately managed and that the choice of
performance measures and targets dees not encourage undusa risk taking by the executives so that the long term
performance of the business I1s not compromised by the pursuit of short term value The schemes incarporate a
range of internal and external performance metrics, measuring both operational and financial performance over
differing and overlapping performance psnods, providing a rounded assessment of overall company performance

Linkage to alf employee pay

The committee reviews changes in remuneration arrangements m the workforce generally It ensures that
executive director salary increases are normally aligned to the mcreases for the rest of the workforce
Furthermore, the annual bonus operates cn a broadly similar basis with the bonus schemes operated throughout
Severn Trent Water Limited and all UK employees may participate in the HMRC tax-advantaged Save As You
Earn {SAYE) scheme The company has not directly consulted with employees on the topic of executive
remuneration, however, the committee does consider the generai base salary increase, remuneration
arrangements and employment conditions for the broader employee group when determining the remuneration
policy for executive directors

Shareholder views

The committee engages proactively with the company’s major shareholders and takes their views Into account The committee
reviews any feedback received from shareholders as a result of the AGM process and throughout the rest of the year, and
takes Into consideration the latest views of investor bodies and their representatives, mcluding the Investment Assocraion, the
National Association of Pension Funds and proxy advice agencies such as Institutional Shareholder Services When any
significant changes are made to the remuneration poiicy, the Remuneration Committee Chalrman discusses these with major
shareholders in advance and may offer meetings for more detailed discussion

Remuneration policy for the executive directors
The following table sets out a summary of each element of the executive directors’ remuneration packages

Element Purpose and link to Operation (including Maximum opportunity

strategy performance metrics)

Salary To recruit and reward Base salanes for individual directors | Details of the curremt salary
executives of a suitable are reviewed annually by the levels for the directors are set
calibre for the role and committee and normally take effact out in the Annual Report on
duties required from 1 July remuneration on page 76

Salanes are set with reference to Any increase to directors’
ndmidual performance, expenence | salanes will generally be no
and contnbution, together with higher than the average
developments in the relevant mcrease for the UK workforce
employment market (having regard Hewever, a higher increase
to similar roles in publicly quoted may be proposed in the event
companies of a comparable size of a role change or promotion,
(currently FTSE 51—150) and or in other exceptional
practice in other water companias), crrcumstances

company parformance, affordability

and intemal relativiies

The company, where appropnate,

may set base salary lavels below

the market reference salary at the
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Purpose and link to
strategy

Element

Operation (including
performance metrics)

Maximum opportunity

time of appointment, with the
intentton of bnnging the base salary
levels in iine with the market as the
individual gans the relevant
expenence

Benefits To provide competitive
benefits In the market 1o
enable the recriment and

retention of directors

A car allowance, family level private
medical insurance, lffe assurancs,
personal accident insurance, health
screening, an incapacity benefits
scheme and other incidental
benefits and expenses Relocation,
disturbance and expatnate
allowances and tax equalisation
may be paid as appropnate
Directors will ba rembursed for any
reasonable business expenses
incurred in the course of their
duties, including the tax payable
thereon

The value of benefits 1s based
on the cost to the company and
there is no pre-determined
maximum hmit. The range and
value of the benefits offered is
reviewad penodically

To provide a pension
comparable with simiiar
companmies in the market to
enable the recruitment and
retention of directors

Pension

A defined contribution scheme
and/or cash supplement In lieu of
pension

Company contnbution to a
pension scheme andfor cash
allowance up to a maximum of
25% of salary

To encourage improved
financial and operatianal
performance and align the
interests of directors with
shareholders through the
partal deferral of payment in
shares

Annual bonus

Bonuses are based on financial,
operational and personal
performance No more than 20% of
the bonus will relate to personal
contribution for any executiva

Maximum annual bonus of
120% of base salary (target
annual bonus of 60% of base
salary)

50% of the bonus s paid in cash
and 50% in shares which vest after
three years (with the value of any
dvidends to be rolled up and paid
on vesting}

A clawback mechanism applies to
allow the recoupment within three
years of the payment of the cash
bonus or the grant of deferred
shares in the event of financial
misstatement, error in the
calculatien or gross misconduct

LTIP To encourage strong and
sustained improvements in

Awards are granted annually and
are subject to a three year

Maxamum fimit 18 150% of base
salary (with 200% being used n

Governance

80



SEVERN TRENT_AR15

Element

Purpose and link to
strategy

Operation (including
performance metrics)

Maximum opportunity

financial performance, n [ine
with the company’s strategy
and long term shareholder
retums

performance condition which
requires the company's retum on
regulatory equity (RORE) to
outperform the target set out In

excephonal circumstancas)
The grant lovel for 2015/16 s
125% for the Chiet Executive
and 80% of base salary for

Qfwat's Final Determination A ather executive diractors
sliding scale of targets Is set.
Diffarent targets and/or perfonmance
measures may be set for future

LTIP awards to reflect the business
strategy and regulatory framework

operating at that tme

Up to 25% of an award may
vest for threshold performance

The valug of dvidends paid on the
shares compnsing the award will be
rolled up and paid on vesting

The award may be structured as a
condiional share award (awards
may also be settled in cash in
certain circumstances)

A clawback mechanism applies to
allow the recoupment of vested
incentive awards within three years
of vesting in the event of financial
russtatement, an error in calcufating
the tevef of vesting, gross
neghgence, fraud or

gross misconduct

The maximum himits under the

All Employee Share
Plans

To encourage widespread
employee share ownership
to enable employees to
share in the success of the
business, and to ahgn their
interests with those of
shareholders

The executive directors are able to
participate in HMRC tax advantaged
all employee share plans on the
same terms as other eligible
employees

plans are as set by HMRC

Further details on the vanable pay policy

Annual bonus

The performance measures and targets for the annual bonus are selected annually to align with the business strategy and the
key drvers of performance set for us under the regulatory framework The annual weighting of the bonus between the vanous
metncs and personal contribution may vary depanding on the key prionties of the business for the year ahead Rabust and
demanding targets are sef taking into account the operating environment and pnonties, markst expectations and the business
plan for the year ahead Further details on the performance measures and weightings to be used for the forthcoming year are
set out in the Annual Report on Remuneration on pags 85
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Long-term incentives (LTIP)

For LTIP awards granted in 2015, RORE will be used to assess performance Using RORE to assess long term performance
reflects the focus of Ofwat iIn AMPS and is consistent with our aim to deliver efficient returns to shareholders RORE is
calculated as profit after tax (plus incentives samed in the year) dvided by the average equity proportion of our regulatory
capital value and it 1s veriied and published as part of the Annual Regulatory Performance Report The committee believes
that the use of RORE provides a strong alignment between the long term financial and operational performance of the group
and the reward delivered to management

LTIP awards granted in 2013 and 2014 are subject to a perfformance condition relating fo retum on regulatory capital value
(RoRCV) RoRCV is calculated as current cost operating profit {ess tax paid dvided by our average regulatory capital vaiue
Details of the performance targets applying to the 2013 and 2014 awards are set out in the Annual Report on Remuneration on
page 82.

The committee reserves the discretionary power to adjust the formulaic outtum of the LTIP performance conditions to ensure
that the vesting result is reflective of the underlying financsal and operational performance of the company over the
performance penod The use of this discretion 1s expected to be exceptional and the comrmittes would consult with its major
shareholders before making any upwards adjustment In relation to the awards granted in 2013, there I1s a cap and coliar
hmiting the extent to which this discretion can be applied (if the vesting result indicated by the perfformance condition is greater
thar 50% the committee may reduce the vesting to a number not less than 50%, and If it 1s 0% it may increasa 1t to any figure
not greater than 50%) This cap and collar approach does not apply to awards granted from 2014 onwards

in addition, for any awards to vest, the committee must be satisfied that there has been no compromise to the commerctal
practices or operational standards of the group If the committee 1s not so satisfied, then the vesting percentage may be scaled
back as appropnate {including to 0%)

Legacy Share Matching Plan

Unti 2013, awards were also made under a Share Matching Plan (SMP} Under the SMP, the executive directors could receive
up to 0 5 matching shares for each share deferred under the annual bonus plan (the maximum award leve! was therefore 30%
of salary) The matching awards were subject to achievement of a refative total shareholder return performance condrtion and
a financial underpin At the time of release, participants also recetve the value of the divdends which would have been paid on
vested shares over the performance pericd The outstanding awards will be allowed to pay out under the approved policy,
subject to achievement of the parformance conditions on which they were granted Liv Garfield and Jamas Bowling do not hold
any outstanding awards under this legacy plan

Remuneration Committee discretion

The committee will operate all incentive plans according to the rules of each respective plan and the discretions contained
theremm The discretions cover aspects such as the timing of grant and vesting of awards, determming the size of the award
(subject to the policy limits), the treatment of leavers (see policy on terrminations), retrospactve adjustment of awards (e g. for
a nghts 1ssue, a corporate restructunng or for special dividends) and, in exceptional circumstances, the discretion to adjust
previocusly set targets for an incentive award if events happen which cause the committes to detenmine that it would ba
appropnate to do so In exercising such discretions, the committee will take Into account generally accepted market practice,
best practice guidelines, the provisions of the Listing Rules and the company's approved remunaration policy

External directorships

Executive directors are permitted to take on extemal non-executive directorships, though normally only one other FTSE 100
appaintment, to bnng a further external perspective to the group and help in the development of key indwviduals’ expenience In
order to avaid any conflicts of interest, all appointments are subject o the approval of the Nominations Commitiee. Executive
directors are pernttad to retain the fees ansing from one appointment.
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Shareholding guidelines

The company operates shareheclding guidelines under which executive directors are expected to build and maintain a
shareholding in the company The Chief Executive 1s expected to build and maintamn a holding of shares to the value of 200%
of salary, and other executive directors 125% of salary. Executive directors are expected to retain all of the net of tax number
of shares they receive through the LTIP and deferred share banus unti! the shareholding guidelinas have been met

Reward scenarios
The bar charts show how the compaosition of each of the executive directors’ remuneration packages vanes at different levels
of performance achievement

Mimimum pay 15 fixed pay only (i ¢ salary + benefits + pension) On target pay includes fixed pay, a 60% of salary
bonus and 50% vesting of the LTIP awards (with grant levels of 125% of salary for the Chief Executive and 80%
of salary for the Chief Financial Officer) Maximum pay includes fixed pay and assumes 100% vesting of both the
annual bonus and the LTIP awards No share price growth has been factored into the above chart and all
amounts have been rounded to the nearest £1,000 Salary levels {which are the base on which other elements of
the package are calculated) are based on those applying at 1 July 2015 The value of taxable benefits is the cost
of providing those benefits in the year ended 31 March 2015 (estimated value used in the case of James
Bowling) The executive directors are also permitted to participate in HMRC tax advantaged all employee share
plans, on the same terms as other eligible employees, but they have been excluded from the above graph for
simpliciiy.

Service contracts and policy on payments for [oss of office
The remuneration related elements of the current contracts for executive directors are shown in the table below

Provision Policy

Notice penod 12 months from either party

Termination payment Payments for loss of office comprise a maximum of 12 months salary and benefits only

Mitigation Any termination payment will not be made automatically but will be subject to bath phasing and
mtigation {Including offset against any eamings from new employment)

Change of control There are no specific contractual payments or benefits which would be tnggered in the event of

a change in control of the company Qutstanding incentve awards would vest in line with the
freatment set out below for a good leaver axcept that the performance and vesting period will
end on the date of control.

Annual bonus The committee may exarcise its discretion to pay a bonus to a departing executive, subject to
performance and pro rated to reflect the proportion of the year worked The bonus would be
paud at the same time as for the other directors and, If the executive has left employment by
that date, it may be paid solely in cash

Any outstanding deferred bonus shares will vest on cessation of employment unless the
departure is a result of summary dismissal

Long Term incentive Awards | The default treatment ts that all awards will lapse on cessabion of employment However,
exetutives will be considered 2 good leaver in certain prescnbad circumstances or by the
discretion of the Committee If an execubive 1s a good leaver, the award will ordinanly vest on
the nomnal vesting date, subject to performance and tme pro rating (as set out below) The
commuttee also has the discretion to determine that the awards for a good leaver should vest
early (e g on cessation of employment) subject to performance with tme pro rating (as set out
below)
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Provision Policy

For the outstancing awards under the legacy 2005 LTIP (awards granted in 2013 and pnor),
the time pro rating s calculated by rounding up to the nearest full year unless otherwise
specified Time pro rating under the 2014 |TIP (awards granted since 2014) and under the
legacy Share Matching Plan 1s rounded up to the nearest month, In exceptional circumstances
the committee may time pro rate the 2005 LTIP, 2014 LTiP and SMP awards to a lesser extent
or not at all For the Recruitment Awards granted on appointment to Liv Garfield and to be
granted {o James Bowling, no time pro rata reduction will be applied in a good leaver situation
This is i recognition of the fact that the expected value of the forfeited awards was
significantly higher in both cases {with much of 1t being non performance related) and which
would not have been scaled back for a similar event

Qutplacement services and reimbursement of legal costs may be provided where appropnate Any statutory entitlements or
sums to settle or compromise claims in connection with a termination would be paid as necessary Outstanding awards under
the SAYE and the legacy Share Incentive Plan (SIP) would vest in accordance with the terms of the plans as approved by

HMRC

Approach to recruitment and promotion

The remuneration packages for all new executive directors will be set in line with the company's approved policy The
committee wil fake into account, iIn amving at a total package, the skills and expenence of the candidate, the market rate for a
candidate of that levet of expenence, as well as the mportance of secunng the best candidate

Annual bonuses and long term incentives will be awarded in ine with the maximum hmits outlined in the policy on page 72
Participation in the bonus plan will normally be prorated for the year of joining

The committee may make additional cash and/or share based awards if deferred pay 1s forfated by an executive on leaving a
previous employer. Such awards would take into account the nature of awards forfeited (i e cash or shares), time honzons,
attnibuted expected value and any performance conditions Awards would typically be made under the terms of the LTIP or
under the exemptions pemitted under the Listing Rules Non performance related payments unrelated to the forfeiture of
awards, i e 'goiden hellos’, will not be made

Other payments may bs made in retation to relocation expenses and cther incidenta! expenses as appropnate

In the case of an internal appointment, any vanable pay element awarded in respact of the prier role would be allowed to pay
out according to the terms on which it was onginally granted
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Chairman and non-executive directors
The remunaration policy for non-executive directors, other than the Chairman, 1s determined by the board The fee for the
Chairman 1s determined by the Remuneration Committee {(without the Chairman present)

Element Purpose and fink to Operation Maximum opportunity
strategy
Fee To recruit and retain non- | Base board fee with addmional Details of the current fee levels for
aexecutives of a surtable fees paid for the Senior the directors are set out in the
calibre for the role and Independent Director and Remuneraticn Committee Report
duties required chairmanship of the Board

Committees The Chairman
receives a total fee in respect of
hrs board dutes Fees are paid
monthly Directors will be
reimbursed for any reascnable
business expenses incurred in
the course of their dubes,
including the tax payable
thereon

The fees for the non-executive The fee levels ara sei subject to
directors and Chairman are set the maximum imits set out in the
taking into account the time Arlicles of Associabon
commitment of the role and
market rates in comparable
companies The fees are
normaily reviewad annually {but
not necessarily increased)

Non-executive directors normally serve terms of three years They do not have service contracts Instead, they are engaged by
letters of appointment which are terminable by either party with no notice period and no compensation in the event of such
terminatian, other than accrued fees and expenses. All of the directors are subject to appointment or reappomntment at the
2015 AGM

Annual Report on remuneration
This part of the report will be subject to an adwisory vote at the AGM The information on pages 75 to 84 is audited

Membership of the Remuneration Committee and Its advisors

The members of the committee are listed in the table below. All are Independent non-executive directors, as defined under the
Governance Code, with the exception of the company Chaiman who was independent on his appointment Dunng the year
ended 31 March 2015, the committee met six times to discuss key remuneration 1ssues ansing, the review and operation of the
company's remuneration policy and market updates by its advisors
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Remuneration Committee attendance in 2014/15

Richard Davey 55
Andrew Duff 6/8
Martin Lamb 6/6
Philip Remnant 6/6
Dr Angela Strank 6/6

On 20 October 2014 it was announced that Richard Davey, non-executive director, Senior Independent Director and chairman
of the Remuneration Committee would be retinng on 23 January 2015, having served nine years on the board Philp Remnant
succeeded him in the role of chairman of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 23 January 2015

The committee members have no personal financsal interest, other than as shareholders, in the matters to be decided. The
Chief Executive, Director of Human Resources and by invitation the Head of Reward and Pensions also attended the
committee meetings to provide advice and respond to specific questions Such attendances speciflcally excluded any matter
conceming their own remuneration The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the committee

To ensure that the company's remuneration practices are in line with best practice, the committee has access to advice from
New Bndge Strest (NBS) (a trading name of Aon Hewitt Limited). NBS Is the independent advisor o the committes and was
appointed in 2011 The total fees paid to NBS during the year for services to the committee were £190,525 excluding VAT
(2014 £209,089) NBS also provided advice dunng the year to the company on the implementation of its share plans and
other technical matters NBS 1s a signatory to the Remuneration Consultants Group Code of Conduct and reports directly to
the Chair of the committee The committee reviews the appointment of its advisors annuaily and Is satisfled that the advice it

recaives 1s objective and mmdapendent
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allowance and utilty costs He also receved compansation for UK tax suffered on US benefits of £36,931 (2014 £49,434) These arrangements ceased on
30 Septembar 2014

Liv Garfield is 2 member of the defined contnbution scheme The figure shown includes £40,000 pard into the scheme by the company via salary sacrifice, the remainder has
been paid as an annual cash supplement in lieu of a pension Tony Baliance is also a member of the defined contribution schame and the figure shown Is the contnbution pald
into the schame by the company n the year. For the other executive directors the figure shown Is the annual cash supplement paid in keu of a pension

The annual bonus is paid 50% i cash and 50% in shares with the portion defemred into shares subject to an addibonat holding penod of three years with no further
performance condibons attached

The 2015 figure Is comprised of

- The vesting of the 2012 LTIP award, or in the case of Liv Garfield the second tranche of her recruitment award The performance perind for these awards ended on 31
March 2015 and the awards vest on 1 Apnl and are due ta be released following the end of the close penod The value of the shares has been estmated by using the
average share price for the pencd from 1 January 2015 to 31 March 2015 of £20 62

- Thevesting of the 2011 SMP award The performance penod for this award ended on 19 May 2014 The awards vested on 20 May 2014 and shares were released on 2
June 2014 at a share price of £19 73

The 2014 figure 15 comprised of

- The vesting of the 2011 LTIP award The performance penod for this award ended on 31 March 2014 The awards vested on 1 Apnl 2014 and shares wera relaased on 5
June 2014 at a share price of £19 6433 This value has baen updated fo reflect the actual share pnce on vesting (a share pnce of £17 71 was used in detemmining the
figure in tha priar year accounts)

—  The vesting of the 2010 SMP plus the value of diidends eamed on these sharas including those due n the pravious year paid dunng 2014/15

For non-executive directors, this figure relates to taxable expenses relating to travel For executive directors, this figure consists of the value obtained from inclusion in the
Severn Trent all employee Save As You Earn Scheme and Share Incentive Plan

Retired from the board on 24 January 2014
Appointed to the board on 23 May 2014

{vill} Retred from the board on 23 January 2015

()
(%)

{xd)

()

Retirad from the board on 16 July 2014

Tony Ballance, Martin Kane and Andy Smith stood down from the board with effect from 23 January 2015 but remain on the Sevem Trent Executive Committee The ligures
shown in the table above relate to amounts recaived for the full financial year for ease of comparison The equivalent figures relating purely to qualifying services (1 @ whilst
serving as a board director) would be 81 6% of the figure for salary, benefits, pension and bonus beaing 298 days out of 365 and 95 5% of ths value shown for long term
incenbves being 100% of the SMP figure anc 94 4% of the LTIP figure

Retred from the board on 11 Aprll 2014 Tony Wray was treated as a good leaver under the company's longterm incentive plans and the figuras relate to the vesting of his
2012 LTIP and 2011 SMP awards

Liv Garfield jolned Sevemn Trent Plc on 31 March 2014 and subsequently joined the board on 11 April 2014 The first tranche of Liv Garfleld’s recrutment award (41,222
shares) vested on 5 June 2014 The value of the shares on vesting was £808,736 The value of this award has not been included In the table above since t was based on
performance to 31 March 20114 (1 e prior to joining the board)
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Annual bonus outturn for 2014/15
The weighting of the performance measures for the annuai bonus awarded dunng the year was as follows

Dunng the year, Andy Smith moved from being responsible for Water Services to take on a new role as Managing Director,
Business Services (which encompasses the Savem Trent Services business, a new role for Retail for non-household Water
Services organisation and renewable energy) Martin Kane moved from CEQ of Severn Trent Services to take on a new role of
Chief Enginear covenng engineenng design standards, qualty assurance, R&D and innovaton for the group, and all health
and safety aspects of our operations Their business unit objectives were therefore sphit between cbjectives relating to Severn
Trent Water Limited and Severn Trent Services, reflecting thewr changes in role dunng the year.

a) Severn Trent Water - Balanced Scorecard

The bonus outtumn in respect of Severn Trent Water performance was determined by reference to a balanced scorecard of
measures, based on 10 of the company's 16 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) The KPIs used to determine the annual
bonus were

Key Performance Indicators Target | Strotch Dutturn Polnts
Employee
*  Providing a safe KPl1  Lost ime incidents per 100,000 hrs worked 019 ¢15 021 85
working
environment
KPI 1
» Developing a KPl 2 Employee motivation 82% 84% 79% o
confident and
productive
workforce
Customaer
Qualily Interaction with KPi 4  Service Incentive Mechanism- Qualitative 3rd 1st 2nd 115
the customer
KPI§5  Service Incentive Mechanism - Quantitative 127 104 10500 128
KPIT  Semceability - Waste 58 52 5352 122
KPI 8  Serviceabillty — Water 167 152 270 0
Financlal
s  Assetbase KP18  Capital Expenditure {net) versus fina! detarmination ~ % 0% 2% 00% 100
enhancement outperformance
+  Manzgement of KP1 Operating Expenditure versus final determinatron — % 0 5% 0.8% 0.5% 100
cost base 1 outperformance
Environmen
»  Minimising KPI Pollution incidents (cat 1, 2 and 3) 405 anr 368 140
environmantal 12
mpact
KPI Leakage Mi/d — Post MLE 448 442 441 135
16
Total 926
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I For KP4 the Ofwat introduced new methodology (an Ofwat prlot) to determine the outtum for Wave 4 The Wave 4 result placed STW in
2nd ptace against the other WASCs The bonus payout 1s based on us coming 2nd and 1s equivalent to achieving 115 paints which the
mid point between target and stretch

Each KPI has 100 target paints, 130 stretch pomnts and extra points can be eamed for above stretch performance No points
can be eamed for below a threshold level of performance. For executive directors to be awarded the masximum bonus
available, they are required to achiave 1,300 aggregate pomts Dunng the year, two of the 10 KPls exceeded the stretch level
of parformance, with KP1 12 generating a score of 140 points and KPI 16 generating a score of 135 The aggregate score was
926 points The resutting bonus awarded for the Severn Trent Water Limited portion of the annual bonus was 46 3% of the
maximum, representing an improvement to operational performance but set against challenging targets

b) Severn Trent Water — business unit objectives
The business unit objectives used to determine the annual bonus were
Applicable to
Yo

Measure/Objective Ballance | Garfield Kane McKeon | Smith Target Stretch | Quttum | Payable
1 Percentage of customars registered for

paperless bills v v 33% 40% 12 9% 98%
2 Spesd of respanse in repainng laaks (%

fixed with 24 hours} v v v 50% 55% 38% 23 7%
3 Amount of renewable energy produced from

waste water renawable activities v v ' 30% 34% 28 4% 34 0%
4 Customer water quality complaints « 12,837 11,920 15,881 a5%
5 Reduction of customer complaints waste

water v 227 1,670 1,961 73 8%
6 Reduction written customer complaints v 14,877 13,810 9,978 100 0%
7  Sewer flooding Incidents A v v 515 478 8130 00%
8  Reduchon in controllable operating

expenditure (Em}) v v v v v 250 400 25 51 7%
9  Number of properties (ntemmupied for greater

than %2 hours v 856 e 3365 00%
10 Capitat blocks net spend £m water (£m) v v 600 584 594 68 8%
11 Caepits! blocks net spend £m waste (£m) v 870 950 842 100 0%
12 Creating an investment fund to enable the

ST green business ptan (Em} v 200 225 134 8.68%

0% is payable for achieving the threshold level under each metnc, mncreasing on a straight hine bas:s to 50% for target
performance and 100% for stretch performance Each metric is evenly weighted Achievement against the business unit
targets 1s set out in the table above The resulting bonus awarded for tha Sevemn Trent Water business unit portion of the
annual bonus were 17 5% of the maximum for Tony Ballance, 41 7% of the maximum for Liv Garfield, 48 8% of the maximum
for Martin Kane, 26 1% of the maxamum for Michae! McKeon and 30 5% of the maxmum for Andy Smith

c) Severn Trent Services — business unit objectlves
Part of Martin Kane's and Andy Smith's bonuses related to the financial and non financial key performance indicators and
business unit objectives of Severn Trent Services as follows
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Welghting % achleved - % achleved — Andy
Martin Kane Smith
Financial performance (PBIT and Tumover) 44 4% 29 5% 29 5%
Non financial objectives 11 2% 56% 54%
STS business unit cbjectives 44.4% 37 0% 29 8%
Total 100% 121% 64 7%

The financial targets related to achievement of PBIT of £14 8 miflion and tumover of £337 7 mullion as set out in the business
plan for Sevemn Trent Services The total bonus payable for Severn Trent Services performance was 72 1% of the maximum
for Martin Kane and 64.7% for Andy Smith in respect of Michael McKeon and Liv Garfield, whose performance was measured
against the achievement of specific business restructunng targets for Severn Trent Services, it was detemmuned that these were

met and they were awarded 95% of the maximum bonus

d) Personal contribution

All directors had 10% of therr bonus opportunity measured aganst personal objectives The personal objectives varied by
indnitdual but covered PR14 and the AMP6 business plan, development of the retail business, talent and succession planning,
and transition managemernt The cbjectives for the Chief Executive related to developing the company strategy, PR14,
customer service, raising operational performance and talent management.

e) Overall achievement for 2014715
Savern Trent Severn Trent Sevemn Tront
Water Water Services Total
Balanced Business Unit | Business Unit Personal Bonus(as % | Total Bonus
Name Scorecard Objectives Objectives Performance maximum) (E)
Tony Ballance 23 2% (max 7.0% (max. - 8.5% (max 10%) 38 7% £100,691
50%) 40%)
Liv Garfield 23.2% (max. 14.6% {max, 4.7% (max. 9 5% (max 10%) 52 0% £405 483
50%) 35%) 5%)
Martin Kane 11 6% {(max 9 8% (max 32 4% (max 9.0% (max. 10%) 62 8% £198,804
25%) 20%}) 45%)
Michael 23 2% (max 8 3% (max 7 6% (max 8 9% (max 10%) 48 0% £276,157
McKeon 50%) 32%) 8%)
Andy Smith 11 6% {max 6 1% (max 29 1% (max 5 7% (max 10%) 52 5% £177,872
25%) 20%) 45%)

The maximum bonus opportunity for all Directors 1s 120% of salary Bonuses are paid 50% in cash and 50% in shares
(defarred for three years) The defemed shares will be granted in June 2015 The deferred shares are not subject to any further
performance conditions Michael McKeon will be retinng on 31 May 2015 and, as permitted under the rules of the annual
bonus plan, his bonus will be paid solely in cash

Long term incentive awards vesting in relation to performance in 2014/15
The 2011 SMP awards and the 2012 LTIP awards have vested or wall vest based on performance dunng the year as follows

Governance
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a) 2011 SMP awards

The 2011 SMP awards were subject to a Total Shareholder Retum (TSR) performance condition, measured relative to
companies ranked 51-150 in the FTSE by market capitalisatton (excluding investmant trusts) The overall performance period
was three years commencing on the date of grant (20 May 2011) Howevar, the award was spitt into three tranches, each wath
a different measurement pencd for TSR as follows

Performance Severn Trent Median Upper Quartile
Tranche period Woeighting TSR TSR TSR Vesting
1 18 months 20% 26 5% 36% 22 6% 100%
2 27 months 30% 42 8% 26.9% 55 6% 70 3%
3 36 months 50% 49 1% 40 9% 77 4% 50 3%
Overall lavel of vasting 66 2%

The commitiee was satisfied that the company’s TSR appropnately reflected the company’'s underlying performance and the
award vested at 66 2%

b) 2012 LTIP awards

The 2012 LTIP awards were subject to an RoRCV performance condition, measured over three financlal years to 31 March
2015 Average RoRCV 18 compared to the baseline figure set out in the Ofwat Final Determuination 0% of the award vests if
average RoRCV equals that set i the Final Determination, icreasing on a straight line basis to 50% vesting for 1 02 x the
Final Determmation and 100% vesting for 1 07 x Final Detemination

The committee has vanous diseretions in relation to determining the final vesting outcome as set out in the policy report The
committee considered the level of RoRCV outperformance of the Ofwat Final Determination for the 2012 LTIP This showed
the average RoRCV over the three years ending in 2014/15 had outperformed the RoRCV Ofwat Final Determination by 1 14

times therefore resulting in 100% vesting

c) Liv Garfield recruitment award
The second tranche of Liv Garfield's recruitment award will vest in May 2015 Itis subject to the same performance condibons
as the 2012 LTIP awards and therefore will vest at 100%
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d) Summary of long term incentive awards vesting based on performance in 2014/15
Number of End of Number of Value of
h porf % sharen resultant Relsaselves
Exacutive Awzrd type Grant dte Qranted penod vestiog | vestog arard® ting date
Tony Ballance SMP 20/05/11 1,868 10/05/114 | 662% 1,236 £24,386 | D206/14
| LTIP 19/06/12 5,741 3110315 | 100% 5,741 £116,379 | 01/0415
| Total £142,765
Llv Garfield Recrultment 04/06/14 41,222 310215 | 100% | 41,222 | £849,998 | 01/04/15
| Total £849,008
Martin Kane SMP 20/05/11 2,131 19/05/14 | 662% 1,410 £27,819 | 02/06/14
LTIP 19/06/12 7,119 3103115 | 100% 7,118 £146,784 | 0104/15
Total £174,613
Michae! McKeon'® SMP 20/05/11 3938 19/05/14 | 66 2% 2,606 £51,416 | 020614
LTIP 19/06/12 12,684 31/03/15 | 100% 12,684 | £261,544 | 01/04/15
Total £312,060
Andy Smith SMP 20/05/11 2,389 19/05/14 | 662% 1,588 £31.331 | o2oena
LTIP 19/06/12 7,460 3103115 | 100% 7,480 £153,825 | 01/04/15
Total £185,156
Tony Wray™ SMP 20/05/11 4,542 18/05M14 | 643% 2,922 £57,651 | 02/06/14
LTIP 19/06/12 21,875 31/03/15 | 100% | 21,875 | £451,062 | 01/04/15
Total £508,713

() Forthe SMP award this Is based on the share pnce at release of £19 73 For the LTIP award this is based on the average share pnce
over the final three months of the performance period (E20 62) as the awards will not be released until after the end of the dose penod

(i) Michael McKeon stepped down from the board on 1 Apnl 20115 and will subsequently be retining on 31 May 2015 As noted on page 85,

he Is being treated as a good leaver under the rules of the LTIP His award will vast as normal In accordance with the rules, thers Is no

I pro rata reduction since he served for the whole of the performance pencd

(I Tony Wray retired from the board on 11 April 2014 As noted in last year's Annual Report, he 1s treated as a good leaver under the rules
' of the SMP and LTIP The awards vestad an the normel vesting date subject to performance and a time pro rata reducton For the 2011
| SMP award, time prorating was calculated to the nearest month For the 2012 LTIP award, tme prorating was calculated to the nearest

Governance
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Outstanding scheme interests, including share awards granted during the year
The table below sets out details of the executives' outstanding share awards as at 31 March 2015

Parcentage
Maximum™ | vesting at End of Vesting/
number of minimum Exercise performance exercise Awards granted
Executive Award type shares performance price (p} period date during the year
Basis of Face
award value
Tony
Ballance 2012 LTIP 5,741 0% - 31/0315 01/04/15 - -
2013 LTIRP 5,855 0% - 31/0316 01/04/16 - -
80% of
2014 LTIP B.817 0% - 310317 16/07/17 salary £169,040
2012 SMP 1,721 5% - 24/05M15 25/05/15 - -
2013 SMP 2,983 5% - 12/06/16 13/06/16 - -
2012 ABS 3,442 - - - 28/06/15 - -
2013 ABS 5,926 - - - 26/06/16 - -
Deferred
2014 ABS 4179 - - - 30/06/17 bonus £80,987
2013 SAYE 725 - 1.241 - May-16 - -
2014 SIP 24 - - - - - -
Total 39,383
125% of
Liv Garfield 2014 LTIP 42,383 0% - 31/03117 1607117 salary £812,500
Recruitrant 125% of
Award 41,222 0% - 31/103/15 May-15 salary £812,500
Recrutment 125% of
Award 41,223 0% - 31/03116 May-16 salary £812,500
2015 SAYE 1,136 - 1,584 - May-18 - -
Total 125,964
Martin Kane 2012 LTIP 7,119 0% - 31/03/15 01/04/15
2013 LTIP 7,119 0% - 31/03/16 01/04/16 - -
80% of
2014 LTIP 10,720 0% - 31/03117 1600717 salary £205,520
2012 SMP 2,162 5% - 24/05/15 25/05/15 - -
2013 SMP 4,360 5% - 12/06/16 13/06/18 - -
2012 ABS 4,324 - - — 28/06/15 - -
2013 ABS 8,721 - - - 26/06/16 - -
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Percentago
Maximum®™ | vesting at End of Vasting/"
number of minsmum Exercise performance axarcise Awards granted
Executive Award type shares performance price (p) penod date during the year
Deferred
2014 ABS 3,265 - - - 30/06/17 bonus £63,267
2012 SAYE 152 - 1177 - May-15 - -
2013 SAYE 290 - 1,241 - May-16 - -
2014 SAYE 270 - 1,331 - May-17 - -
2015 SAYE 681 - 1,584 - May-18 - -
2014 SIP 24 - - - - - -
Tolal 49,207
Michael
McKeon 2012 LYIP 12,684 0% - 31/03/15 01/04/15 - -
2013 LTIP 12,937 0% - 31/0311% 01/04{16 - -
80% of
2014 LTiP 19,480 0% - 3H03NT 16/07T17 salary £373,440
2012 SMP 3,685 5% - 24/05/15 25/05/15 - -
2013 sMP 6,757 5% - 12/06/16 13/06/16 - -
2012 A8BS 7,370 - - - 28/06/15 - -
2013 ABS 13514 - - - 26/06/16 - -
Deferred
2014 ABS 8.898 - - - 30/06/17 ponus £172,417
2014 SIP 24 - - - - - -
Tota! 85,349
Andy Smith 2012 LTIP 7.460 0% - 31/0315 01/04/115 - -
2013 LTIP 7.610 0% - 31/03/16 01/04/16 - -
80% of
2014 LTIP 11,459 0% - 310317 16/07/17 salary £219,680
2012 SMP 2,234 5% - 24/05/15 25/05M15 - -
2013 SMP 3,842 5% - 12/06/16 13/06/16 - -
2012 ABS 4,468 - - - 28/06/15 - -
2013 ABS 7,684 - - - 26/06/16 - -
Deferred
2014 ABS 5,431 - - - 16/07417 bonus £105,24¢8
2013 SAYE 725 - 1.241 - May-16 - -
2015 SAYE 568 - 1,584 - May—18 - -
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Percantage
Maximum®™ | vesting at End of Vosting/”
number of minmum Exarcise performance exercise Awards granted
Executive Award type shares performance price (p) period date during the year
2014 SIP 24 - - - - - -
Total 51,505
Tony
Wray™® 2012LTIP 21,875 0% 31/03/15 01/04/15
2013 LTIP 8,057 0% - 31/03/16 01/04/16
2012 SMP 3,023 5% 24/05/15 25105118
2013 SMP 2,208 5% 12/06/16 13/06/16
Total 35,253

() Awards that are due to vest in a close period will be released as soon as pracucable after the end of the close period
(i) Additonal dmvidend equivalent shares may be released where provided In the rules

(i) Tony Wray's outstanding scheme interests have been adjusted to reflect a time pro rata reduction following his retirement on
11 Apnl 2014

a) Long Term Incentive Pian awards

The LTIP awards are granted as conditional shares The awards are subject to an RoRCV performance condition measured
over thres financial years Average RoRCV 1s compared with the baseline figure set out in the Ofwat Final Determination 0%
of each award vests If average RoRCV equals that set in the Final Determination, increasing on a straight line basis to 50%
vesting for 1 02 x Final Determination and 100% vesting for 1 07 x Final Determination

Ofwat are no longer publishing a baseline RoRCV figure in AMP6 This impacts on the final year of the 2013 LTIP award and
the final two years of the 2014 LTIP award However, an squivalent baselina figure can be constructed using the component
numbers set cut in the Ofwat model To ensure a like for ike comparison between the baselne figure and how actual RoRCV
will be calculated in those years, an adjustment has besn made to increase the baseline figure to take into account the impact
of expected income to be received under Pay As You Go (which dictates what portion of total expenditure is treated like
operating expenditure, and directly passed through into customers' bills, and what 1s treated as capital expenditure and added
to Severn Trent Water's asset base) This gives a baseline figure of 3 49% for 2015/16 and 3 6% for 2016717

As noted on page 79, the 2012 LTIP vested at 100% on 1 Apnl 2015 However, as the company was in a close penod, the
release of awards will be made after this period ends

The 2014 LTIP awards were granted on 18 July 2014 The share pnce used to calculate the number of shares granted was
£19 17 (being the average price over the precading three days)

b} Share Matching Plan awards

For the outstanding legacy Share Matching Plan awards, TSR performance 1s measured over three different measurement
penads, each commencing on the date of grant — 20% of each award 1s measured over 18 months, 30% over 27 months and
50% over 36 months 25% of each part of the award will become eligible for vesting for median performance, increasing {on a
straight line basis) to full vesting for upper quartile performance or above However, for any of the awards to vest, the
committee must be sabsfied that the company’s TSR is reflective of the company's underlying performance over the full three
year performance period The 2012 SMP awards will vest, subject to performance, on 25 May 2015 However, the current
indication 1s that the 2012 SMP wall not meet the TSR performance measure and as such no shares will vest
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c) Deferred shares under the Annual Bonus Scheme

Each year, 50% of an executive director's annual bonus 1s deferred in shares for three years The awards are granted in the
form of deferred shares The 2014 award relates to the defemral of the annual bonus for 2013/14 The award was granted on

30 June 2014 The share pnce used to calculate the number of shares granted was £19 38 The deferred shares relating to the
annual bonus for 2014/15 will be granted in June 2015

d} Save As You Earn
The executive directors, in common with all ehgible UK employees of the group, are entitted to participate in the company's
HMRC tax advantaged SAYE Scheme

e) Share Incentlve Plan

With the exception of Liv Garfield and Martin Kane, the executive directors received an award of free shares linked to the
performance of Severn Trent Water Limited under the Share Incentive Plan (worth £474) duning the year, on tha same terms
as other Severn Trent Water Limited employees

f) Liv Garfield’s Recruitment Award

A one-off LTIP award was granted 1o Liv Garfield on 4 June 2014 as partial consideration for her significant unvested
entittements at her former employer The award was spitt into three equal tranches, the face value of each being £812,500
{125% of base pay of £650,000) vesting in 2014, 2015 and 2016 The tranches are subject to the same performance condition
as the equivalent Sevem Trent LTIP awards vesting in each of those years (1 e the 2011, 2012 and 2013 awards) The first
tranche of the Recruitment Award vested at 100% on 5 June 2014 with a value upon release of £808,736 The second tranche
of the Recrutment Award vests at 100% in May 2015

Diractors’ pension provisions

Service Increase in
complated in accruad
year Incraase in pension Transfer Transfer
{including accrued during the value of value of Increasa In Increase In
transferred in Accrued pension year {nat accrued accrued transfer value value net of
sorvice pension at | during the of pension at | penstonat | net of directors’ directors’
Name credits) 310315 year inflation) 310314 310315 contributions contributions
Martin
Kane 35 £154,511 2,587 -1.515 28287 27115 -172 08
Andy
Smith 9 £41,226 -2,233 -3,406 804 7 802 4 23 o0
Tony
Wray 6 £31,573 830 0 547 6 599 7 521 00
Notes

The accrued pension figures and transfer value calculations have been provided by Towers Watson. The infiaton figure used in respect of the

year to March 2015 was as at September 2013 (2 7%) m line with statutory guidance for calcutating the increase in value.

Andy Smith and Martin Kane have both elected te use the "Scheme Pays’ epproach to meeting tax charges on pension savings sbove the
annual allowance The impact of this reduces the accrued pension and transfer value at 31 March 2045 by the following amounts

Andy Smith - Pension £2,233 p a (of which £1,581 pa 18 in respect of the year to 31 March 2014) Transfer value £43 500, and
Martin Kane ~ Pension £1,474 pa (all of which Is in respect of the year to 31 March 2014) Transfer value £26,000
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Tony Wray and Andy Smith are deferred members of the Severn Trent Pension Scheme (SSPS Section) Tony Wray ceased
to contnbute to the Scheme from 31 December 2011 and Andy Smith ceased to contnbute to the Schemse from 31 March
2014, when they became deferred pensioners of the Scheme and stopped accruing penstonable service

Martin Kane 1s a member of the Severn Trent Pension Scheme (WPS Section) but opted out of the scheme on 30 June 2007
While he no longer accrues additonal years of service for pension purposes, consistent with the legislation, his accrued
benefits generally continue to be linked to his final satary (or £161,000 ptus RPI from 30 June 2007 to the date of his
retirament, if higher) and scheme benefits are preserved in relation to Ill health retirement and death in service,

External directorships
Michaal McKeon was appointed as a non-executive diractor of The Merchants Trust Plc on 1 May 2008 and, in respect of his
appointment for the year ended 31 March 2015, he was paid fees of £27,750 (2014 £26,042)

Tony Wray was appainted as a non-executive director of Grainger plc on 24 Qctober 2011 and in respect of the appointment
(for the pericd 1 to 11 Apnl 2014) he was paxd fees of £1,492 (2014 £48,500)

Liv Garfield was appointed as a non-executive director of Tesco pic on 1 Apnl 2013 and served untl her resignation on 28
February 2015 She received fees in respect of har appointment (for the period 11 Apnl 2014 to 28 February 2015) of £72,968

No other executrve directors currently hold any extemal fee eaming non-executive directorships

Directors’ shareholdings and summary of outstanding share interests

As disclosed in the Pohcy Report, the company operates shareholding guidelines under which executive directors are
expected to build and maintain a shareholding in the company of 200% salary for the Chuef Executive and 125% of salary for
other executive diractors Details of the current shareheldings of the directors and whether they have met the new
shareholding guidehines are set out below

Interests in shares as at 31 March 2015
Outstanding scheme interests

Deferred shares % shareholding

Benaficiafly under the Annual guldeline
Director owned LTIP and SMP Bonus SAYE options Total achleved®
John Coghtan 400 - - - 400 -
Richard Davey' 588 - - - 568 -
Andrew Duff 8,184 - - - 8,184 -
Gordon Fryett 2312 - 2,312
Martin Lemb 3,012 - - - 3,012 -
Baroness Noakes® 4018 - 4ms
Philip Remnant 1,400 - - 1,400 -
Dr Angela Strank 235 - - 235 -
Tony Ballance® 22,566 25,007 13,547 725 39 359 278%
Liv Garfield 21,748 124,828 - 1,136 125,964 34%
Martin Kene* 32 051 31,480 18,310 1,393 49,183 314%
Michael McKean 55,456 55 543 20,782 - 85,325 242%
Andy Smith® 31,815 35,004 17,583 1,293 53,880 206%
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Deferred shares % sharcholding
Beneficlally under the Annuai gwdeline
Director owned LTIP and SMP Bonus SAYE options Total achieved*
Tony Weay* 45,837 35,253 0 - 35,253 -

"  The share pnce used to calculate the percentage of the shareholding guldeline achieved was £20 53 (as at 31 March 2015)
Richard Davey retired from the board on 23 January 2015

Baroness Noakes retired from the board on 16 July 2014

Tony Ballance, Martin Kane and Andy Smith stepped dawn from the board on 23 January 2015

Tony Wray retired from the board on 11 Apnl 2014, the outstand:ng scheme interests have been adjusted to reflect a tme pro rata
reduction

Shares counting towards achievement of the guideline includs beneficially owned shares and the net of tax value of deferred
shares under the annual bonus since they are not subject to performance condiions The executive directors are expected to
retain all shares recewved through the vesting of any incentive schemes (after the settiement of any tax liabilty) untl the
shareholding guidelines are met.

& W N -

There has been no change in the directors’ interests in the ordiary share capital of the company between 31 March and
21 May 2015

Percentage increase in the remuneration of the Chief Executive

2015 2014 % Change
Chief Executive (£'000)
— Salary’ 650.0 561 2 15.8%
- Benefits 1686 165 06%
- Baonus 405.5 452 4 (10 4%)
Average per employee (£'000)
~ Salary 288 285 11%
— Benefits’ 0.5 04 25%
— Bonus® 1.2 13 {7.7%)
1  The salary figure for 2015 has been adjusted to include salary pald into the pension scheme as an employer penslon contnbution via

salary sacrifice
2 Includes car allowance and family level private medical Insurance for sentor and middle managers
3 The figures are based on an estimate as the 2015 bonuses are not finalised before the date of publicaton
The table above shows the movement in salary, benefits and annual bonus for the diractor occupying the role of Chief
Executive between the cumrent and previous financial year compared with that of the average employee The Chief Executive
figures for 2014 relate to the former Chief Executive, Tony Wray The figures for 2015 relate to the curmment Chief Executive, Liv
Garfield
The committee has siected to use the average eamings per employee as this avoids the distortions that ¢an occur to the

company’s total wage bili as a result of movements in the number of employees The comparator group used were Severn
Trent Water Limited employees basad in the UK as this 18 where the vast majonty of our employees are based
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Total shareholder return chart {not subject to audit}

This graph shows the value, at 31 March 2015, of £100 invested in Severn Trent Plc on 1 Apnl 2009 compared with the value
of £100 invested in the FTSE 100 index The FTSE 100 was chesen as the comparator index because the company 1s a
constituent of that index. The intermediate points show the value at the inlervening financial year ends

Total remuneration of the Chief Executive
Year ending 31 March

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Chief Executive Tony Wray | Tony Wray Tony Tony Wray Tony Liv
Wray Wray Garfleld
Total remuneration (£°000) 1,027 0 949 8 1,244 1 1,635 3 18184 20077
Annual bonus (% of maximum}) 515% 43 2% 48 1% 82 4% 78 7% 52 0%
LTiP vesting (% of maximum) 63 0% 0 0% 26 4% 57 5% 160% 100%
SMP vesting {% of maximum) - - - - 78% -

Relative importance of the spend on pay
The table below shows the expenditure of the company on staff costs against dvidends paid to shareholders for both the
current and prior financial penods, and the percentage change batwaen the two penods

2015 2014 % Change
Staff costs (E'm) 369 5 351.9 50%
Dividends {£'m) 196.9 1853 6 3%

How the policy will be applied In 2015 onwards
Salary, benefits and pension

The base salary for the Chief Executive will increase by 2 1% on 1 July 2015 {from £650,000 to £663,650) This I1s lower than
the average increase that will apply to the general UK workforce As a new joiner to the company, James Bowling's salary will
next be reviewed on 1 July 2016 The base salanes for the executive directors from 1 July 2015 are therefore as follows

Liv Garfleld £663,650

James Bowling £400,000

Benefits and pension provision will be applied in line with the policy set out in the table on pages 71 and 72

Annual bonus

The structure and operation of the annual bonus for the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer will be as outhned in the
policy table The parformance measures will be Sevemn Trent Water profit before interest and tax {50%), business unit
performance (40%) and personal performance (10%) The business unit performance relates to performance agamnst Severn
Trent Water Outcome Delivery Incentives (25%), Severn Trent Business Services profit before interest and tax (10%) and
health and safety perfformance (5%) The Remuneration Committee considers the forward-looking performance targets to be
commaearcially sensitive and has, therefore, determined not to disciose them in advance Details of the targets used will be
disclosed In next year's Remuneration report
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Long Term Incentive Plan

LTIP awards for 2015 will be 125% of salary for the Chief Executive and 80% for the Chief Financial Officer, and will be made
as soon as possible after the AGM (subject to approval of the Policy report). The awards will be based on return on regulatory
equity (RORE) over the three year period to 31 March 2018 Our three year average RORE performance will be compared with
the baseline RORE figure set by Ofwat in our Final Determination 25% of the award will vest if average RORE matches the
bassline figure of 5 65%, increasing on a straight line basis to full vesting for outperforming the baseline by 1 29 times
{equivalent to 7 29%) The Remuneration Commiftee considers that tha threshold targst 1s demanding and more chalienging
than the RORCYV target set for the previous AMP It also considers that the upper target is very challenging and would require
very significant ODI and financing outperformance, together waith a very high level of efficiencles, and was set significantly
ahead of analyst consensus

Retiremeant from the board of Michaet McKeon

Michael McKeon will be retinng from the company on 31 May 2015 He will not receive any compensation for loss of office As
a retiree, Michael McKeon will be treated as a good leaver in relation to his outstanding incentive awards Consistent with the
policy on terrmnations, his bonus for 2014/15 wili be paid in cash and his outstanding deferred share bonus awards will vest, in
full, on cessation of employment His outstanding awards under the SMP and LTIP will continue to vest on the normal vesting
dates, subject to perfomance and a time pro rata reduction (where relevant) Any oulstanding awards under the company's
HMRC tax advantaged all employee share pians vest in accordance with their terms

Recruitment of James Bowling as Chief Financial Officer

The remuneration package granted to James Bowling on appointment 1s as follows
e Salary of £400,000

¢ Pension contnbution of 25% of salary

¢ Annual bonus potential of 120% of salary

« LTIP grant level of 80% of salary

The annual bonus and LT!P Jeve!s are in line with our policy A one off LTIP award was necessary to secure his appointment,
as partial consideration for hus significant unvested entitlements at his previous employer The award will be spiit into three
equal tranches, the face value of each being £308,000 vesting in 2015, 2016 and 2017 It will be subject to the same
performance conditions as the equivalent Severn Trent LTIP awards vesting in each of those years

Non-executive directors’ fees
There have been no changes to the fee levels for the Chairman and non-executive directors dunng the year The cumrent fee
levels are set out In the table below

Fees

Chairman’s fee £257,000
Base fee paid to all non-executive directors £51,350
Supplementary fees

- Semor Independent Director £10,000
= Audit Committee Charman £15,000
— Remuneration Commitiee Chairman £15,000
— Corporate Responsibility Committee Chaiman £13,000
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The Chawrman and non-executive directors nommally serve for terms of three years The current expiry dates of therr letters of
appomtment are John Coghlan (22 May 2017), Andrew Duff (9 May 2016), Gordon Fryett (20 June 2015}, Martin Lamb (1
March 2017), Philip Remnant (31 March 2017) and Dr Angela Strank (24 January 2017} Howsver, all of the directors are

subject to reappointment at the 2015 AGM

Statement of shareholding voting at AGM

Atlast year's AGM, the Directors’ Remuneration repar! and polhey received the followang votes from shareholders

Resolution Votes for Votas against Votes withheld

Approve Directors’ Remuneration Report 138,974,226 908,111 (0.65%) 719,294
(99 35%)

Approve Directors’ Remuneration Policy 136,960,503 3,276,685 (2 34%) 362,862
{97 66%)

Philip Remnant
Chalrman of the Remuneration Committee
21 May 2015

Govaernance
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Directors’ report
The directors present therr report, tegether with the audited group financial statements, for the year ended 31
March 2015 The Governance sechon set out on pages 52 to 60 forms part of this report.

Principal activity
The principal activity of the group I1s to treat and provide water and remove waste water in the UK and
Internationally

Details of the pnneipal joint ventures, associated and subsidiary undertakings of the group at 31 March 2015 are
shown i notes 19 and 45 to the financial statements on pages 119 and 145 to 146

Business review

The Strategic report on the inside front cover through to page 46 provides detailed information relating to the
group, its business models and strategy, the operation of its businesses, future developments and the resulls and
financial position for the year ended 31 March 2015

Details of the principal nsks and uncertainties facing the group are set out in the nsk management section
on pages 3810 42

Directors and their interests

Biographies of the diractors currently serving on the board are set out on pages 48 and 48 In addition, Michael
McKeon and Richard Davey served as directors dunng the year ended 31 March 2015

All of the directors will be offering themselves for election or re-election at the Annual General Meeting (AGM), as
set out in the Governance report on page 52

Details of directors’ service contracts are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on page 76 The mnterests of
the directors in the shares of the company are shown on page 87 of that report The board has a full documented
process i place in respect of conflicts which 1s documented on page 57 and 58

Insurance and indemnities

The company mantains directors’ and officers’ lability imsurance in respect of legal action that might be brought
agamst its directors and officers In accordance with the company’s Articles of Association, and to the extent
permitted by law, the company indemnified each of its directors and other officers of the group against certain
llabilitres that may be incurred as a result of therr positions with the group

Severn Trent does not have in place any indemnittes for the benefit of the auditors

Employees
The average number of employees within the group 1s shown in note 9 to the financial statements on page 112

Severn Trent believes a diverse and inclusive workforce is a key factor in being a successful business This
means more than ensuring we don’t discnminate in any way ~ we want t¢ create and maintain a culture opento a
diverse population We endeavour to keep employees in the workforce if they become disabled, and make
reasonable adjustments to therr role as wel as looking for redeployment opporturuties elsewhere tn the company
if necessary All our training, promotion and career development processes are In place for all our employees to
access, regardless of therr gender, race, age or disability

The provision of occupational health programmes Is of crucial iImportance to Severn Trent with the aim of keeping
our employees fit and healthy, including an employee assistance programme which Is available to Severn Trent
Water Limited employees
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The group actively encourages employee involvement and consultation and places emphasis on keeping its
employees informed of its activity and financial performance by way of company wide communication forums,
briefings and pubticatton to staff of all relevant information and corporate announcements To help align
employees’ interests with the success of the Company's performance, Severn Trent offers employees, the Severn
Trent Sharesave Scheme, an HM Revenue and Customs approved SAYE plan, which 1s offered to UK employees

on an annual bas:s

Research and development
Expenditure on research and development I1s set out in note 7 to the financial statements on page 111

Treasury management ,
The disclosures required under the EU Fair Value Directive in relation to the use of financial instruments by the |
company are set out in note 35 to the financial statements on pages 131 to 137 Further detaills on our treasury
policy and management are set out in the Financtal review on page 43

Post balance sheet events
Details of post balance sheet events are set out in note 43 to the group financial statements on page 145

Dividends

An intenm dividend of 33 96 pence per ordinary share was paid on 9 January 2015. The directors recommend a
final dvidend of 50 94 pence per ordinary share to be paid cn 24 July 2015 to shareholders on the register on
19 June 2015, This would bring the total dmidend for 2014/15 to 84 80 pence per ordinary share (2014

80 40 pence) The payment of the final dividend 1s subject to shareholder approval at the AGM

Capital structure

Detatls of the Company’s 1ssued share capital and of the movements durning the year are shown in note 8 to the
Company financial statements on page 152. The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carries no nght
to fixed income Each share carries the nght to one vote at general meetings of the Company The 1ssued nominal
value of the ordinary shares 1s 100% of the total 1ssued nominal value of all share capital

There are no specific restnctions on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares, which are both governed
by the general provisions of the Articles of Association and prevalling legislation The directors are not aware of
any agreements between holders of the Company’s shares that may result in restrictions on the transfer of
secunties or on voting nghts

Details of employee share schemes are set out in note 37 to the financial statements on pages 139 and 140 For
shares held by the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust, the trustee abstains from voting

No person has any special nghts of control over the Company's share capital and all issued shares are fully pad

With regard to the appointment and replacement of directors, the Company 1s governed by its Articles of
Association, the Governance Code, the Companies Act 2006 and related legislation The Articles may be
amended by spectal resolution of the shareholders The powers of directors are described in the Severn Trent Plc
Board Governance document, the Articles and the Governance Report on pages 53 and 54

Under its Articles of Association, the directors have authority to allot ordinary shares, subject to the aggregate
nominal amount imit set at the 2014 AGM

There are a number of agreements that take effect after, or terminate upon, a change of contral of the Company,
such as commercial contracts, bank loan agreements, property jease arrangements and employee share plans
None of these is considered to be significant in terms of their likely impact on the business of the group as a
whole There are no agreements between the Company and its directors or employees that provide for
compensation for loss of office or employment that occurs because of a takeover bid
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Substantial shareholdings

As at 31 March 2015 the Company had been notified in accordance with chapter 5 of the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules of the following major shareholdings

Percentage

No of of voting

ordinary righta and

shares of 1ssued

Name of Holder 97"/,p each | share capital
Blackrock Inc 23,457,458 9 87%
Legal & General Group Plc 9,523,698 3 99%

As at 21 May 2015, the Company had been notified of the following holdings of voling nghts m the ordinary share
capital of the Company Blackrock Inc 23,457,458 {9 87%), Legal & General Group Plc 8,523,698 (3 89%)

Authority to purchase shares

The Company was given authonity at its AGM in 2014 to make market purchases of ordinary shares up to a
maximum number of 23,849,741 ordinary shares Similar authority will again be sought from shareholders at this
year's AGM On 13 February 2015, the Company announced that it would commence a share repurchase
programme Following that announcement, during the year ended 31 March 2015 market purchases of 866,578
ordinary shares were made with all of these shares being cancelled following their purchase at an average price
of 2,031 pence Following the year end, a further 882,678 ordinary shares have been repurchased to 21 May
2015 at an average price of 2,139 pence In total 4,018,092 ordinary shares have been cancelled with 733,946
ordinary shares being held in treasury at 21 May 2015 to satisfy future share based awards under long term
incentives plan and no ordinary shares having been transferred from treasury to satisfy the exercise of share
options

The share repurchase was considered a low rnisk method of returning capital to shareholders, satisfying future
share awards and moving gearnng in Severn Trent Water Limited towards the 62 5% net debt/RCV notional level
used by Ofwat in the pnice review PR14 The share repurchase has had minimal impact on EPS, with less than
0 5% of 1ssued share capital cancelled dunng the year, increasing EPS by 0 1%

Contributions for political and charitable purposes

Donations to chantable organisations during the year amounted to £157,648 (2014 £108,000) Donations are
given to chanbies whose projects align closely with our aim to promote the responsible use of water resources and
waste water services which provide the opportunity for ionger term partnerships In addiion, we provide donations
to employee nominated chanties through a matched funding scheme and health and safety reward schemes We
are also commitied to supporiing WaterAid, the UK's only major chanty dedicated to improving access to safe
water, hygiene and sanitatron in the world’s poorest countries

Severn Trent's policy Is not to make any donations for political purpeses in the UK, or to donate to EU political
parties or ncur EU political expenditure Accordingly neither Severn Trent Plc nor its subsidiaries made any
pohtical donabons or incurred political expenditure in the financial year under review
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Under the provisions of the Political Parties Elections and Referendums Act 2000 (the relevant provisions of which
are now contained in Part 14 of the Companies Act 2006), shareholder authority Is required for political donations
to be made or political expenditure to be incurred by the company or any of its subsidiaries in the EU and
disclosure of any such payment must be made in the Annual Report The legislation gives a wide definition of
what constitutes political donations and political expenditure including sponsarship, subscriptions, payment of
expenses, paid leave for employees fulfilling public duties and support for bodies representing the business
community in policy review or reform The Company has therefore obtained imited authonty from shareholders as
a precautionary measure to allow the Company to continue supporting the community and such organisations
without inadvertently breaching the leg:slation

At the 2014 AGM, shareholders gave the Company authonty to make political donations or to incur political
expenditure in the EU {(which would not ordinarily be regarded as pohtical donations) up to an aggregate annual
himit of £150,000 for the Company and its subsidianes Pursuant to those authorities, during the year ended

31 March 2015 the group incurred costs of £nil (2014 £ni) Those authonttas will expire at the 2015 AGM and, in
line with market practice to renew the authorities on an annual basis, the board has decided to put forward a
resofution to this year's AGM to renew the authorities to make donations to polittcal organisations and to incur
political expenditure up to a maximum aggregate of £150,000 per annum As permitted under the Companies Act
2006, this resolution also covers any political donations made or political expenditure incurred, by any subsidiaries
of the Company

Supplier payment policy

Individual operating companies within the group are responsible for establishing appropriate policies with regard
to the payment of therr suppliers, in accordance wath the Prompt Payment Code (PPC) The companies agree
terms and conditions under which business transactions with suppliers are conducted It 1s group policy that
provided a supplier is complying with the relevant terms ard conditions, including the prompt and complete
submissien of all specified documentation, payment will be made 1n accordance with agreed terms It is also group
policy to ensure that suppliers know the terms on which payment will take place when business 1s agreed

Report on greenhouse gas emissions
Thus is the second year Severn Trent has been required io report greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions in the
Directors’ report

Sevemn Trent 1s commtted to reducing its GHG emissions For Severn Trent Water Limited, which accounts for 98
% of our total group emissions, we have been publicly reporting on our emissions since 2002 In that time we
have reduced our emissions primarily by being more energy efficient and generating more renewable energy.

QOur continued investment in renewable energy over the past decade and beyond now allows us to generate
250 GWh per annum, the equivalent of 28% of Severn Trent Water Limited’s electricity needs over the year

Durnng the last year, we began generating renewable electncity from food waste, increased generation from
energy crops and wind power and began injecting renewable biogas from sewage directly nto the national gas
gnd

In 2002 we set ourselves a target to generate the equivalent of 30% of Severn Trent Water's electricity needs by
2015 In February 2015 we met that target, generating the equivalent of 31% in the month, which rose to 33% in
March We continue to lead the UK water mdustry in renewable energy production Our aim 1s to retain this
lsading position by generating the equivalent of 50% of our electricity needs by 2020

Severn Trent Water has held the Carbon Trust Standard since 2009 In recognition of consistent emisstons
reductions and effective carbon management processes. Our Gross Greenhouse Gas (GHG} emissions have
continued to reduce since we first achieved the standard because of our reduction in energy consumption and our
increase in self supplied renewable energy This year, Severn Trent Water used 885 GWh of electnicity, which 1s
17 GWh (2%) less than in 2009-10
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Cur approach of generating more of our own energy and reducing the amount we use reduces our costs and our
relsance on the electrncity gnid

Further dstails about our approach to climate change and the risks and opportunities it presents to our business
are set out in our Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP) submission (www cdp net) The CDP request information
about climate change from compantes each year on behalf of investors and score each company on the quality
and completenass of thew responses. We have seen a year on year umprovement in our CDP score and in 2014
we achieved 85%, compared to the average score of 77% across FTSE 350 companies

Our GHG emissions are reported m tonnes of carbon dioxide equivatent (tCO.e), for the period 1 April 2014 to
31 March 2015

Our total net emuissions have nsen this year, due entirely to an 11% increase in the emissions intensity of gnid
electricity, a factor over which we have no control On a like for ike basis our emissions from the use of fuel and
operation of our facilifies and our total energy consumption decreased by 1% compared to last year

The GHG data we report 1s reported internally during the year to the Corporate Responsibility Comrmuttee and to
the board We have subjected our GHG data and processes to external assurance by Atkins

Severn Trent Plc Direct Operational Greenhouse Gas Emissions (tonnes COje) 2014-15 2013-14
Emissions from combustion of fuel and operation of factlities (Stope 1) 154,644 168,844
Emisslons from electricity purchased

for own use {Scope 2) 357,756 330,697
Total Annual Gross Operatronal Emissions 512,400 500,523
Emisslons benefit of the renewable energy we export (induding blomethane exportad for which we hold

green gas cerlificates) {38,878) (21,672}
Total Annual Net Operational Emissions 473,522 478,851
Annual GHG intensity ratio (t CO2/unit) 2014-15 2013-14
Qperational GHG emissions of Severn Tront per £€m turnover 2697 269.6

QOur approach to reporting 1s based on the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard and we
have included only emissions from the assets which we own and operate and which we can directly influence and
reduce, known as the financial control boundary In accondance with the reporting regulations, we have not
reported on emissions we can influence, but which we are not responsible for, referred to as indirect emissions

For Severn Trent Water, we have calculated our emissions using the ‘Carbon accounting in the UK Water
Industry. methodology for estimating operational emissions, Version 9 11" (released April 2015) This 1s a peer
reviewed calculation tool developed and used by all the major water companies in the UK It is updated each year
to include the latest avalable emissions factors, For Severn Trent Services, we have used the latest Defra
Emisstons factors which include the relevant conversion factors for overseas electricity

Our fong term aim is to be carbon neutral and energy self sufficient, provided that this 15 the best value option for

our customers and investors We plan to continue to reduce our emissions within Severn Trent Water by a further

7% between 2015 and 2020, primariy by reducing our energy use We plan to continue to increase our renewable
generation mamly within our non-regulated business Pursuing these measures will continue to reduce our key .
sources of emissions, reduce our reliance on the electricity gnd and bnng financial benefits for our customers and
Investors

Internal controls
The board i1s responsible for the group's system of intemal control and for reviewing its effectiveness The hoard
regularly reviews the effectiveness of the system of internal control, including nsk management, financiai,
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operational and compliance aspects, in accordance with the requirements of the Governance Code. The internal
control system can provide only reasenable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, as
it is designed to manage rather than eliminate the nsk of fallure to achieve business objectives

The Audit Committee reviews the group's risk management process and the effectiveness of the system of
internal controls on behalf of the board and keeps under review ways in which to enhance the control and
assurance arangements The Audit Committee receives reports every six months from the Chief Executive
detailing the significant nisks and uncertainties faced by the group, an assessment of the effectiveness of controls
over each of those rnisks and an action plan fo improve controls where this has been assessed as necessary
Durning its review of nsk management during 2014/15, the board explicitly considered the target position for
sigrificant nsks The board considered whether target nsk positions are appropriate and confirmed that suitable
timescales are agreed for reaching these target positions.

Duning the course of its review of the system of internal control in 2014/15, the Audit Commitiee has not identified
nor been advised of any significant failings or weaknesses which it has determined to be significant to the group

The Internal Audit department provides objective assurance on nsk management, governance and control
matters, The external auditors (Deloitte) report significant financial control issues to the Audit Committee

An independent reporter (Atkins) provides objective assurance In relation to the Severn Trent Water Limited

Annual Regulatory Comphance Statement and Annual Regulatory Performance Report. Deloitte performed

calculations of the financial KP!s included in the Annual Regulatory Comphance Statement and the Annual

Regulatory Performance Report

The board confirms that procedures providing an ongomng process for identifying, evaluating and managing the

principal nsks and uncertainties faced by the group has been in place for the year to 31 March 2015 and up to the

date of approval of the Annua! Report, which Is in accordance with the revised gutdance on internal control

published in Qctober 2005 (the Turnbull Guidance)

The group's procedures for exercising control and managing risk in relation to financial reporting and preparation

of consolidated accounts include

« the formulation and communication of group accounting policies which are regularly updated for
developments in IFRS and other reporting requirements,

» specification of a set of financial controls that all of the group’s operating husinesses are required to
implement as a mimmum,

* deployment of a group-wide consolidation system with controls to restrict access and maintain integnty of
data,

+ recruitment, training and development of appropnately qualified and experienced financial reporting
personnel,

s oversight by the Disclosure Committee of the group’s compliance with its disclosure obhigations, and
« monthly reviews by the board of financial reports from the group’s operating businesses
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Relevant audit information

The directors confirm that

+ so far as each of them 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit mformation of which the company's auditors are
unaware, and

» each of them has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director to make himse!f/herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that
information

Thus confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the

Companies Act 2006

External auditors

Having carried out a review of therr effectiveness during the year, the Audit Committee has recommended to the
board the reappcintment of Delortte LLP The reappointment and a resolution to that effect will be an the agenda
at the AGM Deloitte LLP indicated their willingness to continue as auditors The Audit Committee will also be
responsible for determining the audit fee on behalf of the board

Disclosures required under Listing Rule 9.8.4R

The information required to be disciosed by Listing Rule 9 8 4R can be located in the following pages of this
Annual Report and Accounts'

Section Information to be included Location

{1} A statement of the amount of interest capitalised 112

{4} Details of long term incentive schemes 79

{8) Section 7 1n relation to any major subsidiary undertakings 145

(2), (5). (8). (7). (BH14) Not applicable

Accounts of Severn Trent Water Limited

Regulatory accounts for Severn Trent Water Limited are prepared and sent to Ofwat A copy of these accounts
will be available on the website of Severn Trent Water Limited {(www stwater co.uk) or on request to the Company
Secretary There is no charge for this publication

Going concern

The group's business activiies, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and
position and the business reviews of Severn Trent Water Limited and Severn Trent Services are set out in the
Strategic report, from the inside front cover to page 35 The financial position of the group, its cash flows, hquidity
position and borrowing facidities are described 1n the Financial review on pages 43 to 46 The group’s objectives,
policies and processes for managing its capital and its financial risk management objectives are descnbed in the
Financial review on pages 43 to 46 and in the Govemnance report Detalls of the group's financial instruments,
hedging activities and exposure to credit nsk and liquidity nsk are described in note 35 to the group financial
siatements
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The group’s principal operating subsidiary, Severn Trent Water Limited, 1s a regulated long term business
characterigsed by mult year investment programmes The group’s strategic funding objectives reflect this The
group therefore seeks to attain a balance of long term funding or commitment of funds across a range of funding
at the best possible economic cost Average debt maturity 1s 15 years and the effective average interest cost
during the year was 5 6% The group 1s 1n a strong liquidity position and had £178 7 million in cash and hquid
reserves and £745 milhon of undrawn committed bank faciiies at 31 March 2015, which are expected to be
sufficient to fund its Investment and cash flow needs at least until July 2016 in the normal course of business

Severn Trent Water Limited operates in an industry that 1s currently subject to economic regulation rather than
market competition, although Ofwat have signalled an mtention to infroduce more competition in therr 2020 water
purrfication sector Ofwat, the economic regulator, has a statutory obligation to set price imits that it believes will
enable the water companies to finance therr activities As a consequence the directors believe that the group 1s
well placed to manage its business risks successfully

After making enquines, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the group have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Annual Report and Accounts

Annual General Meeting

The AGM of the Company will be held at the International Convention Centre, Broad Street, Birmingham B1 2EA
at 11am on Wednesday 15 July 2015 The notice convening the meeting, together with details of the business to
be considered and explanatory notes for each resclution, 1s distnbuted separately to shareholders It is also
available on our website (www severntrent com)

By order of the board

Bronagh Kennedy

Group General Counsel and Company Secretary
21 May 2015
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Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors are required to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have
elected fo prepare the group financial statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework Under company law the directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for

that period

in preparing the parant company Financial Statements, the directors are required to
+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

» make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

« state whether Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework has been followed, subject
to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

o prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business

In preparing the group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors

+ properly setect and apply accounting policies,

= present information, including accounting policies, n a manner that provides relevant, rehiable, comparable
and understandable information,

s provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand the mpact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's
financial position and financial performance, and

« make an assessment of the company's abiity to continue as a going concemn

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also
rasponsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the company’s website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may dffer from legislation in other Junsdictions

Responsibility statement
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

+ the Financial Statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabihties, financial position and profit or loss of the company and the undertakings
included in the consohidation taken as a whols,

* the Strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the
position of the company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a
descriphon of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face, and
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* the Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a whole, are farr, balanced and understandable and
provide the information necessary for shareholders to assess the company’s performance, business model
and strategy

This responsibiiity statement was approved by the board of directors on 21 May 2015 and 1s signed on its behalf

’ ol

Andrew Duff James Bowling
Chairman Chief Financral Officer
21 May 2015
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Income statement
Earrungs per share, group revenue, costs and other important financial informatian

Further details are provided on page 96

Balance sheet
The group’s balance sheet at 31 March 2015

Further details are provided on page 99

Notes

Accounting policies, segmental information and other helpful guidance
Further details are provided on page 101
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Severn Trent Plc

Optnion on financial In our opinion
statements of
Sevem Trent Plic

Disclosure Framework

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent cornpany's affairs

as at 31 March 2015 and of the group's profit for the year than ended,

» the group financlal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umion,

s the parent company financial statements have been propery prepared in accordance with Financial
Reporung Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework, and

s the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companles Act
2006 and, as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

The financial statements comprise the Consolidated income statement, the Consolidated and Parent Company
statements of comprehensive income, the Consolidated and Parent Company balance sheets, the
Consolidated cash flow statement, the Consclidated and Parent company statements of changes in equity and
the related Consolidated notes 1 to 45 and Parent Company notes 4 to 16 The financial reporting framework
that has been applled in the preparation of the group financial statements 1s apphcable law and IFRSs as
adopted by the European Umon The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of
the parent company financlal statements s apphicable law and Financlal Reporting Standard 101 Reduced

Going concern

continue as a going concem

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the direclors’ statement contamed within the Directors’

Report on page 88 that the group Is a going concem We confirm that

»  we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the praparation of
the financial statements '3 appropriate, and

»  we have not identified any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the group's ability to

Howaver, becausa not all fulure events or conditons can be predicted, this statement 15 not a guarantee as to
the group’s abihty to continue as a going concein

Our assessment of risks

The assessed nsks of material misstatement descnbed below are those that had the greatest affect on our

of matenal audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team

misstaternent

Risk

How the scope of our audit responded to the risk

Determination of the provision for impairment of trade
recelvables in Sovern Trent Water Limited (£122 5 million)
{note 4)

A proportion of Severn Trent Water Limited’s customers do not or
cannot pay their bills which results in the need for provisions to be
made for non payment of the customer balance There 18
significant judgement involved in calculating the bad debt
provision, particularly regarding the estmation of future cash
collecton

Provisions are made against Severn Trent Water Limited’s trade
recelvables based on histoncal expenence of levels of recovery
from accounts in particular ageing categones

We reviewed and challenged the information used to determine the
bad debt prownision by considenng cash collection performance
against historical trends and the level of bad debt charges over
time Specifically, we reviewed the actual history of slow paying
customers in Severn Trant Water Limited in the penod using data
analytics to understand the collection of previously aged debtors
and to recompute the ageing analysis We also tested the key
controls relating to the production of the data used in the bad debt
modsal and agreed a sample of this data back to Its source, being
the billing system
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Revenue racognition rigk in ralation to the estimation of
unbilled revenue in Severn Tront Water Limited (€192 5§
million) (nots 4)

For water and waste water customers with water meters, the
amount recogmised depends upon the volurne supplied, Including
an estimate of the sales value of units supplied between the date
of the last meter reading and the year end This is a key judgement
because the estimated usage 1s based upon historical data and
assumpbons around consumpbon pattems

We challenged the validity of management’s estimate of current
year accrued revenue by companng actual amounts billed fo the
estimate made in the prior year to determine the accuracy of the
estimation techniques [n addition, we used data analytics to
recomputa the total level of unbllied revenue for the current year in
Severn Trent Water Limited as well as testing the operating
affectiveness of controls relating to the key data inputs to the mode!
and agreed a sampie of this data back to its source

Determining the classification of costs between operating
expenditure and capltal expenditure in Sevarn Trent Water
Limited (note 7)

Sevemn Trent Water Limitad has a substantial capital programme
(fixed asset additions in the year £423 8 million) which has been
agreed with Ofwat and therefore Incurs significant expenditure in
relation to the development and maintenance of both infrastructure
and non mirastructure assets Expenditure in relaton to increasing
the capacity or enhancing the network is ireated as capital
expanditure Expenditure incurred in maintaining the operating
capability of the network 1s expensed in the year (£134 8 million} in
which it 1s incured Capital projects often contain a comhination of
enhancement and maintenance achwity which are not distinct and
therefore the allocation of costs betwean capital and operating
expendrture 1s mherently judgemental

We assessed the group's capitalisation policy to determine
compliance with relevant accounting standards and tested the
operating effectiveness of controis over the application of the policy
{o expenditure incurred on projects within the group’s caprtal
programme dunng the year This includes censidesation of the
allocation of costs between caplital and operating expendlture

In edditon, for a sample of capital projects, we assessed the
applicaton of the capitalisation policy to the costs incurred by
agreement to third party invoices and obtained explanations and
further support for any significant changes in capital expenditure
from budget

Determining the amount of the group’s rettrement benefit
obligations (E468 @ million deficit) (note 28)

This 15 a key area of judgement because the process Is compiex
and requires management (after taking advice from their actuanal
advisers) io make a number of assumptlons concerning long term
interest rates, inflation, salary and pensien Increases, Investment
returns and longevity of current and future penstoners,

With support from the penslon specialists within our audit team, we
challenged the assumptions used in the calculation of the pension
scheme deficit as detailed in note 28, specifically regarding the
discount rate. infiation rate and mortality assumptions with
reference to comparable market and other third party data

Determination of current and deferred tax balances
(E32.7 mitlion} (note 13)

Assessing the outcome of uncertaln tax positions requires
Judgements to be made regarding the result of negotations with,
and enquines from, tax authorities in a number of jurisdichons

With support from the tax specialists within our audit team, we
constdered the likely outcomes of uncertain tax positions and
raviewed correspondence with the relevant tax authorites to assess
tha appropriateness of the tax balances that have been recorded in
the balance sheet

The descniption of nsks above should be read in conjunction with the significant i1ssues considered by the Audit

Committee discussed on page 63
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Our audit procedures relating to these matters were designed In the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and not to express an opinion on individual accounts or disclosures Our opinion on the
financial statements 1s not modrfied with respect to any of the risks described above, and we do not express an
opinion on these individual matters

Our application of
materiahty

We define matenality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or
influenced We use matenality both in planning the scope of our audit werk and in evaluating the results
of our work

We determined materiality for the group to be £18 million (2014 £18 milion), which is approximately

6 0% (2014 approximately 7 0%} of pre-iax profit before exceptional items and other adjustments
including the fair value movements in financtal instruments As 1n 2014, these items are excluded to
focus on the group's underiying trading performance, consistent with the group's intemal and externai
reporting

Wa agreed with the Audit Commuttee that we would report to the committee all audit differences in
excess of £750,000, as well as differences balow that threshold that, in our view, warmranted reporting on
qualitative grounds We also report to the Audit Cornmittee on disclosure judgements that we identfied
when assessing the overall presentatien of the financial statements

An overview of the scope
of our audit

Our group audit was scoped by obtaming an understanding of the group and s environment, including
group-wide controls, and assessing the nsks of material misstatement at the group level Based on that
assessment, we focused our group audit scope on the consolidation at the parent company level and
tha group's two business segments being Severn Trent Water Lanited and Severn Trent Services
Severn Trent Water Limited was subject to a full statutory audit using component materality of £15
million and it accounts for over 90% {2014 over 80%) of the group’s net operating assels and operating
profit The extent of our testing on Severn Trent Services was based on our assessment of the nsks of
matenal misstatement and the matenality of the segment’s global business operations, principally in the
UK and the US The materiality of each companent belng lower than that of the group, with the highest
materiality {£12 million) apphed to the US component

Al the parent company level, we also tested the consclidation process and carried out analytical
procedures to confirm our conclusion that there were no significant risks of matenal misstatement of the
aggregated financial nformation of the remalning compaonents not subject to audit or audit of specified
account balances

The group audit team follows a programme of planned wislis to the auditors of each of the significant
components of the group nol audited by the group team This pnmarily refates to the Sevem Trent
Services audit team in the US The Semior Statutory Auditor or another senior member of the group
team visits the Sevemn Trent Services audit team in the US at least once every twe years |n years when
we do not vislt a signdicant componant we will include the component audit team in our team briefing,
discuss their risk assessment, and review documentation of the findings from their work

Opinion on other matters
prescribed by the

|n qur opinlen
» the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Repott to be audted has been properly prepared in

Companles Act 2008 accordance with the Compamies Act 2006, and
« the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for
which the financlal statements are prepared is conststant with the financlal statements
Matters on which

we are raquired to
report by exception

Adequacy of explanations
receivad and accounting

Under the Compantes Act 2006 we are required to raport to you if, in our opinion
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records

e  we have not recelved all the mformation and explanations we require for our audrt: or

¢  adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retums adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

« the parent company financia! statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
retums
Wa have nothing to report in respect of these matfers

Directors’ temuneration

Under the Comparias Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of
directors’ remuneration have not been made or the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited 1s not tin agreement with the accounting records and retums We have nothung fo report ansing
from these matters

Corporata Governance
Statement

Under the Listing Rules we are also required to review the part of the Corporate Govemance Statement
relating to the company’s compliance with ten provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code We
have nothing to report arising from our review

Qur duty to read other
Information in the
Annual Report

Under Intemational Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland), we are required to report to you if, i our

opinion, information in the annual report is

« materally Inconsistent with the information in the audited financiat statements, or

¢ apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally Inconsistent with, our knowledge of the
greup acquired in the course of performing our audit, or

*  otherwise misleading

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have Idantifled any incansistencies between our

knowledge acquired during the audd and the directars’ statement that they considar the annuat repost 1s

fair, balanced and understandable and whether the annual report appropriately discioses those matters

that we communicated to the audit committee which we consider should have been disclosed We

confitm that we have not identified any such inconsistencies or misleading statements

Respective responsibiilties
of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilitres Statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our
respensibility 1s to audit and express an opinlon on the financia! statements 1n accordance with
apphcable law and Intematonal Standards on Auditing (UK and freland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors We alsa comply with
Intemnational Standard on Quality Control 1 (UK and Iretand) Our audit methodology and tools aim to
ensure that our quality control procedures are effective, understood and applied Cur quality controls
and systems include our dedicated professional standards review team and independent partner
reviews

This report 18 made solely to the company's members, as & body, in agcordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audt work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by iaw, we do not accept or assume responsibillty to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for cur audit work, for this
report, or for the opiniors we have formed

Scope of the audit of the
financizl statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or arror This includes an assessment of whether the
accounting polcies are appropnate to the group’s and the parent company’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasenablaness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addltion, we
read all the financial and non-financial information In the annual report to 1dentfy matenal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any mnformation that 1s apparently
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materially mcorrect based on, or matenally Inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course
of performing the audit. |f we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies

we consider the implications for our report

Cart D Hughes MA FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

London, UK
21 May 2015
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
Restated
Notes £m £m
Turnover 5.6 1,801.3 1,756 7
Qperating costs before exceptonal items 7 {1,261.0) (1232 9)
Exceptional operahng costs 8 (18 7) (152)
Total operating costs 7 {1,278 7) (1,248 1)
Profit before Interest, tax and exceptional items 5 540.3 523.8
Exceptional items before interest and tax 8 {187) (15 2)
Profit before interest and tax 5216 508 6
Finance incoma 10 817 808
Finance costs 11 (321 7) (328 7}
Net finance costs (240 0) (247 9)
{Losses)/gains on finandal instruments 12 {133 5) 580
Share of results of associates and jont ventures 01 02
Profit before 1ax, (losses)ygains on financial instruments and exceptional items 3004 2761
Exceptional items before tax 8 (187 (15 2)
(Losses)gains on financat mstruments 12 (133 5) 580
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 148 2 389
Current tax exduding exceptional credit 13 {37 8) {55 8)
Deferred tax excluding exceptional credit 13 51 (215)
Exceptiona! tax credit 13 - 2302
Total taxation on profit on ordinary activities 13 (32.7) 1529
Profit for the year from continulng operations 1155 4718
Profit/{loss) for the year from discontinued operatlons 38 47 (36 9)
Proflt for the year 120 2 434 9
Attributable to-
Owners of the company 119.1 4338
Non-controlling interests 1.1 11
120 2 4340
Earnings per share (pence)
From continuing operations
Basic 15 48.3 198 5
Dtluted 15 48.1 197 6
From contlnulng and discontinued operations
Basic 15 499 1821
Diluted 15 49 6 181 3
119
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Group financial statements

2015 2014
Em £m
Profit for the year 120.2 434 9
Other comprehenstve loss
Items that will not be reclassified to the income statement
Net actuanal {lossygan on defined benefit pension schemes (143.4) 37
Tax on net actuanal loss/gain 288 {0 8)
Deferred tax arising on change of rate - (12 3)
(114 6} {9 4)
ltems that may be reclass:fied o the income statement.
(Loss¥gain on cash flow hedges (13.8) 151
Deferred tax on loss/gain on cash flow hedges 28 (3m
Amaounts on cash flow hedges transterred to the income statement i the year 236 81
Deferred tax on transfars to income statement (47) (16)
Exchange movement on translabon of overseas resuits and net assets 8.9 @en
168 89
Other comprehenslve loss for the year (97 8) (05)
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year 224 434 4
Attributable to
Owners of the company 186 4343
Non-controlling Interests 28 01
224 434 4
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2015

Equity attributable to owners of the company

Non-
congollin
Share Share Cther Retalned aq Total
capital premium reservas eamings Total interests equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 Aprll 2013 2333 897 723 4379 8332 108 8440
Profit for the period - - - 4338 4338 11 4349
Galns on cash flow hedges - - 151 - 151 - 151
Deferred tax on gzins on cash flow hedges - - (3 0) - {30) - (3 0)
Amounts on cash flow hedges transfemred to
the income statement - - 81 - 81 - 81
Deferred tax on transfers to the income
statemant - - (16) - (186) - (16}
Exchange movement on translation of overseas
results and net assets - - (87) - 87) (10) {(87)
Actuanal gains - - - 37 a7z - 37
Tax on actuarial gains - - - (0 8) {0 8) - (0 8)
Defarred tax arising from rate change - - - (123) (12 3) - (12 3)
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 99 424 4 4343 01 434 4
Share opbons and LTIPs
- proceeds from shares issued 06 45 - - 51 - 51
- value of amployees’ services - - - 58 58 - 58
- own shares purchased - - - (28) (28) - (2 8)
Currant tax on share based payments - - - 10 10 - 10
Adjustment arising from change in non-
controlling Interest - - - (137 (137} 22 {11 5)
Dividends paid - - - {185 3) (185 3) 0 {185 9)
At 31 March 2014 23369 942 822 667 3 1,0776 125 1,090 1
Profit for the period - - - 1191 1191 11 1202
Losses on cash flow hedges - - (13 8) - (13 8) - (13 8)
Deferred tax on losses on cash flow hedges - - 28 - 28 - 28
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to
the Income statement - - 236 - 23.6 - 236
Deferred tax on transfers to the ncome
statement - - 47 - (47) - 47
Exchange movement on translation of overseas - - 72 - 72 17 89
21
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Equity attnbutable to owners of the company

Non-
controllin
Share Share Other | Relalned g Total
capital premium reserves earnings Total interests equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
results and net assets

Actuarial losses - - - {143 4) (143 4) - (143 4)
Tax on actuanal losses - - - 288 288 - 238
Total comprehensive income for the pencd - - 151 45 196 28 224

Share options and LTIPs
~  proteeds from shares issued 07 60 - - 67 - 67
—  value of employees’ services - - - 77 77 - 77
—  own shares purchased - - - (59 (59) ~ (59)
Current tax on share based payments - - - 07 07 - 07
Deferred tax on share based payments - - - 1) {01} - ©1n
Share buy back - - - (100 0) {100 0) - (100 0)
Share cancellation 09) - 0eg - - - -
Transfar - - - 05 05 {05) -
Dividends pad - - - (196 9) (196 9) {14) (198 3)
At 31 March 2015 2337 100.2 98.2 3778 8099 134 8233
122
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Consolidated balance sheet
At 31 March 2015

2015 2014
Nota Em £m
Non-current assots
Goodwill 16 143 14 8
Other Intanglble assets 17 66T 802
Property, plant and equipment 18 72298 7,0235
Interests in joint ventures and associates 19 46 52
Denvabve finandal assets 20 135 724
Available for sale financial assets 20 01 01
7,339 0 7.195 2
Current assets
Inventory 167 272
Trade and other recelvables pal 4920 5132
Current tax recelvable 12 165
Denvative financlal assets 20 135 129
Cash and cash eguivalents 22 1767 1232
Assets held for sale 38 1079 -
B18 D 6930
Total asseots 8,157 0 7,.8892
Curront Habllibes
Bomowings 23 {463 0) (206 1)
Derivative financial lisblthes 25 {32.2) {24 8)
Trade and other payables 26 (494 0) (4127)
Provisions for liabiiies and charges 29 (15 9) (121}
Liabltities associated with assets held for sale 38 {35 3) -
{1,040.4) {655 7)
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 23 {4,463 7} (4.416 0)
Darivative financial liabihtes 25 (175.1) {206 2)
Trade and other payables 26 {542 0} {492 4)
Deferred tax 27 (625 1) (654 0)
Retirement benefit obligations 28 {468 9) {348 3)
Provisions for liabiities and charges 29 (18.5) (26 5)
(6,293 3) (6,143 4)
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2015 2014
Note £m £m
Total liabilities (7.3337) {6,789 1)
Not assets 8233 1,090 1
Equity
Called up share capital 30 2337 23389
Share premium account N 100.2 942
Cther reserves 32 982 822
Retained earnings 37178 667 3
Equity attributable to owners of the company 809 8 1,077 6
Non-controling Intarests 124 125
Total equity 8233 1,090 1

Signed on behalf of the board who approved the accounts on 21 May 2015

Andrew Duff James Bowling z

Chairman Chuef Financial Officer
Company Number 2366619
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
Note £€m £m
Cash generated from operations 38 7601 7302
Tax (paid)received {28 6) 272
Net cash generated from operating activities 7315 757 4
Investing activities
Interest received 18 65
Acquisition of non-controlling interests - (11 4)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 11.6 103
Purchases of intangible assets (17.7 {139)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (448 2) {490.6)
Coninbutions and grants received 362 303
Net cash used In Investing activities (414 3) (468 8}
Financing activities
Interest paid (213 1) (206 9)
Payments to close out interest rate swaps (139 2) -
Interest element of finance lease payments {69) {42)
Dnndends paid to owners of the company {196 9) (185 3)
Dmdends paid to non-controlling interests {1.4) (0 6)
Repayments of borrowings {334.2) (172 4)
Repayments of obligabons under finance leases {21 2) (0 4)
New loans ralsed €850 a7
Issue of shares 8.7 51
Share buy back {17 5) -
Purchase of own shares (59) (2 8)
Net cash used In financing activities (244 6) (566 B)
Increasoaf{decreasa) in cash and cash equivalents 728 {278 2}
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of periad 123.2 4032
Effect of foreign exchange rates 0.2 (18}
Transferred to assets heid for sale 38 (18.3}) -
Net cash and cash equivalonts at end of period 1767 1232
Net cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash at bank and in hand 248 464
Short term deposits 151 8 768
Nat cash and cash equivalents at end of period 1187 1232
The increase In cash and cash equivalents 1s reconciled to the movement in net debt in note 39
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Notes to the group financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

1 General information
The Severn Trent group has a number of operations These are described in the segmental analysis in note §

Severn Trent Pic 1s a company incorporated and domiciled in the Umited Kingdom The address of its registered
office 1s shown on the back of the cover of the annual report and accounts.

Severn Trent Plc 1s isted on the London Stock Exchange

2 Accounting policies

a) Baslis of preparation

The financial statements for the group and the parent company have been prepared on the going concern basis
(see Directors' report on page 89) under the histoncal cost convention as modified by the revaluation of certain
financial assets and habilities at fair value

{i} Consolldated financial statements

The consalidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), Intemationat Accounting Standards (IAS) and IFRIC interpretations issued and effective and
ratified by the European Union as at 31 March 2015

{ii} Parent company financial statements

The parent company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and comply with the Companies Act 2006 The company meets the defintion of a qualffying entity as
defined in FRS 100 ‘Financiai Reporting Standard 100, accordingly the company has elected to apply FRS 101
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework

Therefore the recognition and measurement requirements of EU adopted IFRS have been applied, with
amendments where necessary In order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and The Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (S1 2008/410) as the parent company financial
statements are Companies Act 2006 accounts

As permitted by FRS 101, the parent company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under
that standard in relation to share based payments, financial instruments, capital management, presentation of
comparative information in respect of certain assets, standards not yet effective, imparment of assets and related
party transactions Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the consolidated financial statements

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 20086, no profit or loss account or cash flow statement is
presented for the parent company The profit for the year 1s disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income

Severn Trent Plc 1s a partner in Severn Trent Limited Parinership ("the partnership™}, which 1s registered In
Scotland As the partnership is included in the consohdated accounts, the parent company has taken advantage
of the exemption conferred by Regulation 7 of The Partnership (Accounts) Regulations 2008 from the

requirements of Regulations 4 to 6

The key accounting policies for the group and the parent company are set out below and have been apphed
consistently Differences in the accounting policies appiied in the consolidated and the parent company financial

statements are described below
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(i) Prior year restatement

Pnor year figures in the consolidated income statement and related notes have been restated to present
separately amounts relating to operations ¢lassified as discontinued in the current year For details see note 38

b) Basls of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the results of Severn Trant Plc and its subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associated undertakings Resuits are included from the date of acquisition or incorporation and excluded from
the date of disposal

Subsidiaries are consolidated where the group has the power to contrel a subsidiary

Joint venture undertakings are accounted for on an equity basis where the group exercised joint control under a
contractual arrangement

Associates are accounted for on an equity basis where the group holding 1s 20% or more or the group has the
power to exercise significant influence

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of subsidiaries are identified separately from the group’s equity Non-
controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the onginal business combmnation and
the non-controlling Interests’ share of changes 1n equity since that date

Transactions between the company and its subsidianes have been eliminated on consolidation and are niot
included within the group financial statements

c) Revenue recognition
Ravenue ncludes turnover and nterest ncome

Turnover represents the fair value of consideration receivable, excluding value added tax, trade discounts and
inter-company sales, in the ordinary course of business for goods and services provided.

Turnover s not recognised untll the service has been provided to the customer or the goods to which the sale
relates have either been despatched to the customer or, where they are held on the customer’s behalf, title has
passed to the customer.

Turnover includes an estimate of the amount of mains water and waste water charges unbilled at the year end

The accrual 1s estimated using a defined methodology based upon a measure of unbilled water consumed by
tanff, which 1s calculated from historical billing information

In respect of long term contracts, turnover 1s recogrised based on the value of work camed out during the year
with reference to the total sales value and the siage of completion of these contracts

Interest income 1s accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable

d) Exceptlonal items

Exceptional lems are income of expenditure, which individually or, If of a similar type, in aggregate should, in the
opinion of the directors, be disclosed by virtue of their size or nature if the financial statements are to give a true
and farr view In this context, matenialty 1s assessed at the segment level

e) Taxation

Current tax payable ts based on taxable profit for the year and s calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation 1s provided m fuli on taxable temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
habilities and thewr carrying amounts in the financial statements
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Deferred taxation 1s measured on an undiscounted basis using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the batance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset 1s realised or the deferred tax liability 1s settied

A deferred tax asset is only recognised to the extent it s probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available in
the future to utilise 1t

Deferred tax assets and liablities are offset when there is a legally enforceable rnight to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilittes

f) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase consideration over the fair value of the net assets

acquired

Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiares 18 included in intangible assets, whilst goodwill arising on acquisthon
of associates 1s included In investments tn associates If an acquisiton gives nse 1o negative goodwill this 1s
credited directly to the Income statement Far value adjustments based on provisional estimates are amended
within one year of the acquisibion, if required, wath a corresponding adjustment to goodwill

Goodwill ansing on all acqusitions prior to 1 April 1898 was written off to reserves under UK GAAP and remains
eliminated against reserves Purchased goodwili anising on acquisihions after 31 March 1998 1s treated as an
intangible fixed asset

Goodwill I1s tested for impairment in accordance with the policy set out in note 2I) below and camed at cost less
accumulated mparment losses Goodwll Is allocated to the cash-generating unit that derives benefit from the

goodwill for impairment testing purposes

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and all or part of that urut i1s disposed of, the associated
goodwill 1s Included i the carrying amount of that operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the

operation

q) Other intangible non-current assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost Following initial recogrution, the histoncal cost model

is applied
Finite ife intangible assets are amortised on a straight ine basis over their estmated useful economic lives as
follows

Years
Software 310
Other assets 2-20

Amortisation charged on intangible assets 1s taken to the iIncome statement through operating costs
Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment where indicators of impairmant exist, {see 21}

Development expenditure Is capitalised as an intangible asset and written off over its expected useful economic
life where the followrng criteria are met
it 1s technically feasible to create and make the asset avallable for use or sale,

» there are adequate resources available to complete the development and to use or sell the asset,

[ ]

« there s the intention and ability to use or sell the asset,
e 1t s probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits, and

« the development cosis can be measured reliably
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Research expenditure 1s expensed when It 1S incurred

h} Pre-contract costs

Costs incurred in bidding and preparing for contracts are expensed as incurred except where it ts probabie that
the contract will be awarded, in which case they are recognised as a prepayment which i1s written off to the income
statement over the Iife of the contract

The group assesses that it 1s probable that a contract will be awarded when preferred bidder or equivalent status
has been achieved and there are no significant iImpediments to the award of the contract

1) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment 1s held at cost {or at deemed cost for infrastructure assets on transition to IFRS)

less accumulated depreciation Expenditure on property, plant and equipment relating to research and
development projects I1s capitalised and depreciated over the expected useful Iife of those assets

The costs of like for like replacement of infrastructure compenents are recognised in the mcome statement as they
arise Expenditure which results in enhancements to the operating capability of the nfrastructure networks 1s
capitalised

Where tems of property, plant and equipment are transferred to the group from custormers or developers, the fair
value of the asset transferred 1s recognised in the balance sheet Fair value I1s determined based on estimated
depreciated replacement cost Where the transfer is in exchange for connection 1o the network and there 1s no
further obhgation, the corresponding credit 1s recognised immediately in turnover Where the transfer 1s
considered to be hnked to the provision of ongoing services the corresponding credit 1s recorded 1n deferred
income and released to operating costs over the expected useful lives of the related assets

Where assets take a substantial perrod of time to get ready for their intended use, the borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of these assets are added to their cost,

Property, plant and equipment 1s depreciated to its estimated residual value over its estimated useful life, with the
exception of freehold land which is not depreciated Assets in the course of construchion are not depreciated until
commissioned, '

The estimated useful lives are

Years
Infrastructure assets
Impounding reservars 250
Raw water aqueducts 250
Mains 80-150
Sewers 150-200
Other assets
Buildings 30-80
Fixed plant and equipment 20-40
Vehicles and mobile plant 2-15
N Leased assets

Leases where the group obtains assets which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
group are treated as finance leases The lower of the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the
minimum lease payments is capitalised as an asset with a correspanding hability representing the obligation to the
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lessor Lease payments are treated as consisting of a capttal element and a finance charge, the capital element
reducing the obligation to the lessor and the finance charge being written off to the income statement at a
constant rate over the penad of the lease in proportion to the capital amount outstanding. Depreciation 1s charged
over the shorter of the estimated useful Ife and the lease penod

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership remain with the lessor are classified as

operating leases Rental costs ansing under operating leases are expensed on a straight line basis over the term
of the lease Leases of iand are normally treated as operating leases, unless ownership i1s transferred to the group

at the end of the lease

k} Grants and contributions

Grants and contributions receved in respect of non-current assets, including certain charges made as a result of
new connections o the water and sewerage networks, are treated as deferred income and released to operating
costs over the useful economic life of those non-current assets

Grants and contributions which are given in compensation for expenses incurred with no future related costs are
recognised In operating costs in the period that they become receivable

)] Impairment of non-current assets

if the recoverable amount of goodwll, an item of property, plant and equipment, or any other non-current asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less costs to sell or estimated value in use at the date the
impairment review I1s undertaken Farr value less costs to sell represents the amount obtainable from the sale of
the asset In an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable and willing third parties, less costs of disposal
Value in use represents the present value of future cash flows expected 1o be derived from a cash-generating unit,
discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the cost of capital of the
cash-generating unit or asset

The discount rate used 1s based on the group's cost of capital adjusted for the nsk profiles of individual
businesses

Goodwill 1s tested for mpairment annually Iimpairment reviews are also camried out If there Is an indication that an
imparment may have occurred, or, where otherwise required, to ensure that non-current assets are not camed
above their estimated recoverable amounts

Impairments are recognised in the income slatement

m) Parent company investments
The parent company recognises Investments in subsidiary undertakings at histoncal cost

After inihal recognition at cost (being the farr value of the consideration paid), investments which are classified as
held for trading or available for sale are measured at fair value, with gains or losses recognised in profit and loss
or equity respectively When an avallable for sale investment is disposed of or imparred, the gain or loss
previously recognised In reserves Is taken to the profit and loss account

n) Inventory
Inventory and work in progress Is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes labour,
matenals, transport and atinbutable overheads
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Q) Trade recaivabies

Trade receivables are measured at fair value on instial recognmion If there is objective evidence that the asset I1s
impaired, It Is written down to its recoverable amount and the irrecoverable amount i1s recognised as an expense
n operating costs

Trade recevables that are assessed not to be impaired mdividually are assessed collsctively for impairment by
reference to the group’s histoncal collection expenence for receivables of similar age

P) Service concession agreements

Where the group has an unconditional nght to receive cash from a government body in exchange for constructing
or upgrading a public sector asset, the amounts receivable are recogmised as a financial asset in prepayments
and accrued income

Costs of constructing or upgrading the public sector asset are recognised on a straight ine basis, before adjusting
for expected inflation, over the iife of the contract
q) Retirement benefits

(i) Defined benefit schemes

The difference between the value of defined benefit pensicn scheme assets and defined benefit pension scheme
liabilities is recorded on the balance sheet as a retirement benefit asset or obhigation.

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured at fair value using bid price for assets with quoted prices
Defined banefit pension scheme liabilities are measured at the balance sheet date by an mdependent actuary
using the projected unit method and discounted at the current rate of return on high quality corporate bonds of
equivalent term and currency to the hability

Service cost, representing the cost of employee service in the period, 1s included in operating costs Net finance
cost 1s calculated by applying the discount rate used for the scheme liabiiities to the net deficit

Changes n the retirement benefit obligation arise from

s differences between the return on scheme assets and interest included in the Income statement,
« acluanal gains and losses from experience adjustments; and

« changes in demaographic or financial assumptions.

Such changes are classified as remeasurements and are charged or credited to equity and recorded i the
statement of comprehensive income in the penied in which they arise

There 1s no contractual agreement, or stated policy, for charging the net defined benefit cost to participating group
companies Therefore, the parent recognises a charge n the profit and loss account which 1s equal to the
contributions payable in the year The net defined benefit cost 1s recognised by the sponsoring employer, Severn
Trent Water Limited

(i1} Defined contribution scheme
Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are charged to the income statement in the period 1in which
they fall due

r Provisions

Provisions are recogrused where

+ there is a present obligation as a resuit of a past event,

» it1s probable that there will be an outflow of economic benefits to settle this obligation, and
« areliable estimate of thrs amount can be made
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Insurance provisions In the group'’s captive insurance subsidiary are recognised for claims notified and for claims
incurred but which have not yet been notffied, based on advice from the group’s independent insurance advisers
Provisions are discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specHic to the
lability where the effect Is matenal

s) Purchase of own shares
Shares held by the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust which have not vested unconditionally by the
balance sheet date are deducted from shareholders’ funds until such time as they vest

t) Borrowings
The accounting policy for borrowings that are the hedged item n a fair value hedge 1s set out In note 2u)

All other borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less 1ssue costs After imitial recogmition, borrowings are !
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method whereby interest and 1ssue
costs are charged to the income statement and added to the carrying value of borrowings at a constant rate in
proportion to the capital amount cutstanding

index-tinked debt 1s adjusted for changes in the relevant inflation index and changes in value are charged to
finance costs

Borrowings denominated in foreign currency are translated to sterfing at the spot rate on the balance sheet date

Exchange gans or losses resulting from this are credted or charged to gamnsflosses on financial instruments

u} Derivatlve financial instruments

Denvative financial Instruments are stated at far value, including accrued interest Fair value i1s determined using

the methodology described in note 34a The accounting policy for changes in farr value depends on whether the

derivative 1s designated as a hedging nstrument The vanous accounting policies are descrbed below ,

Interest receivable or payable in respect of derivative financial instruments 15 included in finance income or costs

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
Gans or losses ansing on remeasurement of denvatve financial instruments that are not designated as hedging
instruments are recogrised i gans/losses on financial instruments in the income statement

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
The group uses derivative financial Instruments such as cross currency swaps, forward currency contracts and
interest rate swaps to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency and interest rate fiuctuations

At the inception of each hedge relationship, the group documents
» the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item,
e its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking the hedge transaction, and

e the results of tests to determine whether the hedging instrument 1s expected to be tughly effective in offsetting
changes In farr values or cash flows (as appropriate) of the hedged item

The group continues to test and document the effectiveness of the hedge on an ongoing basis

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging nstrument expires, 1s sold, terminated or exercised, or no
ionger qualifies for hedge accounting

Fair value hedges
Where a loan or borrowing 1s in a fair value hedging relationship it 1s remeasured for changes in farr value of the
hedged nisk at the balance sheet date, with gains or losses being recognised in gains/losses on financial
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Instruments in the income statement The gain or loss on the corresponding hedging instrument 1s also taken to
gainsflosses on financial instruments 1n the iIncome statement so that the effective portion of the hedge will offset
the gain or loss on the hedged item

If hedge accounting is discontinued, the farr value adjustment arising from the hedged risk on the hedged item 15
amortised to the income statement over the anticipated remarmning life of the hedged item

Cash flow hedges
The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that 1s determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognised .
in equity and the wneffective portion i1s charged to gainsflosses on financial instruments in the iIncome statement
When the gain or loss from the hedged underlying transaction i1s recognised in the income statement, the gains or
losses on the hedging instrument that have previously been recognised in equity are recycled through
gainsflosses on financial Instruments in the income statement

If hadge accounting 1s discontinued, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument previously recognised
in equity 1s held in equity untd the forecast transaction occurs, or transferred to gains/losses on financial
instruments in the income statement if the forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur If the hedging
nstrument is terminated, the gains and losses previously recognised In equity are transfeired to the income
statement From this point the derivative is accounted for in the same way as derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments.

Embedded derivatives
Where a contract includes terms that cause some of its cash fiows to vary in a similar way to a dervative financial
instrument, that part of the contract 1s considered to be an embedded denvative

Embedded derivatives are separated from the contract and measured at farr value with gains and losses taken to
the mcome statement if

* the rnisks and characteristics of the embedded derivative are not closely related to those of the contract, and
o the contract 1s not camed at fair value with gains and losses reported In the income statement

In all other cases embedded denvatives are accounted for in line with the accounting policy for the contract as a
whole

v) Share based payments

The group operates a number of equity settied share based compensation plans for employees The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the grant is recognised as an expense aver the vesting period of
the grant

The fair value of employee services is determimed by reference to the fair value of the awards granted, calculated
using an appropriate pricing model, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions The number of
awards that are expected to vest takes into account non-market vesting conditions including, where appropniate,
continuing employment by the group The charge 1s adjusted to reflect shares that do not vest as a result of failing
to meet a non-market condition

Share based compensation plans are satisfied in shares of the parent company Where the farr value of the
awards 15 not recharged to participating group companies, the parent company records the farr value of the
awards as an Increase In its investment in the subsidiary The investment i1s adjusted to reflect shares that do not
vest as a result of faling to meet a non-market based cendition

w) Cash flow statement
For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change In value
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Such investments are normally those with less than three months maturity from the date of acquisiion and include
cash and bark balances and investments in hquid funds

Net cash and cash equivalents include overdrafts repayable on demand

Interest paid in the cash flow statement includes amounts charged to the income statement and amounts included
in the cost of property, plant and equipment

x) Net debt
Net debt comprises horrowings, cross currency swaps that are used to fix the sterling hability of foreign currency
barrowings (whether hedge accounted or not) and net cash and cash equivalents

y) Forelgn currency
The results of overseas subsidiary and associated undertakings are translated into sterling, the presentational
currency of the group, using average rates of exchange ruling dunng the year

The net investments in overseas subsidiary and associated undertakings are transiated into sterling at the rates of
exchange ruling at the year end Exchange differences arnsing are treated as movements in equity On disposal of
a foreign currency denominated subsidiary, the deferred cumulative amount recogrised in equity since 1 April
2004 relating to that entity 1S recognised in the income statement under the transitional rule of IFRS 1

Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities of the company and its subsidiary undertakings are translated
into the refevant functional currency at the rates of exchange ruling at the year end Any exchange differences so
ansing are dealt with through the income statement

Foreign currency transactions ansing during the year are translated into steriing at the rate of exchange ruling on
the date of the transaction All profits and |osses on exchange ansing duning the year are dealt with through the
income stalement

z) Discontinued operations and assets held for sale

Where an asset or group of assets (a disposal group) 1s available for mmediate sale and the sale 1s highly
probabie and expected to occur within one year then the disposal group s classified as held for sale The disposal
group I1s measured at the lower of the carrying amount and farr value fess costs to sell Depreciation 1s not
charged on such assets

Where a group of assets which comprises operations that can be clearly distinguished operationally and for
financial reporting purposes, from the rest of the group (a component), has been disposed of or classified as heid

for sale, and it

« represents a separate major ine of business or geographical area of operations, or

« 15 part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major bne of business or geographica! area of
operations, or

« 15 a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view fo resale,

then the component 1s classified as a discontnued operation

3 New accounting policies and future requirements

The group has adopted IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 with effect from 1 April 2014 These have not had a
material impact on the results or net assets of the group or company

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were in issue but
not yet effective

IFRS @ “Financial instruments” 1s likely to affect the measurement and disclosure of financial instruments This
Standard has not yet been adopted by the EU
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IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers” will affect the measurement and recognition of revenue with
effect from 1 Apnl 2018 The impact on the results or net assets of the group or company of the changes to the
standard has not yet been quantfied

4 Significant accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
in the process of applying the group’s accounting policies, the group 1s required to make certain judgements,
estimates and assumptions that it believes are reasonable based on the imformation avallable Although these
estimates are based on management's best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results may
ultimately drfer from those estimates

The more significant judgements were

a) Tax provisions

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax positions reguires jJudgements to be made regarding the result of
negotiations with and enquinies from tax auvthorities In a number of junsdichons The assessments made are
based on advice from independent tax advisers and the status of ongoing discussions with the relevant tax
authorities

b) Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Assessing the financial outcome of ungertain commercial and legal positions requires Judgements to be rmade
regarding the relabve mernts of each party's case and the extent to which any claim against the group 1s likely to
be successful The assessments made are based on advice from the group’s internal counsel and, where
appropriate, independent iegal advice

The key accounting estimates were

aj Depreciation and carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment

Calculating the depreciation charge and hence the carrying value for property, plant and equipment requires
estimates to be made of the useful lives of the assets The estimates are based on engineering data and the
group’s expenence of similar assets Details are set out in note 20)

b) Retirement benefit obligations

Determining the amount of the group’s retirement benefit obligations and the net costs of providing such benefits
requires assumptions to be made concerring long term Interest rates, inflation, salary and pension increases,
investment returns and longevity of current and future pensioners Changes in these assumptions could
significantly rmpact the amount of the cbligations or the cost of providing such benefits The group makes
assumptions concerning these matters with the assistance of advice from independent qualfied actuanes Details
of the assumptions made are set out In note 28 to the financial statements

c

c) Unbilled revenue
Severn Trent Water raises bills and recognises revenue in accordance with its nght to receive revenue in ine with
the limits established by the penodic regulatery price review processes For water and waste water customers
with water meters, the amount recognised depends on the volume supplied including an estimate of the sales
value of units supplied between the date of the last meter read and the year end Meters are read on a cyciical
basis and the group recognises revenue for unbilled amounts based on estimated usage from the last billing to
the end of the financial year. The estmated usage is based on historical data, judgement and assumptions

d) Provision for impairment of trade receivables

Prowisions are made against Sevem Trent Water's trade receivables based on historical expernience of levels of
recovery from accounts in a particular ageing category The actual amounts coflected could differ from the
estimated level of recovery which could impact operating results
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e} Fair value of derivatives

Determining the fair value of derivatives where quoted prices are not availlabie requires estimates to be made of
the future expected cash flows and an appropriate discount rate which reflects the credit risk of the counterparties
The valuation techmiques and key inputs used are described in note 34

5 Segmental analysis

The group has two reportable segments Sevem Trent Water and Severn Trent Services The key factor
determining the dentrfication of reportable segments I1s the regulatory environment in which the businesses
operate Severn Trent Water Is subject to economic regulation by Ofwat and operates under a licence to provide
water and sewerage services within a defined geographical region in England and Wales Severn Trent Services
1s not subject to economic regulation and operates in markets in the USA, Europe and Asia [nterests In joint
ventures and associates are not material and are not included in the segmental reports reviewed by STEC

The Severn Trent Executive Committee (STEC} 1s considered to be the group’s chief operating decision maker
The reports provided to STEC include segmental information prepared on the basis described above Details of
Severn Trent Water's operations are descnbed on pages 18 to 29 of the Strategic Review and those of Severn
Trent Services on pages 32 to 35

Transactions between reportable segments are included within segmental results, assets and liabilities in
accordance with group accounting policies These are eiminated on consolidation.

The group has a large and diverse customer base and there 15 no significant reliance on any single customer

The measure of profit or loss that 1s reported to STEC for the segments 1s underlying PBIT (profit before interest,
tax and exceptional items) A segmental analysis of sales and underlying PBIT 1s presented below
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The results from the Water Purfication business have been excluded from the Severn Trent Services segment, m
both the current and prior year, as it has been classified as a discontinued operation See note 38

a) Segmental results

2015 2014
Severn Savearn Severn Sevem Trent
Trent Trent Trent Services
Water Services Water Restated
£m £m £m £m
External sales 15191 2162 1,542 6 2009
inter-segment sales 21 01 22 03
Total sales 15812 2163 15448 2102
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional items 5396 87 586 133
Exceptional items {20 6) 18 82 {2 3)
Profit before Interest and tax 5184 118 526 8 110
Profit before interest, tax and exceptlonal items Is stated after,
Amortisation of Intangible assets 222 1.0 280 09
Depreclation of property, plant and equipment 2767 35 2675 32
Profit on disposal of fixed assets {0 4} {0 1) {03) (C2)
The reportable segments’ revenue s reconciled to group turnover as follows
2015 2014
Restated
£m £m
Sevem Trent Water 1,581.2 1,544 8
Severn Trent Services 2163 2102
Other 158 1;:
Inter-segment sales {120) (114)
1,801 3 1,756 7

Group turnover

Segmental underlying PBIT 1s reconciled to the group’s profit before tax and discontinued operations as follows

2015 2014
Restated
£m £m

Underlying PBIT
—  Sevem Trent Water 5320 51886
-  Sevemn Trent Services 0.7 133
—  Corporate and other costs (121} {11 5)
Consolidation adjustments K 34
Group underlying PBIT 5403 5238
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2015 2014
Restated
£m £m

Exceptional tems allocated to segments ’
=  Severn Trent Water {20 6) a2
—  Severn Trent Services 19 (23)
-  Corporate and other - {21 1)
Share of results of associates and joint ventures 01 02
Net finance costs {240 0) (247 9)
(Losses)gains on financial instruments (133.5) 580
Profit bafore tax and discontinued operations 148.2 31889

The group’s treasury and tax affairs are managed centrally by the Group Treasury and Tax departments. Finance
costs are managed on a group basis and hence interest iIncome and costs are not reported at the segmental level

Tax 1s not reported to STEC on a segmental basis

b) Segmental capital employed
Separate segmental analyses of assets and habilities are not reviewed by STEC The balance sheet measure
reviewed by STEC on a segmental basis 1s capital employed which includes the following components

2015 2014

Severn Trent | Severn Trent | SevernTrent | Sevemn Trent

~ Water Services Water Services
Em £m £m £m

Operating assets 7,6799 1009 7442 2 1728
Goodwll 1.3 143 1.3 148
interests i joint ventures and associates ¢ 45 01 50
Segment assets 76313 197 74436 192 6
Segment operating abiliies (4,350 1) {58.8) (11557} (92.2)
Capital employed 6,3312 €09 6,287 8 1004

Operating assets compnse other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, inventory and trade and other
receivables

Operating habilities comprise trade and other payables, retirement benefit obligations and provisions
Capital employed does not include assets held for sale or habilities associated with assets held for sale.
Additions to other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment were as follows

2015 2014

Severn Trent | Severn Trent | Sevem Trent { Sevem Trent

Watar Sarvices Water Services

£m £m £m £m

Other intangible assets 154 1.0 82 55
Property, plant and equipment 4813 27 5196 68
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The reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to the group’s total assets as follows

2015 2014
Note £m £m

Segment assets
~  Sevem Trenl Water 7.66813 74436
—  Severn Trent Services 197 1926
Corporate assets 786 682
Other financial assets 2038 2086
Current tax recevable 12 165
Assets hekd for sale 38 1078 -
Consclidation adjustments (45 5) (40 3)
8,1570 7.8892

Total assets

The consclidation adjustments compnse elimination of intra-group debtors and unrealised profits on fixed assets

The reportable segments’ liabilities are reconciled to the group’s total hiabilhes as follows

2015 2014
Note £m £m
Segment liabllitiss
—  Sevem Trent Water {1,350.1) (1.155.7)
—  Sevem Trent Services {58 8) (92 2)
Corporate liabilites (149 1) (60 1)
Other financlal lfabiliies (5,134 0) {4,853 1)
Deferred tax {625 ) (654 0)
Liabilibes associated with assets held for sale 38 {35 3) -
Consolidation adjusiments 187 160
Tota! Habllities (7,333.7) (6.799.1)
The consolidation adjustments comprise elimination of intra-group creditors
c) Geographlcal areas
The group’s sales were derived from the foliowing countries
2014
2015 Restated
£m £m
UK 16404 16109
USA 1203 1201
Qther 226 257
1,8013 1,756 7
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The group's non-current assets (excluding financial instruments, deferred tax assets and post employment benefit

assets) were located in the following countries

2015 2014
£m £m
UK 7.299 2 7.0848
Usa 25.2 361
Other 11 29
7,3255 71238
6 Revenue
2015 2014
Restated
£m £m
Reguiated waler and sewerage services 1,570 5 15345
Other services 187.3 1800
Service concession arrangements (note 41) 43.5 422
Total turnover 1,8013 1,768 7
Interest receivable (note 10) 16 48
1,802 8 1,761 5
7 Operating costs
2015 2014 Restated
Before Before
excoptional Exceptional axceptional Exceptional
coste costs Total costs costs Total
£m €m £m £m £m £m
Wages and salares 2767 13§ 290 2 267 4 22 26986
Social sacunty costs 20.0 a1 201 200 - 2060
Pensfon costs 324 179 503 320 - 320
Share based payments 7.7 - 1.7 62 - 62
Total employee costs 336.8 318 368 3 3256 22 327 8
Power ea 8 - 638 709 - 709
Carbon Reduction Commitment 7.3 ~ 1.3 59 - 59
Raw matenals and consumables 75.7 - 75.7 728 - 728
Rates 74.1 - 741 756 - 756
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 301 (6.3 23.8 314 - 314
Service charges 328 - 326 M6 - 36
Depreclation of property, plant and
eguipment 2804 - 2804 2688 - 2688
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2015 2014 Restated
Before Before
excoptional Exceptional exceptonat Exceptional
cosis costs Total costs costs Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Amertisation and impairment of
intangible fixed assets 232 0.2 234 289 - 289
Hired and contracted services 2228 07 223.5 2087 187 2274
Operating leases rentals
- land and buildings 14 01 15 20 - 20
—  other 12 - 12 15 - 15
Hire of plant and machinery 0.3 - D3 33 - 33
Research and development
expenditure 46 - 46 41 - 41
Profit on disposa! of property, plant
and equipment (09} (rn (8.6) (04) (82) (86)
Foreign exchange (gains)losses {01) - (0.1} 06 - 06
Infrastructure mantenance
expenditure 1348 - 1348 140 3 - 140 3
Ofwat license fees 53 - 53 37 - a7
Other cperating costs 65.1 02 65.3 597 25 622
1,363 5 187 1,382.2 13350 152 1,350 2
Release from deferred mcome {10 1) - {10 1) (9 5) - (95)
Qwn work capitalised {92 4) - (92.4) (92 6) - (82 6)
1,2610 18.7 127197 12329 152 1.2481
Further details of exceptional costs are given n note 8
During the year the following fees were charged by the auditors
2015 2614
£m £m
Fees payable to the company's auditors for
—~  the audt of the company’s annual accounts 0.2 o1
— the audt of the company's subsidiary accounts 04 05
Total audit fees 06 06
Fees payable to the company's auditors and their associates for other services to the group
—  sudt related assurance services 01 01
—  other serwices relating to taxation 01 01
—  other assurance services 04 04
Total non-audit fees 06 06
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Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration report on pages 69 to 85

Other assurance services include certain agreed upon procedures performed by Delortte In connection with
Severn Trent Water Limited's regulatory reporting requirements to Ofwat in the current year, tha balance includes
fees in connection with PR14

Details of the group policy on the use of the auditor for non-audit services and how auditer independence and
objectivity are safeguarded are set out in the Audit Committee Report on pages 63 to 65 No services were
provided pursuant to contingent fee arrangements

8 Exceptional items before tax
2015 2014
Restated
£m £m
Savarn Trent Water
Restructunng costs @33 -
Profit on disposal of fixed assets {77) (82)
206 (82)
Sevarn Trent Services
Restructunng costs 4.4 23
Release of bad debt provision (63) -
{(19) 23
Corporata and Cther
Professional fees related to LongRiver proposal - 187
Prowsion for terminated operations and disposals - 24
- 211
Total exceptlonal operating items before tax 187 152
Exceptional tax 15 disclosed In note 13
9 Employee numbers
Average number of employees (including executive directors) during the year
2015 2014
Continuing | Discontinued Conttnuing | Discontnued
operations operatlons Total cperations operations Total
Number Number Number Number Number Number
By type of business
Severn Trent Water 5,532 - 5,532 5,634 - 5,634
Sevamn Trent Services 1,868 419 2,307 1.895 444 2,339
Corporate and Other 22 - 22 19 - 19
7,442 419 7,861 7,548 444 7,992
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10 Finance income

2015 2014
£m £fm
Interest Income eamed on

Bank deposits 0.6 18
Other financial income 1.0 30
Total interast recelvable 1.6 AB
Interest income on defined benefit scheme assets 801 760
817 808

11 Finance costs
2015 2014
£m £m
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 171 220
Interest on other loans 2018 2050
Interest on finance leases 69 77
Total borrowing costs 2258 2347
Other financlal expenses 1.4 23
Interest cost on defined benefit scheme obligations 94.5 17
Kyl § 3287

Borrowing costs of £19 8 million (2014 £13 8 million) incurred funding eligible capital projects have been

capitalised at an mterest rate of 4 89% (2014 5 11%) Tax relief of £4 2 milion (2014 £3 2 million) was claimed
on these costs which was credited to the income statement, offset by a related deferred tax charge of £4 0 million

(2014 £2 8 milion)

12 (Losses)/gains on financial instruments

2015 2014
£m £m
Loss on eross currency swaps used as hedging instruments 1n falr value hedges (2.6) (26 5}
Gam arising on adustment for foreign currency debt in fair valua hedges - 219
Exchange gain on other loans 73.3 242
Loss on cash flow hedges transfemred from eguity (23.6) 81)
Hedge Ineffectiveness on cash flow hedgss 28 20
{Loss)gain arising on swaps where hedge accounting 1s not applied (183.4) 445
(133 5) 580

The group's hedge accounting arrangements are described in note 36
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13  Taxation
a) Analysis of tax charge/{credit) in the year

2014
2015 Restated
Before
excaptionat Excaptional
Total tax tax Total
£m £m £m Em
Current tax

Cument year at 21% (2014 23%) 464 46 & - 46 5
Prior years at 23% (2014 24%) (8 6) g3 {592) (49 8)
Total current tax 378 558 (59 2) (34)

Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences ~ current year (113} 302 - 302
Ongmation and reversal of temporary differences — prior year 62 87) (96 2) (64 9)
Exceptional credt arising from rate change - - (114 8) (114 8)
Total deferred tax (51) 215 {171 0} (148 5)
327 T3 (2302) {152 8}

The current tax charge was £37 8 million (2014 £55 8 million before exceptional tax) This includes a credit of
£8 6 milion {2014 charge of £8 3 milion) ansing from adjustments to prior year tax computatrons

In the prior year an exceptional current tax credit of £59.2 milion was recognised, reflecting the antcipated refund

of overpayment of 1ax in prior periods This was following an agreement with HMRC that certain capital

expenditure within our water and waste water treatment works 1s eligible for capital allowances as plant and
machinery This also resulted in an exceptional deferred tax credit of £56 2 million.

The Finance Act 2013 was enacted in the prior year which implemented a reduchon in the corporation tax rate
from 23% to 21% with effect from 1 April 2014 and then to 20% with effect from 1 April 2015 This resulted in an
additional exceptional deferred tax credit of £114 8 million in the income statement and a deferred tax charge of

£12.3 millon in reserves

b) Factors affecting the tax charge/{credit) in the year

The tax expense for the year is lower (2014: lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 21%

{2014 23%) The differences are explained below

2015 2014

Restated

£m £m

Profit on ordinary activitias before tax from continuing operations 148 2 31849
Tax at the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 21% (2014 23%) 311 733
Tax effect of expandiiure not deductible in determining taxable profits 40 68
Current yaar impact of rate change - 37
Effect of different rates In overseas jurisdictions - 02
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2015 2014

Restated

£m £m

Adjustments in respect of pnor years (2 4) (114 8)
Exceptional deferred tax credit ansing from rate change - {114 8)
327 {152 8}

Total tax chargel({credit)

c) Tax (credited)/charged directly to equity

In addition to the amaunt charged/(credited) to the income statement, the following amounts of tax have been

(credited)/charged directly to equity

2015 2014
£m £m
Current tax
Tax on share based payments (o7 (10)
Tax on pension contnbutions in excess of incoma statement charge {30} -
Total current tax credited to equity (37 (10}
Deferred tax
Tax on actuanal gain/loss (25 8) 08
Tax on cash flow hedges (28) 30
Tax on share based payments o1 -
Tax on transfers to the income statement account 4.7 16
Effect of change in tax rate - 123
Total defarred tax (credited)/charged to equity (23 8) 177
14 Dividends
Amounts recognised as distnbutions to owners of the company n the period
2015 2014
Pence per Pence per
share £m share £m
Final dwidend for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013) 48,24 116§ 45 51 1086
Intenm dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014) 33.96 814 3216 767
Total dvidends 82.20 196 9 7767 1853
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 50.94

The proposed final dividend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM and have not been included as a

liability in these financial statements
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15 Earnings per share

a) Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dmviding the earnings attnbutable to ordinary shareholders by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares n 1ssue during the year, excluding those held in the Severn Trent

Employee Share Ownership Trust which are treated as cancelled

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue I1s adjusted to agsume
conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares These represent share options granted to employees where
the exercise pnce I1s less than the average market price of the company’s shares duning the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations are calculated on the basis of

profit from continuing and discontinued operations attnibutable to the owners of the company
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share 1s based on the following data.

Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted eamnings per share from continuing operations

2015 2014
£m £m
Profit for the penod atinbutable to owners of the company 1191 433 8
Adjusted for (profit¥loss from discontinued operatons {see note 38) 37 391
Profit for the period from continung operations attributable to owners of the company 1154 4729
Number of shares
2015 2014
m m
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic earmnings per share 2388 2382
Effect of dilutive potental ordinery shares
- share options and LTIPs 11 14
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted eamings per share 2399 2393
b) Adjusted earmings per share
2015 2014
pence pence
Adjusted baslc earnings per share 107.2 925
106 7 921

Adjusted diluted eamings per share

Adjusted earnings per share figures are presented for continuing operations These exclude the effects of

deferred tax, exceptional tax, losses/gains on financial instruments, current tax related to losses/gains on financial

tnstruments, exceptional itams and current tax related to exceptional tems The directors consider that the

adjusted figures provide a useful additional indicator of performance The dencminators used in the calculations of

adjusted basic and diluted earmings per share are the same as those used in the unadjusted figures set out

above

Adjustments to earnings

The adjustments to earnings that are made in calculating adjusted earnings per share are as follows
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2015 2014
Restated
£€m fm
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 1154 4729
Adjustments for
- exceptional iterns before tax 187 152
—  cument tax related to excephonal tems 47) (c9)
- loss/(gain) on finanacial mstruments 1835 (58 0)
- current tax related to loss/gain on financial instruments (18) {0 1)
- deferred tax excluding exceptional charge (51) 215
-  exceptional tax - (230 2)
Eamings for the purpose of adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share 2560 2204
16 Goodwil!
2015 2014
£m £m
Cost
At 1 April 429 452
Transferred to assets held for sale (see note 38) {26.5) -
Exchange adjustments 13 (23)
At 31 March 177 429
Impairment
At1 April {28.1) 385
Impairment charge in the year - (24 7)
Transferred to assets heid for sale (see note 38) 24.7 -
Exchange adjustments - o1
At 31 March (34) (281)
Net book value
At 31 March 143 148

Goodwill impairment tests
Goodwill 1s allocated to the group's cash-generating umits (C{GUs) identified according to coauntry of operation and
business segment All of the group’s goodwill 1s in the Severn Trent Services segment

A summary of the goodwll ailocation by CGU 15 presented below Goodwill in the group’s Water Punfication
business is included in assets held for sale at 31 March 2015, see note 38

2015 2014

£m £m

Watar Punfication US - 14
Operating Services US 125 112
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Services italy 18 22

143 148

The group has reviewed the carrying value of goodwill, including that within the Water Punfication US CGU, for
mparment m accordance with the policy stated in note 24

The value In use calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by managemaent
coverng a five year period The key assumpticns underlying these budgets are revenue growth and margin
Management of each CGU determmes assumptions based on past expenence, current market trends and
expectations of future developments.

Cash flows beyond the five year penod are exirapolated using an estimated nominal growth rate The growth rate
does not exceed the long term average growth rate for the economy in which the CGU operates and are
consistent with the forecasts included n industry reports

The assumptions used in refation to growth rates beyond the five year period and discount rates were

Nomenal growth rate Post tax discount rats Pre-tax discount rate

201.;3_— o 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

% % % % % %

Operating Services US 30 35 8,0 68 76 01
Services ltaly 18 28 48 65 5.5 88

Specific discount rates for the CGUs are not available and hence a post tax discount rate reflecting nisks relating
to the CGU has been estimated and used to calculate the value In use of the CGU from its post tax cash flow
projections The eguivalent pre-tax discount rate ts disclosed above

Changes n the growth rate outside the five year period or in the discount rate applied to the cash flows may
cause a CGU’s cammying value to exceed its recoverable amount However, in the opinien of the directors, the
changes n growth rate or discount rate that wouid be required to reduce the recoverable amount of the CGUs
below their carrying value are not reasonably possible Therefore no sensitivity analysis has been presented.

17  Other intangible assets

Capitalised
davelopment
costs and
patents Total
Computer software £m £m
Internally
gonorated Purchased
Em £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2013 1278 1887 282 3447
Additions 46 84 08 138
Disposals - (74.T) {50} {18 7)
Reclassificatrons 439 (43.9) - -
Excharige adiustments {©2) (05) (14) (21)
ALY Apnl 2014 1761 780 2286 27687
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Capltalised
development
costs and
patents Total
Computer software £m £m
Internally
generated Purchased
£m £m
Additions 57 115 05 177
Disposals 02) {21 6} - (21 8)
Raclassificatons - - {0 4) {0 4)
Transfers to assets held for sale (see note 38) - (49) (10 3) (15 2)
Exchange adjustments (@2) 04 11 13
At 31 March 2015 1514 634 135 258 3
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2013 {118 9) {108 3) {182) (245 4)
Amortisation for the year (138} (14 5) (0 9} (28 3)
Impaiment ansing from exceptional item (2.4) - - {2 4)
Disposals - 747 81 708
Reclassifications 1) 51 - -
Exchange adjustments 01 03 04 08
At 1 Apnl 2014 (140 2) @27 (136) {196 5)
Amortisation for the year {(108) (116) {16) (24 0)
Impaiment ansing from exceptional item 02) - - {¢2)
Disposals 02 215 - 217
Transfers to assets held for sale (see note 38) - 37 43 80
Exchange adjustments 01 (03} (0 4) {06)
At 31 March 2015 (150 9) (29.4) (11 3) {191.6)
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 30.8 34.0 2.2 66.7
At 31 March 2014 ke 363 80 802
18 Property, plant and equipment
Fixed
Land and | Infrastructure plant and Movable
buildings assets eguipment plant Total
Em £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apni 2013 2,786 2 44136 36013 620 10,863 1
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Fixed
Land and | infrastructure plant and Movable
buildings assets equipment plant Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Addiions 136 5 1270 266 4 67 5366
Disposals 49 3 (12 9) 42) (22 3)
Exchange adjustments {07 - {2 8) (14) (49
At1 Apnl 2014 2,917 1 4,540 3 3.8520 63 1 11,372 5
Additions 1303 1529 2140 73 504 5
Disposals {10 1) (1N (76 9) (65) (93 6)
Transfer to assets heid for sale (see note 38) (1) - {15 1) {0 3) {215)
Exchange adjustments 02 - 19 i8 40
At 31 March 2015 3,031 4 4,693 1 3,975.9 655 11,765.9
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2013 (918 7) {1,151 2) {1,895 2) (380) (4,103 1)
Charge for the year (64 1) (30 D) {168 4) (66) {270 0)
Disposais 37 - 128 as 203
Exchange adustments 02 - 25 11 38
At1 April 2014 {978 9) {1,182 1) (2,148 3) (397) (4,348 0}
Charge for the year {68 5} (32 0) (174 3) (6 8) (281 6)
Disposals 82 - 769 55 906
Transfer to assets held for sale (see note 38) 42 - 120 03 165
Exchange adjustments - - (14) {(12) (26)
At 31 March 2015 {1,035.0) {1,214.1) (2,236.1) (41.9) (4,526.1)
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 1,986.4 3,479 0 1,740 8 236 7,239.8
At 31 March 2014 1,938 2 3,358 2 17037 234 70235

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment includes the following amounts in respect of assets held
under finance leases

Fixed
Infrastructure plant and
assets equipment Total
£m £m £m
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 118.7 26.6 1453
At 31 March 2014 1196 385 156 1

Property, plant and equipment includes £561 1 milion (2014 £604 1 million) in respect of assets 1n the course of
construction for which no depreciation 1s charged
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19 Interests in joint ventures and associates
Particulars of the group's principal joint venture undertakings at 31 March 2015 were

Proportion

Countryof | of ownership

Name incorporation interest
Cognica Limited Joint venture Great Brtaln 50%
Jackson Water Partnership Joint venture USA 70%
Servizio Idrico S c.p a (Sil) Assodate italy 25%

The partnership agreement for the Jackson Water Partnership requires that certain key decisions require the
unanimous consent of the partners and consequently the partnership has been accounted for as a joint venture

The results and net assets of principal joint ventures and associates are shown below

Interest in joint ventures Interest in associates Total

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Group's share of camying value 02 03 44 49 46 52
Group's share of profit and comprehensive

Income - - o1 02 01 02

All results are from confinuing operations n both the current and preceding year

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014 the joint ventures and associates did not have any significant cantingent habilities
1o which the group was exposed and the group did not have any signricant contingent iabiities in relation to its
interests in joint ventures or assoclates The group had no capital commitments in relation to s interests in the
joint ventures or associates at 31 March 2015 or 2014

The group has given certain guarantees in respect of the associate’s borrowings The guarantees are imited to
€5 1 million (2014 €5 1 million) The group does not expect any habilites that are not provided for in these
financial statements to arise from these arrangements

20 Categories of financial assets

2015 2014
£m £m
Fair value through profit and foss
Cross currency swaps — not hedge accounted - 395
Interast rate swaps — not hedge accounted 4.2 121
Fareign exchange forward contracts - not hedge accounted 02 01
4.4 57
Derlvatives deslgnated as hedging instruments
Crass currency swaps — far value hedges 226 336
e 336
Total derivative financial assets 271.0 853
Available for sale investments carrled at far value
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2015 2014
£€m Em
Unguoted shares 01 01
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents}
Trads racewvables 1725 1956
Short term deposits 151.8 768
Cash at bank in hand 249 46 4
Total loans and recsivables 349.2 3188
Total financlal assets 376.3 404 2
Disclosad In the balance sheet as:
Non-current assets
Denvative financlal assets 135 724
Available for sale financial assets 0.1 01
136 725
Current assets
Derivative financial assets 135 129
Cash and cash equivalents 176.7 1232
Trade recelvables (see note 21) 172§ 1956
3627 37
376 3 404 2
21 Trade and other receivables
2015 2014
£m £m
Trade recevables 297.5 3164
Less doubtful debt provision (125 0} {120 8)
Net trade receivables 1725 1956
Other amounts recervable 4290 279
Prepayments and accrued income 2775 2807
492 0 5132

The carrying values of trade and other receivables are reasonable approximations of their fair vatues

Prepayments and accrued income include £24 4 million (2014 £24 8 million) in respect of amounts due from
customers for contract work and £33 2 miliion (2014, £34 4 million) which 1s recoverable after more than one year
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Doubtful debts provision
Movements on the doubtful debts provision were as follows

2015 2014
£m £m

At1 Apni 1208 1380
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 281 321
Armounts written off dunng the year {22 4) (257)
Amounts recovered during the year - 02
Redassification - (23 1)
Exchange adjustments - 07)
Transfer to discontinued operations {15) -
At 31 March 1250 1208
The reclassification in the prior year arose on the re-financing of the amounts receivable from the group’s
associate company, Sli, which were reclassified to other debtors
The aged analysis of recevables that are specffically provided for is as follows

2015 2014

£m £m

Up to 90 days 22 06
91-365 days 48 33
1-2 years 6.7 76
2-3 years 6.3 53
More than 3 years 80 73

280 241

A collective provision 15 recorded against assets which are past due but for which no specific provision has been

made This i1s calcutated based on historical experience of levels of recovery

The aged analysis of recevables that were overdus at the reporting date but not individually provided for 1s as

follows:
2015 2014
£m £m
Up to 80 days 440 497
91-365 days 65.1 69 1
1-2 years 296 297
2-3 years 137 120
Mora than 3 years 84 78
1618 168 3
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The amounts above are reconciled to gross and net debtors in the table below

2018 2014

Gross Provision Net Gross Prowvision Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Not Due 1077 - 1077 1240 - 1240
Overdue not specifically provided 161.8 (87 0) 648 1683 {97 9) 704
Overdue and specifically provided 28.0 (28 0) - 241 {22 9) 12
297.5 (125.0) 1725 3164 (120 8) 1956

Credit risk

Credit control policies and procedures are determined at the individual business unrt leve! By far the most

significant business unit of the group 1s Severn Trent Water, which represents 88% of group turnover and 76% of
net trade recavables Severn Trent Water has a statutory obligation to provide water and sewerage services 1o
customers within its regien. Therefore there 1S no concentration of credit nsk with respect to its trade receivables
and the credit quality of ts customer base reflects the wealth and prospenty of all of the commercial businesses
and domestic households within its region None of the other business units are individually signfficant to the

group
22 Cash and cash equivalents

2015 2014

£m £m

Cash at bank and i hand 249 46 4

Short term deposits 1518 76 8

176.7 1232

Of the £151 8 milhon (2014 £76 8 milhon) of short term bank deposits, £36 7 million (2014- £43 8 million) 15 held
as secunty deposits for insurance obligations and 1s not available for use by the group In addition, £6 0 million
(2014 £7 4 millon) 1s restricted for use on the Ministry of Defence contract and 1s not available for use by the

group
23 Borrowings
2015 2014
£€m £m
Bank loans 1,279.2 584 9
Cther loans 34675 38280
Finance leases 180.0 201 2
4,926.7 4,622 1
Disclosed in the balance shegt as
Current liabilites 4630 2061
Non-current llabillties 4,463.7 4,416.0
4,926 7 46221
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24 Finance leases
Obhgations under finance leases are as follows

2015 2014
£m £m
Gross obligations under finance leases 2321 26056
Less future finance charges {52 1) (59 3)
Present value of lease obligations 1800 2012
A matunty analys:s of gross obligations under finance leases Is presented in note 35 Net obligations under
finance leases fall due as follows
2015 2014
£m fm
Within 1 year 38.6 213
1-2 years 259 386
3-5 years 79 305
After more than 5 years 107.6 1108
Included in non-current Habilities 141.4 1789
180.0 2012

The remaining terms of finance leases ranged from 1 to 17 years at 31 March 2015 Interest terms are set at the
inception of the leases The leases bear fixed interest at a weighted average rate of 5 36% (2014 5 36%) The

lease obligations are secured aganst the related assets

There were no contingent rents, escalation clauses or material renewal or purchase options. The terms of the
finance leases do not impose restriction on dividend payments, additional debt or further leasing

25 Categories of financial liabilities

2015 2014
£m £m
Fair value through profit and loss
Cross currency swaps — not hedge accounted 252 217
Interest rate swaps — not hedge accounted 17086 1589
Foreign exchange forward contracts - not hedge accounted g2 03
196 0 1809
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate swaps — cash flow hedges 105 47.2
Energy swaps — cash flow hedges g8 28
113 501
Tota! derivative financial liabilities 2073 2310
Other financlal iiabilities
Borrowings (see note 23) 49287 46221
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Group financlal statements




SEVERN TRENT_AR15

2015 2014
£m £m
Trade payables (see note 26) 327 318
Total other financial liabilitles 4950 4 4,653 9
Total financial liabilities 5.166.7 4,884 9
Disclosed In the balance sheet as
Non-current liabilities
Derivative financial liablilties 1751 2082
Bofrowings 44637 44160
4,638 8 46222
Current liabilities
Derlvative financial ltabllities 322 248
Bomowings 463 0 206 1
Trade payables 27 318
5279 2827
51687 4,884 9
. 26  Trade and other payables
2015 2014
£m £m
Current habiliies
Trade payables 327 318
Social secunty and other taxes 58 63
Cther payables 220 229
Deferred income 100 92
Accruals 4235 3426
494.0 427
Non-current habilities
Deferred income 5380 4827
Accruals 4.0 97
542.0 492 4
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27 Deferred tax

An analysis of the movements in the major deferred tax liabilties and assets recognised by the group is set out

below
Accelerated Retirement Fair value
tax benefit of financal
depreciation obligations Instruments Other Total
£m £m £m £fm £m
At 1 April 2013 8915 (88 2) (62 7) 452 7858
Redclassification 526 - - (52 6) -
Credit to income 607 63 122 75 (347)
Credit to income ansing from rate change (123 1) as 38 07 (114 8}
Charge to equity - 08 46 - 54
Charge to equity arising from rate change - 77 43 03 123
At 1 April 2014 760 3 {69 6) {37 8) 11 654 0
Cradit to [ncome 133 17 (250} 49 {51)
Credit to equity - (25 8) 19 01 238
At 31 March 2015 7736 (83.7) {80 9) 61 625.1

Deferred tax assets and habilities have been offset The offset amounts, which are to be recovered/settled afler

more than 12 months, are as follows

2015 2014

£m £m

Deferred tax asset (154 6) {121 7)
Deferred tax Labiddy a7 757
6251 6540

28 Retirement benefit schemes
a) Defined benefit pension schemes

(I} Background

The group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes in the UK which closed to future accrual on 31
March 2015 The defined benefit pension schemes cover increases in accrued benefits ansing from inflation and

future pension increases Thelr assets are held in separate funds administered by trusiees The trustees are

required to act in the best interests of the schemes' bensficianes A formal actuanal valuation of each scheme 1s
carried out on behalf of the trustees at tnenmal intervals by an independent professionally qualified actuary Under

the defined benefit pension schemes, members are entitled to retirement benefits calculated as a proportion

(varying between 1/30 and 1/80 for each year of service) of therr salary for the final year of employment with the
group or, f higher, the average of the highest three consecutive years’ salary In the last ten years of employment
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The UK defined benefit pension schemes and the date of their last formal actuarial valuation are as follows

Date of last formal
actuarial valuation

Severn Trent Pension scheme (STPS)*

31 March 2013

Sevemn Trent Miror Image Pension Scheme

31 March 2013

* The STPS ts by far the largest of tha group's UK defined benefit schemes

{it) Amount included in the balance sheet ansing from the group's obligations under defined benefit

pension schemes

2015 2014
£m £m
Falr value of scheme assota
Equities 9995 B706
Glits 32712 2705
Corporate bonds 4508 388 8
Property 1593 148 4
Hexdge funds 609 56 9
Cash 881 88 4
Total fair value of assets 2,086 8 1,823 6
Present value of the defined benefit obligations — funded schemes (2,545 7) {2,162 6)
{458 9) (338 9)
Present valfue cf the defined benefit obigations — unfunded schemes {100) 9 4)
Liability recognised In the balanco sheet (468 9) (348 3)
The equities, gilts, carporate bonds and hedge funds have quoted prices in active markets
Movements in the farr value ¢of the scheme assets were as follows
2015 2014
£m £m
Fair value at 1 April 1,8238 1,724 3
Interest income on scheme assets 801 76.0
Contnbubions from the sponsoring companies 81.0 730
Contnbutions from scheme members 4.8 51
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included In finance Ncome) 1934 249
Schema administration costs {2.9) (30)
Benefits paid {93.2) (76 7}
Fair value at 31 March 2,086.8 18236
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Movements n the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows

2015 2014
£m £m
Present value at 1 Apnl 25119 2,108 0
Service cost 28 224
Past service cost 18.1 01
Interest cost 8945 917
Contnbutions from scheme members 48 51
Actuanal gains ansing from changes in demographic assumptions - (157)
Actuanal losses arising from changes in financial assumptons 368 2 370
Actuanal gains ansing from experience adjustments (29.4) -
Benefits paid {93 2) (16 7)
Present value at 31 March 2,5557 2,171 86
Of which
2015 2014
£m £m
Amounts relating to funded schemes 25457 21625
Amounts relating to unfunded schemes 100 94
2,555.7 21719

Prasent value at 31 March

The group has an obligation to pay pensions to a number of former employees, whose benefits would otherwise
have been restricted by the Finance Act 1989 earnings cap Provision for such benefits amounting to £10 0 million

(2014 £9 4 milhion) i1s included as an unfunded scheme within the retirement benefit obligation

{ili) Amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of these defined benefit pension schemes

2015 2014
£m £m
Amounts charged to oparating costs
Current service cost (22.8) {22 9)
Past service cost (18 1) Q1)
Scheme administration costs {(2.8) R0
{43.8) {25 5)
Amounts charged to finance coats
Interest cost {94 8) @7
Amounts credited to finance income
Interest income on scheme assets BO 1 760
Total amount charged to the income statement (58 2) 412)
The actual return on scheme assets was a gain of £270 6 milion (2014 gain of £97 2 million)
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Actuarial gains and losses have been reported in the statement of comprehensive income The cumulative
amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised In the statement of comprehensive income since the adoption of
IFRS is a net loss of £E459 1 million (2014 £315.7 mihon)

(Iv} Actuarial risk factors
The schemes typically expose the company to actuanal nsks such as investment nsk, inflabion nsk and longewty nsk

Investment risk

The group’s contributions to the schemes are based on actuarral calculatrons which make assumphions about the
returns expected from the schemes' investments If the investments underperform these assumptions in the long
term then the group will need to make additional contributions to the schemes in order to fund the payment of
accrued benefits

inflafion risk

The benefits payable to members of the schemes are linked to inflation measured by the RPI The group’s
contributions to the schemes are based on assumptions about the future level of inflation If inflation 1s higher than
the levels assumed in the actuanal calculations then the group will need to make addiional contributions to the
schemes in order to fund the payment of accrued benefits.

Longevity risk

The group’s contnbutions to the schemes are based on assumptions about the ife expectancy of scheme
members after retrement if scheme members live longer than assumed in the actuanal calculations then the
group wiil need to make additional contnibutions to the schemes in order to fund the payment of accruad benefits

(v) Actuarial assumptions

The major assumptions used in the valuation of the STPS (also the approximate weighted average of
assumptions used for the valuations of all group schemes) were as follows

2015 2014

% %

Price Inflation 3.0 33
Drscount rate 33 44
Salary Increases nfa 30
Pansion increases in payment 30 33
Pension Increasas In deferment 3.0 33

The assumption for price inflation is derived from the difference between the yields on longer term fixed rate gilts
and on index-inked giits The discount rate I1s set by reference to AA rated sterling 18 year corporate bonds.

No salary assumption is required in the current year because the scheme closed to future accrual on 31 March
2015

The mortality assumptions are based on those used in the tnennial valuation of the STPS as at 31 March 2013
The mortality assumptions adopted at the year end and the life expectancies at age 65 implied by the
assumptions are as follows

2015 2014
Men Women Men Women
‘SAPS’ ‘SAPS'
Mortality table used S1NMA_L SINFA L S1INMA_L S1INFA_L
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2015 2014

Men Women Men Women

Mortality table compared with standard table 116% 92% 116% 92%

Future fmprovement per annum 1% 1% 1% 1%

Remaining hfe expectancy for members currently aged 65 {years) 214 245 213 244
Remaining Iife expectancy at age 65 for members cumently aged 45

(years) 227 261 226 260

The calculation of the scheme liabilities 1s sensitive to the actuanal assumptions and in particular to the
assumptions relating to discount rate, price inflation and mortality The following table summarises the estimated
impact on scheme liabilities from changes to key actuanal assumptions whilst holding ali other assumptions
constant

Assumption Change in assumption Impact on scheme habtlities

Discount rate Increase/decrease by 0 1% Decreasefincrease by £50 million

Pnce inflation Increaseldecrease by 0 1% Increase/decrease by £45 million

Increase by £75 milion

Mortality Increase i life expectancy by 1 year

In realtty, interrelationships exist between the assumptions, particularly between the discount rate and price
inflation The above analysis does not take into account the effect of these mterrelationships

in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected urut credit method at the end of the reporting period, which Is the same as that
applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liabiity recognised in the balance sheet

(vi) Effect on future cash fiows
Contribution rates are set in consultation with the trustees for each scheme and each participating employer

The average duration of the benefit obligation at the end of the year is 18 years (2014 18 years) The expected
cash flows payable from the scheme are presented in the graph below

Following the completion of the tnennial valuation of both schemes, future lump sum deficit contributions have
been agreed with the Trustee In respect of the shortfall, a cash contribution of £35 mdlion was made in the
current year, a further £15 million contribution will be made in the year to 31 March 2016, followed by £12 million
per annum to 31 March 2025, An annual contribution of £8 2 milion will also be made through an asset backing
funding arrangement for at least 12 years from 31 March 2015

b) Deflned contribution pension schemes
The group also operates defined contribution arrangaments for certain of its UK employees
The Severn Trent Pension Scheme, Choices section was replaced by the Severn Trent Group Perscnal Pension

from 1 Apnl 2015 and all members of other pension schemes were transferred This scheme has been open since
1 April 2012 and new employees were automatically enrolled from this date

The total cost charged to operating costs of £9 4 milion (2014 £8 5 million) represents contributions payable to
these schemes by the group at rates specified In the rules of the schemes As at 31 March 2015, contributions
amounting to £1 0 million {2014 £0 7 miflion) in respect of the current reporting perod were owed to the schemes

Group financial statements 162




SEVERN TRENT_AR1S

29 Provisions

Terminated
Onerous operations
Rastructuring Insurance contracts | and disposals Other Tetal
£m £m £m £m Em £m
At 1 Apnl 2014 37 231 21 64 33 386
Charged/(released) to income
statement 116 64 03 04 13 200
Utilisation of provision {12 4) {7 6) 11N (35) (14) (26 0)
Unwinding of discount - - 01 - 01 02
Reclassifications - - - - - 34 34
Transfer to habilities held for
sale (see note 38) - - (04 - (11) (15
Exchange differances {02) - - - ©1) (0 3)
At 31 March 2015 27 219 10 3.3 5.5 344
2015 2014
£m £m
Disclosed in the balance sheet as
Current llabilibes 159 121
Non-current iabitres 185 265
34.4 386

The restructuring provision reflects costs to be incurred In respect of committed restructuring programmes The
assoctated outflows are estimated to arise over the next twelve months from the balance sheet date

Derwent Insurance Limited, a captive insurance company, 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of the group Provisions
for claims are made as set out in note 2 The associated outflows are estimated to anse over a period of up to five
years from the balance sheet date

The onerous contract provision relates to specific contractual liabilites erther assumed with businesses acquired
or arising in existing group businesses, where estimated future costs are not expected to be recovered In
revenues or other economic benefits The associated outflows are estimated to occur over a period of ten years
from the balance sheet date

Provisions relating to terminated operations and disposals include amounts that it 1s probable will be paid in
respect of claims ansing from services performed by these businesses The associated outflows are estimated to
occur over a period of five years from the balance sheet date

Other provisions include provisions for dilapidations and commercial disputes The associated outflows are
estimated to anse over a period up to six years from the balance sheet date
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30 Share capital

2015 2014
£m £m

Total issued and fully paid share capital
238,683,513 ordinary shares of 97/10p (2014 238,842,847) 2337 23390

On 13 February 2015 the group entered into an irrevocable, non-discretionary arrangement to enable market purchases of

ordinary shares of 9717/19 pence each up to an amount of £1410 million during the penod commencing on 16
February 2015 and ending no later than 23 November 2015

By 31 March 2015 966,578 shares had been repurchased and cancelled under the programme

Changes in share capital were as follows

Number £m
Ordinary shares of 97" /up
At 1 Apnl 2013 238,365,734 2333
Shares issued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 576,913 08
At 1 Apnl 2014 238,942 647 2339
Shares 1ssued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 707 444 07
Shares repurchased and cancelled (966,578) {0 8)
At 31 March 2015 238,683,513 2337
31 Share premium
2015 2014
£m £m
At 1 April 94 2 897
Share premium ansing on shares issued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 60 45
At 31 March 1002 942
32 Other reserves
Capital
redemption Translation Hedging
roserve reserve reserve Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2013 156 1 280 {1127 723
Total comprehensive income for the year - {87) 186 89
At 1 April 2014 1561 202 (94 1) 822
Total comprehensive income for the year - 7.2 79 151
Purchase of own shares 09 - - og
At 31 March 2015 1570 274 (86 2) 08.2
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The capital redemption reserve as at 1 Apnil 2014 arose on the redemption of B shares The movement in the
current year arose from the repurchase and cancellation of own shares, as outlined in note 30

The translation reserve anses from exchange differences on translation of the results and financial position of
foreign subsidianes

The hedging reserve arises from gains or losses on interest rate swaps taken directly {o equity under the hedge
accountng provisions of IAS 39 and the transition rules of IFRS 1

33 Capital management
The group’s principal objectves In managing capital are

» toaccess a broad range of sources of finance to obtain bath the quantum required and lowest cost compatible
with the need for continued avadlability,

+ 1o manage exposure to movements in interest rales to provide an appropriate degree of certainty as to its cost
of funds,

« 1o minimise counterparty credit exposure nsk,

« to provide the group with an appropniate degree of certainty as to its foreign exchange exposure,
+ to maintain an investment grade credit rating, and

« to mantain a flexible and sustainable balance shest structure

The group seeks to achieve a balance of iong term funding or commitment of funds across a range of funding
sources at the best possible economic cost The group monitors future funding requirements and credit market
condittons to ensure continued avaiability of funds

Whiist the group does not have a specific geanng target and seeks to maintain gearing at a level consistent with
its capital management objectives described above, the board has decided to move towards a net debt/RCV
gearing ratio of around 62 5%, which 1s in ine with Ofwat's notional assumption for AMPS As part of this move,
on 13 February 2015 the group announced that it had entered into an irevocable, non-discretionary arrangement
to enable market purchases of ordinary shares up to an amount of £110 million

The group took a number of financing steps in readiness for AMPS, aimed at reducing short term refinancing risk
and increasing exposure to currently low floating interest rates These steps included

» Entering into a new £530 mulion, fioating rate, nine year facity with the European Investment Bank At 31
March 2015, £200 million of the facility had been drawn, with the balance drawn down in April 2015

s On 31 March 2015 the group purchased €182 6 million of its €700 million Eurobond which 1s due for
repayment in March 2016 On the same date the equivalent amount of the corresponding swap, paying fixed
rate 6 326%, was cancelled

+ In March 2015 the group cancelled floating to fixed interest rate swaps with a notional principal amount of
£275 mulhon, for a cash payment of £138 2 million The average fixed rate interest on the swaps was 5 2%
The cash payment was charged against the far value hability on the balance sheet, and £11 million that had
been recogrised in reserves was recycled through the income statement

» On 18 March 2015 the group amended and extended the revolving credit facility which was due to mature in
October 2018 The new £800 million facility has a period of five years, with two one year extension options
exercisabie with lender consent, At 31 March 2015 £485 million of the facility was drawn

The group’s dividend policy is a key tool in achieving its capital management objectives This policy 1s reviewed
and updated in line with Severn Trent Water’s five year price control cycle and takes into account, inter alia, the
planned investment programme, the appropnate gearing level achieving a balance between an efficient cost of
capital and retaining an investment grade credit rating and delivering an attractive and sustainable return to
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shareholders The board has decided to sel the 2015/16 dividend at 80 66p, a reduction of 5% compared to the
total dividend for 2014/15 of 84 90p Our policy will then be to grow the dividend annually at no less than RPI until
March 2020 This replaces the previous dividend policy of RP1+3% which ran until March 2015

2015 2014

£m £m

Cash and short tern deposits 178.7 1232
Bank loans {1,279.2) (594 9)
Other Ioans {3,467.5) (3,826 0)
Obhgations under finance leases {180 0) (201 2)
Cross currency swaps (286) 514
Net debt (4,752 &) (4,447 5)
Equity attributable to the owners of the company {809 9) (1.077 6)
Total capital {5,562 5) (5,525 1)

34 Fair values of financial instruments

a) Fair value measurements

The valuation techniques that the group appiies in determening the fair values of its financial instruments on a
recurnng basis are described below The techniques are classified under the hierarchy defined in IFRS 13 which
categonises valuation techniques into Levels 1 — 3 based on the degree to which the farr value is observable All of

the group's valuaton techniques are level 2

2015 2044
£m £m | Valuation techmiques and key inputs

Cross currency swaps Discounted cash flow

Assets 228 731 | Future cash flows are estmated based on forward interest rates
from observable yield curves at the year end and contract
interest rates discounted at a rate that reflects the credit nsk of
counterparties

Liabihibes (25.2) {21 7} | The cusrency cash flows are translated at the spot rate

Interest rate swaps Discounted cash flow

Assets 42 12 1 | Future cash flows are estrnated based on forward interest rates

Liabllities (1811) {206 1) | from observable yield curves at the year end and contract
interest rates discounted at a rate that reflects the credit nsk of
counterparties

Energy swaps Discounted cash flow

Assets - — | Future cash fiows are estimated based on forward electncity

Liabilihes 0 8) (29) | prices from observable indices at the year end and contract
pnices discounted at a rate that reflects the credit nsk of
counterparties

Forelgn currency forward contracts Discounted cash flow

Assets 02 01 Future cash flows are estmated based on observable forward

Liabilites (0.2) (03} | exchange rates at the year end and contract forward rates

discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties
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b) Comparison of fair value of financial instruments with their carrying amounts

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of cash and short term deposits, bank overdrafts, trade receivables and trade
payables approximate thewr fair values The carrying values and estimated fair values of other financtal instruments are sst out

below
2015 2014
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
Em £m £m £m
Floating rate debt
Bank loans 584.3 970.3 3000 2930
Currency bonds 84.3 84.3 2156 2174
1,068 8 1,054.6 5156 510 4
Fixed rate debt
Bank loans 188.5 2044 1897 2011
Sterling bonds 1,855.3 2,268 4 1,902 9 2,1081
Currency bonds 3708 3813 5715 627 3
Cther loans 20 20 17 17
Finance leases 1800 1007 2012 1977
2,586.6 3,056.8 2,867 0 31350
Index-linked debt
Bank loans 106.4 123.0 1062 1147
Sterling bonds 1,1551 1,5851 11343 1,213 3
1,261.5 1,7081 1,239 5 1,328 0
4,926.7 5,819.5 46221 45743

Fixed rate sterling and currency bonds are valued using market prices

Index-hnked bonds are rarely traded and therefore quoted prices are not considered to be a reliable indicator of
far value Thersfore, these bonds are valued using discounted cash flow models with discount rates derived from

observed market prices for a sample of bonds

Far values of the other debt instruments are also calculated using discounted cash flow models

35 Risks arlsing from financial instruments
The group’s activities expose it to a vanety of financial nsks

= market nsk (Including interest rate risk, exchange rate risk and other price risk),

s credit nsk,
« lquidity nsk, and
« mnflation nsk

The group’s overall sk management programme addresses the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
reduce potential adverse effects on the group’s financial performance or pesition
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Financia! nsks are managed by a central treasury department (Group Treasury)} under policies approved by the
board of directors The board has established a Treasury Committee to monitor treasury activities and to facilitate
timely responses to changes in market conditions when necessary Group Treasury identifies, evaluates and
hedges financial nsks in close co-operation with the group’s operating units The board defines written principles
for overall nsk management, as wefl as written policies covering specific areas such as exchange rate risk,
interest rate nsk, credit nisk and the use of derivative and non-denvative financial Instruments The group's policy
is that denvative financial instruments are not held for trading but may be used to miigate the group’s exposure to
financial nsk The types of denvative mstruments held and the related risks are descnbed below

Interest rate swaps are held to mitigate the group’s exposure to changes in market interest rates Further detatls
are set out in sections a) (1) and note 36 b) below.

Cross currency swaps are held to miigate the group’s exposure to exchange rate movements on amounts
borrowed in foreign currencies Further detalls are set out in section a) (i} below

Energy swaps are held to mitigate the group’s exposure to changes in electricity pnices Further details are
provided in note 36 b) below
Severn Trent Water, the group’s most significant business unit, operates in a regulatory environment where its

prices are iinked to inflation measured by RPI In order to mitigate the nisks to cash flow and earnings ansing from
fluctuations in RPI, the group holds debt instruments where the principal repayable and interest cost 1s hnked to

RPI

a) Market nisk
The group I1s exposed to fluctuations in interest rates and, lo a lesser extent, exchange rates The nature of these
risks and the steps that the group has taken to manage them are described below

{i) Interest rate rnisk

The group’s Income and Its operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates The group’s Interest rate nsk arises from long term horrowings

Borrowings Issued at vanable rates expose the group to the nisk of adverse cash flow impacts from increases in
interest rates

Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the group to the risk of interest costs above the market rate when interest
rates decrease

The group’s policy 1s to maintain 45% to 90% of its interest bearing habilities in fixed rate instruments In

measuring this metric, management makes adjustments to the carrying value of debt to better reflect the amount
that interest 1s calculated on Detalls of the adjustments made are set out below

2015 2014

£m £m

Net debt (see note 39) 47528 4,447 5
Cash and cash equivalents 1767 1232
Cross currency swaps included in net debt at fair value {26) 514
Farr value hedge accounting adjustments {19 1) {26 8}
Exchange on currency debt 226 {18 6)
Interest bearing financlal liabilities 4,930 2 458767

The group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by borrowing at fixed or index-linked rates or by using interest
rate swaps Under these swaps the group receives vanable rate inferest and pays fixed rate interest calculated by
reference to the agreed notional principal amounts In practice the swaps are settled by transferring the net
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amount, These swaps have the economic effect of converting borrowings from variabie rates to fixed rates The
group has entered into a series of these interest rate swaps to hedge future interest payments beyond 2030

The following tables show analyses of the group's interest beanng financial iabilities by type of interest Debt
raised n foreign currencies has been included at the sterling value of the payable leg of the corresponding cross
currency swap since this 1s the amount that 1s exposed to changes in interest rates Valuation adjustments that do
not impact the amount on which interest is calculated, such as far value hedge accounting adjustments, are

excluded from this analysis

The net principal amount of interest rate swaps I1s shown as an adjustment to floating rate and fixed rate debt to
demonstrate the impact of the swaps on the amount of habilities bearing fixed interest

Floating Fixed Index-
rato rate linked Total
2015 £m £m £m £m
Bank loans (B84 3) (188 5) (106 4) {1279 2)
Other loans (62 2) (2,253 7) (1,155 1} (3471 0)
Finance leases - (180 0) - (180 Q)
(1,046 5) {2,622 2) {1,261 5} {4,930 2)
Impact of interest rate swaps neot matched against specific debt
instruments 5414 (541 4) - -
Interest bearing financial habilittes {505 1) {3,163 6) (1.261 5} (4,930 2)
Proporhon of interest beanng financial habilties that are fixed 64%
Weighted average mterest rate of fixed rate debt 5.66%
Waeighted average penod for which interest is fixed (years) 97
Floating Flxed Index-
rate rate hnked Total
2014 £m £m £m £m
Bank loans {300 0) {189 7) (105 2) (584.9)
Other loans {206 7) (2,440 8) {1,134 3) (3,780 B)
Finance leases - (201 2) - {201 2)
{505 7) {2,831 5) (1.239 5) {4,576 7)
Impact of Interest rate swaps Aot matched against specific debt
instruments 5914 (581 4) - -
Interest beanng financial habtitbes 857 (3422 9) (1,239 5} (4578 )
Proportion of interest beanng financlal llabilities that are fixed 75%
Woeighted average interest rate of fixed rate debt 5 68%
Weighted average penod for which interest is fixed {years) 10.7

Interast rate swaps not hedge accounted

The group has a number of interest rate swaps which are not accounted for as cash flow hedges Economucally
these swaps act to fix the interest cost of debt within the group which 1s denommated as fioating rate, but they do
not achieve hedge accounting under the strict criteria of IAS 39 This has led to a charge of £108.0 million (2014,

credit of £66 7 million) m the income statement
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Average contract fixed Notional
interest rate principal amount Fair value
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
% % £m £m £m fm
Pay fixed rate interest

Within 1 year 6.32 - (225 0) - {6.3) -
1-2 years - 632 - (225 0) - (182)
2.5 years - - - - - -
5-10 years 508 498 {450 0} {225 0) {129 5) {42 4)
10-20 years 545 537 (66 4) (216.4) (34 9) (630)
20-30 years - 510 - {125.0) - (35 3)
547 544 {741.4) (791 4) {170 7) (158 9)

Recerve fixed rate intorest
Within 1 year 518 - 2000 - 42 -
1-2 years - 518 - 2000 - 121
518 518 200.0 2000 4.2 121
(541 4) (591 4) {186 5) {146 8)

Interest rate sensiivily analysis

The sensitivity after tax of the group's profits, cash flow and equity, including the impact on denvative financial

instruments, to changes In interest rates at 31 March 1s as follows

2015 2M4

+ 0% -1.0% +1 0% -1 0%

£m £m £m f£m

Profit or loss 569 {63 8) 733 (837}
Cash flow 26 {2.8) {1 6) 16
Equity 568 (63 4) 978 (111 0)

{ii} Exchange rate risk

Except for debt raised in foreign currency, which i1s hedged, the group’s business does not involve significant
exposure to foreign exchange transactions Although the group operates internationally and its net investments in
foreign operations are subject to exchange nisk, substantially all of the group’s profits and net assets arise from
Severn Trent Water, which has very imited and indirect exposure to changes in exchange rates, and therefore the

sensitvity of the group's results to changes in exchange rates is not matenal

Certain of the group’s subsidianies enter into transactions in currencies other than the funchional currency of the
operation Exchange risks relating to such operations are not matenal but are managed centrally by Group

Treasury through forward exchange contracts to buy or sell currency

In order to meet its objective of accessing a broad range of sources of finance, the group has raised debt
denominated in currencies other than sterling In order to mitigate the group’s exposure to exchange rate
fluctuations, cross currency swaps were entered into at the time that the debt was drawn down to swap the
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proceeds Into stering debt beanng interest based on LIBOR The terms of the receivable leg of the swap closely
match the terms of the underlying debt hence the swaps are expected to be effective hedges

The group’s gross and net currency exposures ansing from currency borrowings are summansed in the tables
below These show, in the relevant currency, the amount borrowed and the notional principal of the related swap
or forward contract The net position shows the group's exposure to exchange rate nsk in relation to its currency
borrowings

Japanese Czech

Euro US Dollar Yen Krona

2015 €m $m ¥Bn CZKm
Borrowlngs by currancy (540 0) {500) (50) -
Cross currency swaps — hedge accounted 198 500 50 -
Cross currency swaps — not hedge accounted 517 4 - - -
Net currency exposurs 2.0 - - -
Japanese Czech

Euro US Dollar Yen Krona

2014 €m $m ¥Bn CZKm
Borrowings by currency (722 9) 527) (24 8) (620 0}
Cross currency swaps — hedge accountsd 188 500 145 6200
Cross curency swaps — not hedge accounted 7000 - 100 -
Net currency exposure (30) 27) - -

b) Credit risk

Operationally the group has no significant concentrations of credit nek It has policies In place to ensure that sales
of products are made to customers with an appropriate credst history, other than in Severn Trent Water Limited,
whose operating licence abliges it to supply domestic customers even in cases where bills are not paid Amounts
provided against accounts receivable and movements on the provision durning the year are disclosed in note 21

Cash deposits and denvative contracts are only placed with high credit quality financtal institutions, which have
been approved by the board Group Treasury moritors the credit quality of the approved financial institutions and
the hst of financal institutions that may be used is approved annually by the board The group has policies that
himit the amount of credit exposure to any one financial mstitution

Credit risk analysis
At 31 March the aggregate credit Imits of authonised counterparties and the amounts held on short term deposits
were as follows

Credit llmit Amount deposited

2015 2014 2015 2014

£€m £m £m £m

AAA 200 200 12 12
Double A range 1000 1000 221 242
Single A range $00.0 6000 1285 514
7200 7200 1518 768
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The fair values of denvative assets analysed by credi ratings of counterparties were as follows

Derivative assots

2015 2014

Rating £m £m
Double A range 115 167
Single A range 155 686
270 853

c) Liquidity risk

{I}) Committed facilities

Prudent liquidity management requires sufficient cash balances to be maintained, adequate committed facilities to
be available, and the abilty to close out market positions Group Treasury manages hiquidity and fiexibility in
funding by monitonng forecast and actual cash flows and the matunty profile of financial assets and liabihhes, and
by keeping commitled credit ines available

During the year the group agreed two new facilities, a £530 millon committed facility, of which £200 million was
drawn at the 31 March 2015, which will mature in September 2023, and a £900 miflion revolving credit faciiity, of
which £485 milhion was drawn at the 31 March 2015, which will mature in March 2020

At the balance sheet date the group had committed undrawn borrowing facihities expiring as follows:

2015 2014

£m £m

2-5 years 4150 5000
After more than five years 3300 -
7450 5000

(ii) Cash flows from non-derivative financial instruments

The following tables show the estimated cash flows that will anse from the group’s non-derrvative net financial
liabililes The information presented ts based on the earhiest date on which the group can be required to pay and
represents the undiscounted cash flows including principal and interest

Interest and inflabion assumptions are based on prevailing market conditions at the year end date

Payments on

Floating Fixed Index Trade financial

2015 rate rate linked payables liabilities
Undiscounted amounts payable: £m £m £m £m £m
Within 1 year (60 &) (549 4) {25 2) (32 7) {867 9)
1-2years {181 2) {132 B} (255) - {319.5)
2~ 5 years (667 8) (680 4) (787 - {1,426 9)
5~ 10 years (243 0 (842 7) (431 6) - (1,517 3)
10 - 15 years (507) (1,182 0} (344 4) - {1,587 1)
15 — 20 years - (91 5) (123 2) - {214.7)
20 — 25 years - (60 9) (149 4) - {210 3)
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Paymants on

Floating Fixod Index Trade financial

2015 rate rato linked payables liabilties
Undiscounted amounts payable: £m £m £m £m £m
25— 30 years - (274 4) (178 8) - {453 2)
30 - 35 years - - 2132) - {2132)
35 — 40 years - - (650 0) - (650.0)
40— 45 years - - (3,252 7) - {3,252 7}
45 — 50 years - - {28 9} - (28.9)
50 — 55 years - - (445 1) - {445.1)
{1,183.3) (3,824 1) {5,948.7} (327 {10,986 8)

Receipts

Cash and from

Trade short tarm financial

receivables deposits assots

Undiscounted amounts recelvable, £m £m £m
Within 1 year 1725 176 7 349.2
Payments on

Floating Flxed Index- Trade financial

2014 rate rate linked payables liabilities
Undiscounted amounts payable- £m £m £m £m £m
Within 1 year (142 6) (220 2) (23 8) (318) (418 4)
1-2years {54 8) (721 3) (24 4) - (800 5)
2-5years {316 5) (737 3) (77 4) - {1,131.2)
5— 10 years {26 3) {877 1) (373 3) - (1,276 7)
10 - 15 years {43 5) {788 0) (424 6) - (1,256 1)
15 — 20 years (16 8) (558 3) (124 0) - (689 1)
20 - 25 years - (60 9) {151 2) - {2121}
25 = 30 years - (286 6) (183 6) - (470 2)
30 - 35 years - - {222 4) - (222 4)
35—40 years - - (740 6) - {740 6)
40 - 45 years - - {3.573 5) - {3,573 5}
45 - 50 years - - {33 7) - (337
50 - 55 years - - (545 5) - (545 5)
(600 5) (4,249 7) (6,488 0) (31 8) (11,380 0)

Trade Cash and | Recelipts from

receivables short tarm financial

Undiscounted amounts recelvable £m deposits assets
173
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£m

£m

Within 1 year

1956 1232

3188

Index-hnked debt includes loans with maturities up to 52 years The pnincipal is revalued at fixed intervals and 1s
linked to movements in the Retail Pnce Index Interest payments are made biannually based on tha revalued
principal. The principal repayment equals the revalued amount at maturity The payments included in the table
above are estimates based on the forward inflation rates published by the Bank of England at the balance sheet

date

(i) Cash flows from derivative financial instruments
The following tables show the estimated cash flows that will anse from the group’s denvative financial instruments
The tables are based on the undiscounted net cash inflows/(outflows) on the derivative financial instruments that

settle on a net basis and the undiscounted gross inflows/(outflows) on those derivatives that require gross

settliement When the amount payable or recevable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by

reference to the projected interest and foreign currency rates derived from the forward curves existing at the

balance sheet date Actual amounts may be significantly different from those indicated below

Dectvative habilities Derivative assots
Cross currency Swaps Cross currency swaps
Interest rato Energy Cash Cash | interost rate Cash Cash
sSwaps swaps receipts payments swaps recalpts payments Total
2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Within 1
year (29 9} (05) 3866 4217 42 525 {42 7) (41 5)
1 =2 years {860 6) 01 - - - 09 {03) {60 1)
2-5years (60 6) (0 2) - - - 28 (12) {592)
5-10
years (76 9) - - - - 50 (24) (76 3)
10-15
years (17 0) - - - - 320 (212) €62)
15-20
years (29) - - - - - - (29)
{249 9) ({0 8} 336.6 417 42 932 {67.8) (246 2)
Derivative liabllifes Derivative assets
Cross cutrency swaps Cross cumrency swaps
Interest rate Energy Cash Cash Interest rate Cash Cash
swaps swaps receipts payments swaps receipts payments Total
2014 Em £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Within 1
yoar (40 6} (3.0) 600 {82 0) 85 1090 (97 4) {45 5}
1~2years (38 4) - - - 35 664 2 (613 4) 159
2~ 5 years (67 Q) - - - - 31 (17" (65 6)
5—10 (63 3) - - - - 55 (40) (618)
174
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Denvative labities Derivabve assets
Cross currency swaps Cross currency swaps
years
10-15
years {28 4) - - - - 218 {14 3} (212)
15-20
years (182) - - - - 168 {87} (10 1)
20-25
years (0 7) - - - - - - (07)
(256 6) (30} 600 (82 0) 120 8201 (739 5) (188 0)
d) Inflation risk

The group's principal operating subsidiary, Severn Trent Water, operates 1n a regulatory environment where its
prices are linked to infiation measured by RP| Its operating profits and cash flows are therefore exposed to
changes in RPL. In order to mitigate and parhially offset this nsk, Severn Trent Water has raised debt which pays
interest at a fixed coupon based on a principal amount that 1s adjusted for the change in RPI duning the Ife of the
debt instrument (index-inked debt) The amount of Index-linked debt at the balance sheet date 1s shown in section
a) (1) interest rate risk, and the estimated future cash flows relating to this debt are shown in section ¢) (1) cash
flows from non-derivative financial instruments.

Inflation rate sensitivity analysis

The finance cost of the group’s index-inked debt instruments vanes with changes in RPI rather than nterest rates
The sensitivity at 31 March of the group's profit and equity to changes in RP! 1s set out in the following table This
analysis relates to financial instruments only and excludes any RPl impact on Severn Trent Water's revenues and
Regulated Capital Value, or accounting for defined benefit pension schemes

2015 2014

+1.0% -1 0% +1 0% -1 0%

£m £€m £m £m

Profit or loss {10.0) 100 (95 95
Equity {100) 100 95 95

36  Hedge accounting

The group uses dervative financial iInstruments to hedge exposures to changes in exchange rates and interest
rates Hedge accounting is adopted for such instruments where the critena set out in IAS 39 are met

a) Falr value hedges

The group raises debt denominated in currencies other than stering Cross currency swaps are entered into at the
time that the debt 1s drawn down to swap the proceeds into sterling debt beanng interest based on LIBOR in order
to mitigate the group’s exposure to exchange rate fluctuations The terms of the recevable leg of the swap closely
match the terms of the underlying debt hence the swaps are sxpected to be effective hedges
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At the year end the amounts of cross currency swaps designated as farr value hedges were as follows

Notional principal amount Fair value

2015 2014 2015 2014

£m £m £m £m

US dollar 270 270 73 47
Euro 114 114 80 84
Yen 238 74 7.3 159
Czech krona - 147 - 48
622 1245 226 336

b) Cash flow hedges

The group has entered into interest rate swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between
fixed and floating Interest rate amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts Such contracts enable
the group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on future cash flow exposures ansing from issued variable
rate debt Where the hedge Is expected to be highly effective these interest rate swaps are accounted for as cash
fiow hedges

At the beginning of AMP5 the group entered into a number of interest rate contracts with future start dates during
the regulatory perted to hedge the interest rate risk on the anticipated borrowings requirements of Severn Trent
Water These swaps were accounted for as cash flow hedges During the year interest rate swaps with notional
principal value £225 million reached therr start dates Hedge accounting has been discontinued for these
contracts as it has not been possible to match the swaps against specific debt instruments These instruments are
now included In note 35 a)

Detalls of interest rate swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are summansed below

Average contract
fixed interest rate Notional principal amount Fair value
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Period to maturity % % £m £m £m £m
10-20 years 518% 514% 423 2647 {10 5) (47 2)

The group has entered into a series of energy swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference
between fixed and market prices of electricity at six-monthly intervals up to March 2018

Details of energy swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are summarnsead below.

Notional
Average contract price contracted amount Falr value
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Period to maturity £/MWh £/MWh Mwh MWh £m £m
Less than 1 year 544 629 70,272 174,720 {0.5) 29)
1-2 years 498 - 21,880 - (01) -
2-5 years 467 - 162,000 - 0.2) -
254,222 174,720 (0 B) (29)
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37 Share based payments

The group operates a number of share based remuneration schemes for employees During the period, the group
recognised total expenses of £7 7 miliion (2014 £6 2 million) related to equity settled share based payment
transactions

The weighted average share price during the period was £19 74 (2014 £1812)

At 31 March 2015, there were no options exercisable (2014 none) under any of the share based remuneration
schemes

a) Long Term Incentive Plans (LTIPs)

Under the terms of the LTIPs, conditional awards of shares may be made to executive directors and senior staff
Awards are subject to performance condiions and continued employment throughout the vesting penod Awards
have been previously made on different bases to Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water emplayees (the LTIP)
and to Severn Trent Services employees (the Services LTIP)

Awards outstanding
Awards made under the LTIP
These awards are subject to Severn Trent Water's achievement of Return on Regulated Capital Value in excess

of the level included in the Severn Trent Water AMP5 business plan over a three year vesting period It has been
assumed that performance against the LTIP non-market conditions wilt be 100% {2014 100%).

Awards made under the Services LTIP

Awards are subject to achievement of turnover and profit targets over the three year period from the financial year
that the awards were granted |t has been assumed that performance against the 2012 Services LTIP non-market
conditions will be 0% (2014 25%) and 2013 Services LTIP will be 0% (2014 75%)

Details of changes in the number of awards outstanding during the year are set out below

Number of awards

Services

LTIP LTiP

Cutstanding at 1 April 2013 321,024 88,872
Granted during the year 88,996 38,902
Vested during the year (67,302) -
Lapsed during the year (66,586) (37,512}
Qutstanding at 1 April 2014 276,132 91,262
Granted during the year 309,770 -
Vested during the year (138,560) -
Lapsed during the year {14,224} {28,738}
Qutstanding at 31 March 2015 433,118 84,524
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Details of LTIP and Services LTIP awards outstanding at 31 March were as follows

Number of awards
Normal date

Date of grant of vesting 2015 2014
July 2011 2014 - 127,777
July 2012 2015 152,713 115,808
July 2013 2016 166,840 123,808
July 2014 2017 178,089 -
497,642 367,394

Details of the basis of the LTIP schemes are set out in the remuneration report on page 73

b) Employee Sharesave Scheme

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the board may grant the nght to purchase ordinary shares in the
company to those employees who have entered into an HMRC approved Save As You Eamn contract for a period

of three or five years

Options outstanding
Detalls of changes in the number of options outstanding during the year are set out below

Waeighted

Number of average

shars exercise

options price

Qutstanding at 1 Aprll 2013 2,834,486 1.027p
Granted during the year 660,291 1,331p
Forfeited during the year (32,527) 1151p
Cancelled during the year (58.850) 1,184p
Exercised during the year {576,913) 874p
Lapsed during the year (25,7113) 1,077p
OQutstanding at 1 April 2014 2,800,874 1,125p
Granted during the year 1.048,625 1,584p
Forfeited during the year (55.907) 1,072p
Cancalled during the year (62,552) 1,300p
Exercised during the year (707,444) 944p
Lapsed during the year {4.485) 1,072p
Outstanding at 31 March 2015 3,019,131 1,321p
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Sharesave options outstanding at 31 March were as follows

Number of share options
Normal date

Date of grant of exercise | Ophion pnce 2015 2014
January 2007 2014 1.172p - 11,273
January 2009 2014 862p - 436,233
January 2010 2015 808p 298,082 308,501
January 2011 2014 or 2016 1,137p 114,830 283,633
January 2012 2015 or 2017 1,177p 454,530 481,830
January 2013 2016 or 2018 1.241p 512,522 551,862
January 2014 2017 or 2018 1.331p 596,837 657,542
January 2015 2018 or 2020 1,584p 1,042,330 -
3,019,131 2,800,874

€) Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

Under the SIP the board may grant share awards to employees of group companies During the year the board
has announced that it will make awards under the SIP based on performance aganst Severn Trent Water's
targets for its Key Performance Indicators Ehgible employees will be entitled to shares to a maximum value of
£750 It 1s expected that these awards will be made in August 2015 SiP shares vest with the employee on the
date of grant

d) Share Matching Plan (SMP)

Under the Share Matching Plan members of STEC receve matching share awards over those shares which have
been acquired under the deferred share componsent of the annual bonus scheme. Matching shares may be
awarded at a maximum ratio of one matching share for every deferred share and are subject to a three year
vesting penod No matching shares have been awarded in the current year

Matching shares are subject lo total shareholder return over three years measured relative to the companies
ranked 51-150 by market capitalisation in the FTSE Index (excluding investment trusts)

The number of shares subject to an award will Increase to reflect dividends paic through the performance pened
on the basrs of such notional dividends being reinvested at the then prevailling share price Awards will normally
vest as soon as the Remuneration Committee determines that the performance conditions have been met
provided that the participant remains in employment at the end of the performance period

Awards outstanding
Number of
awards
Outstanding &t 1 Apnl 2013 57,383
Granted dunng the year 33.803
Cancelled during the year (4,569)
Vested dunng the year (16.179)
Qutstanding at 1 Apnl 2014 70,438
Cancedled dunng the year {8,305)
Vested during the year {11,463)
Outstanding at 31 March 2015 50,670
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Detalls of share matching awards outstanding at 31 March were as follows

Numbaer of awards
Normal date

Date of grant of vasting 20158 2014
May 2011 May 2014 - 18,611
May 2012 May 2015 18,024 18,024
May 2013 May 2016 32,646 33.803
50,670 70,438

e) Fair value calculations

The fair values of the share awards made and share options granted during the year were calculated using the
Black Scholes method The principal assumptions and data are set out below.

2015 L 2014
LTIP SAYE LTIP SAYE

3 year 5 year
scheme scheme 3 year scheme | § year scheme
Share price at grant date 1,918p 2,000p 2,000p 1.696p 1.694p 1,694p
TDptron Iife (years) 3 35 55 3 35 55
Vesting penod (years) 3 3 5 3 3 5
Expected volatiity 18 2% 18.2% 18 2% 18 2% 18 2% 18 2%
Expected dwidend yeld 4 4% 42% 4.2% 4 7% 47% 4 7%
Rusk free rate nfa 07% 11% na 0 6% 18%
Farr value per share 1,679p 326p 311p 1471p 280p 278p

Expected volatility 1s measured over the three years prior to the date of grant of the awards or share options

Volatility has been calculated based on histoncal share price movements
The nisk free rate Is derived from yields at the grant date of gilts of similar duration to the awards or share options

The dividend yield 1s calculated using the expected dividend for the year divided by the share price at the date of
grant

38 Discontinued operations

On 23 January 2015 the board approved a process to dispose of the group’s Water Purification busimess which
formed part of the Severn Trent Services segment These operations were classified as discontinued and as a
disposal group held for sale as at 31 March 2015 The results of discontinued operations are disclosed separately
in the Income statement and the assets and liabilities of the disposal group are presented separately in the
balance sheet

On 12 May 2015 the group entered into a binding agreement to seil the business to Industne De Nora. The

proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the carrying value of the group’s share of the disposal group’s net
assets and hence no impairment loss has baen recogrised on the classification of these operations as held for

sale
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The results of the discontinued operatons were as follows

201§ 2014
Em £m
Tumover 108 2 1000
Operating costs before exceptional items {103 3) (107 0)
Exceptional operating items - (29 2)
Total operatng costs (103 3) {136 2}
Profit/(loss} belore interest and tax 49 (36 2)
Finance costs - -
Profit/{loss) before tax 49 {36 2)
Attributable {ax expense ©2 (07)
Profit/(loss) for the year 47 (36 9)
Attributable to

Ovmers of the company 37 (381
Non-controlling interests 10 22
a7 (36 9)

The major classes of assets and habilities comprising the operations classified as held for sale are as follows
2015
£m
Goodwill 18
Other intanglble assets 7.2
Property, plant and equipment 5.0
Inventories 17.3
Trade and other recsivables 573
Cash and bark balances 19.3
Total astets class!fled as held for sale 107.9
Trade and other payables (33 6)
Tax llabilities {02
Provisions for llabilities and charges {1.5)
Total liabilitles assoclated with assets held for sale {35.3)
Net assots of disposal group 72.6
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Cash flows ansing from the dispasal group were as follows

2015 2014
£m £m
Net cash flows attributable to
- operating actvities 1.8 (83)
- Investing actvties (2.1) 43
- financing activities 36 1298
33 03
Basic and diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations are as follows
2015 2014
Weaighted Weighted
average average
number of Per share number of Per share
Earnings sharos amount Eamings shares amount
£m m pence £m m pence
Basic earnings per share 3.7 2388 1.5 (391) 2382 (16 4}
Dliuted eamings per share .7 2399 15 {39 1) 2393 (16 3}
39 Cash flow statement
a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows
2015 2014
£m £m
Profit before interest and tax from continuing operations 521.8 5086
Profit/(loss) before interest and tax from discontinued operations 49 (36 2)
Profit before interast and tax 5265 472 4
Depraciation of property, plant and equipment 2016 2700
Amortsation of intangible essets 242 293
Impairment 02 205
Pension service cost 409 225
Dsfined benefit pension scheme administration costs 29 3o
Pension contnbutions (810} {73 0)
Share based payments charge 77 62
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (8.6) {8 6)
Deferred income movement (10.1) (25)
Prowisions charged to the income statemant 200 10
Utlisation of provisions for kabilihes and charges (26.0) (13 8}
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital T78 3 7390
{Increase)/decrease m Invantory 57) 44
182

Group financia! statements




SEVERN TRENT_AR15

215 2014

Em £m

Increase in amounts receivable {32 5) {17 2}
Increase in amounts payable 20.0 40
Cash generated from operations 7601 7302
Tax (paldyrecelved (28 6) 272
Net cash generated from operating activities 731 5 7574

b} Non-cash transactions

No addttions to property, plant and equipment dunng the year were financed by new finance leases {2014 nil)
Assets transferred from developers at no cost were recognised at their farr value of £29 8 million (2014 £24 7

milion)
c) Exceptional cash flows
The following cash flows arose from items classified as exceptional in the iIncome statement:
2015 2014
£m £m
Restructuring costs (25 4) {43)
Disposal of fixed assets 94 g4
Disposal of subsidiaries (3.5) -
Settlement of customer contractual disputes - (19)
Obligations ansing from dispesal of businesses - (16)
Professional fees refating to LongRiver proposal - (187)
(19 5) (17 1)
d) Reconciliation of movement in cash and cash equivalents to movement in net debt
As at RP! uplift on Other As at
1 April Farr value Index-linked Fareign non-cash 31 March
2014 Cashflow | adjustments debt exchange movements 2015
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Not cash and cash
equlvalants 1232 726 - - 02 {193y’ 1767
Bank loans {584 9) {683 0) - (13) - - 1,219.2)
Other loans (3,626 0) 3322 - (207) 733 (26 3) (3,467.5)
Flnance leases {201 2) 212 - - - - (180 0)
Cross currency swaps 514 - (78 1) - - 241 (28)
Nat dabt (4,447 5) (257 0) (78 1) 220 735 {21.5) {4,752.6)
1 Other non-cash movements on cash and cash equivalents represent amounts transferred to assets held for sale (see note 38)
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40 Contingent liabilities

Bonds and guarantees
Group undertakings have entered into bonds and guarantees in the normal course of business No liability s
expected to arise in respect of either bonds or guarantaes

The group has given certatn guarantees In respect of the borrowings of its associate, Servizio Idrico Integrato

S cpa The guarantees are imited to €5 1 mifllon (2014 €5 1 million) The group does not expect any liabilities

that are not provided for in these financial statements to anse from these arrangements

41 Service concession arrangements
The group’s contract to provide water and waste water services to the Ministry of Defence (MoD) 1s a service

concession arrangement under the defintion set out in IFRIC 12 The group acts as the service provider under the
MoD Project Aquatrine Package C — a 25 year contract spanning 1,295 sites across England covenng the Eastern

sea border and from Lancashire in the North West to West Sussex on the South Coast

Linder the contract the group maintains and upgrades the MoD infrastructure assets and provides operating
services for water and waste water Both the operating services and mamntenance and upgrade services are

charged under a volumetnc tariff, along with standard charges, which are adjusted with inflation as agreed in the

contract.

Since the group has an unconditional right to receive cash in exchange for the maintenance and upgrade

services, the amounts recervable are recognised as a financial asset within prepayments and accrued imcome At

31 March 2015 the amounts receivable were £24 4 million (2014 £24 8 million)
There have been no signficant changes to the arrangement during the year

42 Financial and other commitments

a) Investment expenditure commitments
2015 2014
Em £m
75.2 158 5

Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements

In addition to these contractual commitments, Severn Trent Water Limited has longer term expenditure plans

which include investments to achieve improvements in performance mandated by the Director General of Water

Services (Ofwat) and to provide for growth in demand for water and sewerage services.

b) Leasing commitments

At the balance sheet date the group had outstanding commitments for future minimum operating lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

2015 2014
£m £m
Within 1 year 34 34
2-5 years 63 72
After more than § years 64 59
16.1 165

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for certain of its office properties, plant and

cquipment
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43 Post balance sheet events

Dividends
Following the year end the board of directors has proposed a final dividend of 50 94 pence per share Further
details of this are shown in note 14

Discontinued operations

On 12 May 2015 the group entered mto a binding agreement to sell its Water Purification business to Industne De
Nora The proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the cammying value of the group's share of the disposal
group's net assets and hence no impaiment loss has been recognised on the classification of these operations as
held for sale Further details of this are shown in note 38

44  Related party transactions

Transactions between the company and its subsidianies, which are related parties, have been elminated on
censolidation and are not included in this note Trading transactions between the group and its associates and
joint ventures are disclosed below

Amounts due from related

Sale of services parties

2015 2014 2015 2014

£m £m £m fm

sh 55 58 141 171

The related parties are assocrates and joint ventures in which the group has a participating interest. The
retrement benefit schemes operated by the group are considered to be related parties Details of transactions and
balances with the retirement benefit schemes are disclosed in note 28

Remuneration of key management personnel
Key management personnel comprise the members of STEC during the year
The remuneration of the directors 1s included within the amounts disciosed below Further information about the

remuneration of individual directors 1s provided in the audited part of the Directors’ remuneration report on pages
75to 84

2015 2014

£m £m

Short term employee benefits 61 63
Post employment benefits 0.2 04
Terminabton benefits 0.2 -
Share based payments 40 14
105 81

45 Subsidiary undertakings

Principal subsidiary undertakings

Details of the prnincipal operating subsidiaries as at 21 May 2015 are given below A complete list of subsidiary
undertakings 1s available on réquest to the company and will be filed with the next Annual Return
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Country of incorporation and main operation 1s Great Britain and registration 1s in England and Wales unless

otherwise stated

All subsidiary undertakings are wholly owned and all shareholdings are in ordinary shares
All subsidiary undertakings have been included n the consolidation

Country of
Name incorporation Princlpal actlvity
Derwent Insurance Limited Gibraltar Provision of insurance services to other group companles
Severn Trent Environmental Services Inc. USA Operation of water and sewerage infrastructura
Sevem Trent Property Sotutions Limited Great Britain Prowision of residental and commaercial property searches
Severn Trent Select Limited Great Bntain Provision of licensed water and sewarage services
Severn Trent Services Defence Limited Great Britam Provislon of water and seweraga services to the Ministry of

Defence

Sevem Trent Services Opcerations UK Great Britaln Operation of water and sewerage infrastructure
Limited
Sevemn Trent Water Limited Great Bntain Prowiston of regulated water and sewerage services

Subsidlary audit exemptions

Severn Trent Plc has issued guaraniees over the liabiliies of the following companies at 31 March 2015 under
section 479C of Companies Act 2006 and these entitres are exempt from the requirements of the Act relating to
the audit of ndvidual accounts by virtue of section 479A of the Act

Company number

City Analyhcal Services Limited 2050581
East Warcestar Water Limited 2757948
Gunthompe Fields Limited 4240764
Sevemn Trent (W&S) Limited 3965023
Severn Trent Carsington Limited 7570384
Severn Trent Corporata Heldings Limited 4305566
Severn Trent Data Portad Limited 8181048
Sevemn Trent Draycote Limited 7681784
Sevemn Trent Finance Holdings Limited 6044159
Sevem Trent Finance Limited 6294618
Sevemn Trent Financing and Investments Limited 6312635
Sevemn Trent General Partnership 5C416614
Sevemn Trent Holdings Limited 5656263
Savemn Trent Investment Holdings Limited 7560050
Severn Trent LCP Limited 7943556
Severn Trent Overseas Holdings Limited 2455508
Sevemn Trent Power Generation Limited 2651131
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Severn Trent Services Holdings Limited 4395572
Severn Trent Services Intemational (Overseas Holdings) Limited 3125131
Sevem Trent Services Punfication Limited 2409826
Sevemn Trent Systems Limited 2394552
Sevem Trent Utiity Services Limited 4125386
Severn Trent Wind Power Limited 742177
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Company statement of comprehensive income
For the vear ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
£m £m
Profit for the year 191.1 3107
Othar comprehensive Income
tems that will not be reclassified to the income statement
Deferred tax ansing on change of rate - (05)
- (0 5)
Items that may be reclassified to the income statement
Amounts cn cash flow hedges transferred to the income statement in the year 27 26
Deferred tax on transfers to income statement {0 5) (05)
22 21
Other comprehensive income for the year 2.2 i
Total comprehensive income for the year 183.3 3123
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Company balance sheet
At 31 March 2015

2015 2014
Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Intangible fixed assets 1 02 02
Tangible fixed assets 2 03 04
investments i subsidianes 3 3,760.3 37627
Denvative financial Instruments - 26
3,760 8 37659
Current assets
Debtors 4 34.6 250
Denvative financial nstruments 29 36
Cash at bank and in hand - 259
36.6 545
Credifors amounts falling dus within one year 5 (325.7) 217 1)
Net ¢urrent habilibes (289.1) (162 6)
Total assets less current habilities 347117 3,603 3
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year ] {(827) {113 8)
Net assats 3,389.0 34895
Capltal and resorves
Called up share capital 8 2337 2339
Share premium account o 100.2 942
Other reserves 10 159.6 156 5
Retained eamings 28055 3,004 8
Total capital and reserves 33890 34895
Signed on behalf of the board who approved the accounts on 21 May 2015
Andrew Duff James Bowling
Chairman Chief Financial Officer
Company number 02366619
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Company statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2015

Share Share Other Retained
capital premium raserves earnings Total
£m £m £m £m Em
At 1 Apnt 2013 2333 897 154 4 28770 3,354 4
Profit for the year - - - 3107 3107
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the
mcome statement - - 28 - 26
Deferred tax on transfers to the income statement - - {0 5) - (0 5)
Deferred tax ansing from rate change - - - (05) (G 5)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 21 3102 3123
Share options and LTIPs
- proceeds from shares 1ssued 06 45 - - 51
— value of employees' servicas - - - 30 30
Diedends paid - - - {185 3) {185 3)
At 31 March 2014 2338 942 156 5 3.004 8 34895
Profit for the year - - - 1911 1911
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the
ncome statement - - 27 - 27
Deferred tax on transfers to the income statement - - {0 5) - {0 5)
Tota! comprehensive income for the year - - 22 1811 1933
Share options and LTIPs
— proceeds from shares issued o7 60 - - 67
- own shares purchased - - - (3 6} (3 6)
Share buy back - - - {100 0} (100 0}
Shars cancellation (0 9) - 09 - -
Dividends paid - - - (196 9) (196 9)
At 31 March 2015 2337 1002 159 6 28955 3,389.0
In previous years £1,221.2 million of the company’s retained profit arose as a result of group restructunng
exercises, and 1s not considered likely to be distnbutable
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Notes to the company financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

1 Intangible fixed assets

Purchased
software
Em
Cost
At 1 Aptll 2014 and 31 March 2015 09
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2014 and 31 March 2015 {07)
Hat book value
At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015 o) 2_—
2 Tangible fixed assets
Office
Land and fixtures and
buildings equlpment Total
£m £m E£m
Cost
As at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015 01 06 07
Depreciation
Asat 1 Apnl 2014 - ©3) (03)
Charge for the year - @) {0 1)
As at 31 March 2015 - {04) {0 4)
Net book value
As at 31 March 2015 01 0.2 03
As at 31 March 2014 01 03 04
3 Investments
Subsidiary undertakings
Shares Loans Total
Em £m £m
As at 1 April 2014 33136 448 1 3,762.7
Loans repaid - (24) {2.4)
As at 31 March 2015 3,3136 446.7 3,760.3
Details of principal subsidranies of the company are given in note 45 of the group financial statements.
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4 Debtors
2015 2014
£m £m
Amounts owed by group undertakings 19.3 192
Deferred tax 1.9 49
Corporation tax recoverable 1186 -
Other debtors 1.8 03
Prepayments and accrued income - 06
346 250
An analysis of the movements in the major deferred tax habiliies and assets recognised by the company 1s set out
below:
Accelerated Fair value
tax of financial
depreciation instruments Other Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2013 01 73 08 g2
Charge to profit and loss account - 22) 05 (17}
Charge to profit and loss account arising from rate change - {0 5} (c1) {0 6)
Charge to other comprehensive Income - (05) - (0 5)
Charge to other comprehensive income ansing from rate change - (0 5) - (05)
At 1 Apnl 2014 01 36 12 48
Charge to profit and loss account - (19) (0 8} 27)
Charge to other comprehensiva Income - (0 5) - (05)
Transfers - - 02 02
At 31 March 2015 01 12 06 19
5 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2015 2014
£m £m
Bank overdrafts (61) (40)
Other loans (17.0) (26 4)
Borrowings {see note 7) {23.1) {304)
Dervative financlal instruments {6.5) (02)
Trade creditors {o1) (04)
Amounts due to group undertakings (204 B) (146 2)
Other creditors {7 0) (101)
Taxation and social security - {287)
Accrued expenses 84 2) (11
(3257) {217 1)
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6 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
2015 2014
£m £m
Borrowings — other loans (see note 7) (78 7) (95 5)
Amounts due to group undertakings (3.0 -
Derivative financial instruments - (18 3)
{827 (113 8}
7 Borrowings
2015 2014
£m £m
Borrowings due within one year 231 304
Borrowings dus after more than one yoar
Between one and two years - 178
Between two and five years - -
After more than five years 197 rekd
Total borrowings due after one year 97 955
1028 1259

Borrowings repayable after more than 5 years compnses the company's RPI inked retai! bonds 1ssued in July

2012 The bonds carry a coupon of 1.3% on the principal amount which 1s uplifted by RPI The bonds are

repayable in July 2022

The company’s borrowings are denominated in sterling, after taking account of cross currency swaps the

company has entered into There 18 no significant difference between the book value and the fair value of the
company's borrowings Fair values are based on the expected future cash flows discounted using zerc coupon

forward interest rates related to the expected timing of payments

At the balance sheet date the company had committed undrawn borrowing facilities expiring as follows

2015 2014
£Em £m
2-5 years - 2000
The facility in the prior year was shared with Severn Trent Water Limited During the year the facility was
renegotated as a Severn Trent Water Limited only facility
8 Share capital
2015 2014
£m £m
Total 1ssued and fully paid share capital
238,683,513 ordinary shares of 97"/,gp (2014 238,942,647) 233.7 2339
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Changes in share capital were as follows:

Number £m
Ordinary shares of 97 /,sp
At 1 Apnl 2014 238,042,647 2339
Shares issued under the group's Employee Sharesave Scheme 707,444 07
Share buy back (966,578} (089}
At 31 March 2015 238,683,513 2337
9 Share premium
2015 2014
£m £m
At 1 Apnl 84.2 897
Share premum ansing on shares msued under the group's Employee Sharesave Scheme 8.0 45
At 31 March 100.2 942
10 Other reserves
Capital
redemgtion Hedging
reserve reserve Total
£m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2013 156 1 7" 154 4
Total comprehensive income for the year - 21 21
At 1 Apnl 2014 156 1 04 156 5
Total comprehensive Income for the year - 22 22
Share buy back 09 - 09
At 31 March 2015 1570 286 158.8

The caprtal redemption reserve arose on the redemption of B shares The movement in the current year arose
from the repurchase and cancellation of own shares, as cutlined in note 30 of the group financial statements

The hedging reserve arises from gains or losses on interest rate swaps taken directly to equity under the hedge
accounting provisions of 1AS 39 and the transition rules of IFRS 1

1 Share based payments

For details of employee share schemes and options granted over the shares of the company, see note 37 of the
group financial statements. Details of options exercised and awards vesting duning the year and of the weighted
average share price of the company during the year are also disclosed in that note
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12 Pensions

The group operates group defined benefit pension schemes, of which some employees of the company are
members There I1s no contractual agreement for charging the net defined benefit cost of these schemes between
the companies that participate in the schemes As a result, the net defined benefit cost of the scheme 1s
recognised in the financial staternents of the sponsoring employer, Severn Trent Water Limited The cost of
contnbutions to the group schemes amount to £0 1 million (2014: £0 1 million} There were no amounts
outstanding for contributions to the defined benefit schemes (2014 nil)

Information about the plans as a whole 15 disclosed in note 28 to the group financial statements

13 Related party transactions

The retirement benefit schemes operated by the company are considered to be related parties Detalls of
transactions and balances with the retirement benefit schemes are disclosed in note 12

14  Contingent liabilities

a} Bonds and guarantees

The company has entered into bonds and guarantees in the normal course of business. No liabilities are expected
to anse i respect of either the bonds or guarantees

b) Bank offset arrangements

The banking arrangements of the company operate on a pooled basis with certain of its subsidiary undertakings
Under these arrangements participating companies guarantee each others’ overdrawn balances to the extent of
their credit balances, which can be offset against balances of participating companies As at 31 March 2015, the
company had no contingent abiibes (2014 £25 9 milhion)

15 Post balance sheet events
Following the year end the board of directors has proposed a final dvidend of 50 84 pence per share

16 Dividends

For details of the dividends paid in the years ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 see note 14 in the group
financial statements

Company financial statemeants 195




SEVERN TRENT_AR15

Five year summary

2014
As
2014 previously
2015 Restated® stated 2013 2012 2011
Continuing operations £m £m Em £m £m £m
Tumover 1.8013 1,758 7 18567 1,8316 1,7706 17113
Profit before interest, tax and
axceptional items 540.3 5238 5168 495 4 5042 5191
Net exceptional items before tax (18 7) (152) {44 4) (58) (50 9) (214)
Net interest payable before
(kosses)gains on financlal
instruments and exceptional finance
costs {240 0) (247 9) (247 9) (244 3) (229 0) {230 8)
{Losses)/gains on financal
nstruments {133 5) 58 0 580 {45 3) (67 7) {14 2)
Results of associates and joint
ventures 0.1 02 02 02 01 01
Profit on ordinary activities before
taxation 148 2 3189 2827 2002 1567 2330
Current tax on profit an ordinary
achwities (37 8) {55 8) (56 5) {27 9) {60 5) (32 1)
Deferred tax 5.1 {21 5) {215) 8.2 782 536
Exceptional tax - 2302 2302 384 - -
Profit on ordinary activitios after
tax 1155 471 8 4349 2188 1744 2745
Profit for the period 1153 4718 4349 2189 174 4 2745
Net asseats employed
Fixed assets 7,3255 71238 71238 6,908 1 6,743 8 6,6353
Other net liabilities excluding net
debt, retirement benefit cbhigation,
provisions and deferred tax (516 1) (348 2} (348 2) (273 8) (341 3) (320 4)
Denvative financial instruments ' (17 (187 1) (197 1) (279 B) (261 8) (20 5)
Retirament benefit obligation (468.9} (348 3) (348 3) (383 7) (345 8) {292 1)
Prowvisions for llabilltles and charges
and deferred tax {659.5) (692 6) {692 B8) (827 5) {845 5) (957 4)
Net assets held for sale 726 - - - - -
55759 55376 55376 5,141 3 4,9402 49749
Financed by
Called up share capital 2337 2339 2338 2333 2326 2322
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2014
As
2014 previously
2015 Restated’ statod 2013 2012 2011
Contiuing operations £m £m £m €m £m £m
Reserves S16.2 8437 8437 5899 7409 8676
Total shareholders' funds 8099 1,077 6 1,077 6 8332 9735 1,000 8
Non-controlling interests 134 125 125 108 79 63
Net debt? 4,752 8 4,447 5 44475 4,297 3 3,967 8 38688
55759 55376 5,5376 51413 4,949 2 49748
Statistics
Earmings per share {continung) -
pence 483 1985 182 1 009 725 1152
Adjusted eamlngs per share - pence 107 2 825 884 926 B89 105 6
Dividands per share (excluding
specal dividend) - pence 849 804 804 758 701 651
Dividend cover (before exceptional
items and deferred tax) 13 12 1 13 13 16
Geanng 85 2% 80 3% BO 3% 83 6% 80 2% 77 8%
Ordinary share price at 31 March -
pence 2,0590 18230 1,8230 1.7120 1,544 0 14450
Average number of employees
- Severn Trent Water 5,532 5,624 5,634 5,458 5,162 5,237
- Other 1,910 1,814 2,358 2,763 2,889 3,045
1 Exciudes instruments hedging foreign currency debt
2 Includes instruments hedging foreign currency debt
3 Restated for discontinued operations (see note 38)
Geanng has been calculated as net debt divided by the sum of equity and net debt
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Information for shareholders

Severn Trent sharehoider helpline
The company's registrar 1s Equimit Limted Equinit’'s mam responsibilities include maintaining the shareholder
register and making dividend payments

If you have any queres relating to your Severn Trent Plc shareholding you should contact Equinits

Registrar contact details

Online: www shareview co uk from here, you will be able to securely email Equiniti with your query

Telephone: 0871 384 2967 .
Overseas enquiries” +44 121 415 7044 |
Text phone; 0871 384 2255*

By post' Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex, BN99 6DA :
Corporate website

Shareholders are encouraged to visit our website www severntrent com which provides’

s company news and informatton,

+ |inks to our operatronal businesses’ websites,

+ details of our governance arrangements,

« details of our strategy,

s details of the group's business models and business plan, and

» the company's approach to operating responsibly

There is also a dedicated Investors' section on the website which contains up to date information for shareholders
including

e comprehensive share price information,

+ financial results,

+ a history of dvidend payment dates and amounts, and

» access to current and historical shareholder documents such as the Annual Report and Accounts

Electronic communications
By registering to receive shareholder documentation from Severn Trent Plc electronically shareholders can benefit
from being able to

» view the Annual Report and Accounts on the day it 1s published,

» receive an emall alert when shareholder documents are available,

+ cast their AGM vote electronically; and

e manage their shareholding quickly and securely oniine, through Shareview

Eilectronic shareholder commurnications also enable the company to reduce its impact on the environment and
benefit from savings associated with reduced printing and mailing costs

For further informatior: and to register for electronic shareholder communications visit www shareview co uk
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Dividend payments

Bank mandates

Dividends can be paid automatically into your bank or building society account

The benefits of doing this are that you will

e recewe cleared funds in yaur bank account on the payment date,

» avoid postal delays, and

¢ remove the nsk of your cheques getting lost in the post

To take advantage of this service or for further details contact Equiniti or visit www shareview co.uk.

Dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP)

The DRIP gives shareholders the option of using therr dividend payments to buy more Severn Trent Plc shares
nstead of receiving cash If you would like to participate in the DRIP, please request a dividend reinvestment plan
mandate from Equiniti Financial Services Limited

Telephone: 0871 384 2268"
Telephone number from outside the UK. +44 121 4157173
Buying and selling shares in the UK

If you wish to buy or sell certificated Severn Trent Plc shares, you will need to use a stockbroker or high street
bank which trades on the London Stock Exchange There are also many telephone and online services avallable
to you If you are selling, you will need to present your share certficate at the time of sale Details of low cost
dealing services may be obtained from www shareview co uk or 0845 603 7037**

Share price information

Shareholders can find share price information on our website and 1n most national newspapers For a real-time
buying or selling price, you should contact a stockbroker

Shareholder security

Fraudsters use persuasive and high-pressure tactics to lure investors into scams They may offer to sell shares
that tumn out to be worthless or non-existent, or to buy shares at an inflated price in return for an upfront payment
While hugh profits are promised, f you buy or sell shares in this way you will probably lose your money.

How to avoid share fraud

» Keep in mind that firms authorised by the Financial Conduct Authonty (FCA) are unlikely to contact you out of
the blue with an offer to buy or self shares.

¢ Do not get into a conversation, note the name of the person and firm contacting you and then end the call

e Check the Financial Services Register from www fca org uk to see If the person and firm contacting you 15
authonsed by the FCA.

« Beware of fraudsters claiming to be from an authorised firm, copying its website or giving you false contact
detaills

» Use the firm’'s contact details listed on the Register f you want to call it back

e Cali the FCA on 0800 111 6768 if the firm does not have contact details on the Register or you are told they
are out of date.

»  Search the list of unauthonsed firms to avoid at www.fca org uk/scams
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e Constder that if you buy or sell shares from an unauthonsed firm you will not have access to the Financial
Ombudsman Service or Financial Services Compensation Scheme

» Think about getting independent financial and professional advice before you hand over any money

« Remember, if it sounds too good to be true, it probably 15

if you are approached by fraudsters please tell the FCA using the share fraud reporting form at
www fca org.uk/scams, where you can find out more about investment scams

You can also call the FCA Consumer Helpline on 0800 111 6768
if you have already paid money to share fraudsters you should contact Action Fraud on G300 123 2040

Unsolicited mail

The company is legally obliged to make its share register available to the general public Consequently some
shareholders may receive unschicited mail. If you wish to imit the amount of unsolicited mail you receive please

contact:
The Mailing Preference Service (MPS), Freepost 29 LON20771, London W1E 0ZT
Alternatively, register online at www mpsonline org uk or call the MPS Regtstration ine on 0845 703 4599

American Depositary Receipts (ADRs)
Severn Trent has a sponsored Level 1 American Depositary Receipt (ADR) programme, for which The Bank of
New York Mellon acts as Depositary

The Level 1 ADR programme trades on QTCQX which is the premier tier of the US over the counter (OTC) market
under the symbol STRNY (it is not listed on a US stock exchange) Each ADR represents 1 Severn Trent ordinary

share

if you have any enquiries regarding Severn Trent ADRs please contact The Bank of New York Mellon
By post BNY Mellon Shareowners Services, PO Box 30170, College Station, TX 77842-3170, US
By telephone*

If calling from within the US. (888) 269 2377 (toll-free)

If calling from outside the US +1 201 680 6825

By email shrrelations@cpushareownerservices com
Website: www mybnymdr com

* Calls cost 8 pence per minute plus network extras Lines are open from 8 30am to 5 30pm Monday to Friday
** Lines are open Monday to Fnday, 8 00am to 4 30pm for dealing, and until 6 00pm for enquines
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Financial calendar

Ex dwdend date ~ final dividend 18 June 2015
Record date to be eligible for the final dividend 19 June 2015
AGM 15 July 2015
Interim management statement — Q1 Year ending 31 March 2016 15 July 2015
Final dividend payment date 24 July 2015
Interim results announcement — Year ending 31 March 2016 26 November 2015
Ex dividend date - mierim dmdend 3 December 2015
Record date to be eligible for the intenm draidend 4 December 2015
Interim dividend payment date 8 January 2016

All dates are indicative and may be subject to change,
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This report has been printed on Chorus Lux Silk a paper which 1s certrfied by the Forest Stewardship Council®.
The paper 1s made at a mill with ISC 14001 environmental management system accreditation

This report was produced using the pureprnnt® environmental print technology, a guaranteed, low carbon, fow
waste, independently audited process that reduces the environmental impact of the printing process Printed using
vegetable oil based inks by a CarbonNeutra!® printer certified to ISO 14001 environmental management system
and registered to EMAS the Eco Management Audit Scheme
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